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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC.
GLOSSARY
The following terms are frequently used in the txthis report and have the meanings indicatedviel

“Used Core” — An automobile part which has beerdusehe operation of a vehicle. Generally, thedJ€ere is an original equipment (“OE”
automobile part installed by the vehicle manufamtand subsequently removed for replacement. Usegls@ontain salvageable parts which
are an important raw material in the remanufactuprocess. We obtain most Used Cores by providiedits to our customers for Used Cores
returned to us under our core exchange programc@siomers receive these Used Cores from consumhersieliver a Used Core to obtain
credit from our customers upon the purchase ofrdyneemanufactured automobile part. When sufficidsed Cores cannot be obtained from
our customers, we will purchase Used Cores frora bookers, who are in the business of buying alithgéJsed Cores. The Used Cores
purchased from core brokers or returned to us Ibyestomers under the core exchange program, aiah\whve been physically received by
us, are part of our raw material or work in prodesentory included in long-term core inventory.

“Remanufactured Core” — The Used Core underlyingaomobile part that has gone through the rematurdag process and through that
process has become part of a newly remanufactutedhabile part. The remanufacturing process takdseal Core, breaks it down into its
component parts, replaces those components thavtha reused and reassembles the salvageable cenip@f the Used Core and additional
new components into a remanufactured automobile Ramanufactured Cores are included in our on-fimmghed goods inventory and in the
remanufactured finished good product held for shleustomer locations. Used Cores returned by enestuito our customers but not yet
returned to us continue to be classified as Renaatwfed Cores until we physically receive thesedUSeres. All Remanufactured Cores are
included in our long-term core inventory or in domg-term core inventory deposit.




Table of Content
MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC.

Unless the context otherwise requires, all refeesnio this Annual Report orForm 10-K to “the Company,” “we,” “us,” “MPA,” and “our”
refer to Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. and its subsidiaries. This Form 10Ky contain forward-lookingstatements within the meaning of

the Private Securities Litigation Reform Actf 1995. Such forward-looking statements involsksiand uncertainties. Oumactual results may

differ significantly from the results discussedimy forward-looking statements. Discussions contairsngh forward-looking statements me

be found in the material set forth under Item 7 dh&dgement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition desults of Operationsds
well as within this Form 10-K generally.

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, gretatements and other information with the Seiasriind Exchange Commission (“SEC”).
Our SEC filings are available free of charge tofghblic over the Internet at the SEC’s websiteratv.sec.gov Our SEC filings are also
available free of charge on our websitew.motorcarparts.con¥ou may also read and copy any document we fila wié SEC at its Public
Reference Room at 100 F. Street, NE, Washingto, P0549. Please call the SEC at (800) SEC-033fuftrer information on the operation
of the Public Reference Room.
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PART |
ltem 1. Business
General

We are a leading manufacturer, remanufacturerdastdbutor of aftermarket automotive parts for imnppand domestic cars, light trucks, heavy
duty, agricultural and industrial applications. &l our products predominantly in North Americahe largest auto parts retail and traditiona
warehouse chains and to major automobile manuferstfior both their aftermarket programs and theirranty replacement programs
(“OES”).

The current population of vehicles in the U.S.ppr@ximately 251 million and the average age o$éheehicles is approximately 11.5 years.
While the aged vehicle population is favorable toduailes driven continues to fluctuate primarilysked on fuel prices. We believeethand an
replacement rates for aftermarket automotive ggeterally increase with the age of vehicles anteases in miles driven.

The aftermarket for automobile parts is divideaitwo markets. The first market is the do-it-yolfr§#1Y”) market, which is generally
serviced by the large retail chain outlets. Conssméo purchase parts from the DIY channel genenaditall parts into their vehicles
themselves. In most cases, this is a less expealemative than having the repair performed Ipyadessional installer. The second market is
the professional installer market, commonly knowritee do-it-for-me (“DIFM”) market. This marketserviced by the traditional warehouse
distributors, the dealer networks, and the comrakdivisions of retail chains. Generally, the cangu in this channel is a professional parts
installer. Our products are distributed to bothEi¥ and DIFM markets.

Pursuant to the guidance provided under the FiahAcicounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accountingu&lards Codification (“ASC”) for
segment reporting, we have determined that ourabipgrsegments meet the criteria for aggregatiahaacordingly we have one reportable
segment for purposes of recording and reportingioancial results.

Growth Strategies

We are focused on growing our share in all channétsn the aftermarket including, DIY, DIFM and GEAIl channels of the aftermarket are
growing, in particular the DIFM market. We are wgdisitioned for growth in all channels, in partexuthe DIFM market in three ways: (i) our
auto parts retail customers are expanding thertsfto target the DIFM market, (ii) we sell ouogucts under private label and our own branc
names directly to suppliers that focus on professimstallers, and (iii) we sell our products tigoal equipment manufacturers for
distribution to the professional installer both ¥aarranty replacement and their general aftermarkatnels. We have been successful in
growing sales to all channels of the aftermarket.

Our goal is to take advantage of multiple growthtsgies. To accomplish this, key elements of tnategy include:

« Grow our product lines both with existing and pdigimew customers.We have been awarded a significant amount of mgsiness
for all our product lines. In particular our rotagielectrical products had the most significant ibexsiness gains, which we began
shipping in January 2015. In addition, we were a@drfurther new business in all product lines, Whie expect to begin shipping in
the next fiscal yea

» Introduction of new product line We launched a new brake master cylinder prodadtge July 2014. We continue to strive to
expand our business by exploring new product li

« The strategic acquisition of other companies oribesses. We intend to continue making strategic acquisgito grow our business.
We completed the acquisition of a small privatedydremanufacturer of alternators and starters initeeduarter of fiscal 201¢

« Creating value for our customer&. core part of our strategy is ensuring that we addmmgful value for our customers. We
consistently support and pilot our customers’ sypphnagement initiatives in addition to providirgntand analytics, inventory
planning, market share, and planogram informatoour customers
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Products

Our products include (i) rotating electrical prottusuch as alternators and starters, (ii) wheeldsglemblies and bearings, and (iii) new brake
master cylinders.

Our products meet or exceed original equipment i@@bwrer specifications. Remanufacturing generaigates a supply of parts at a lower
to the end user than newly manufactured parts aldmmavailable automotive parts which are no longanufactured. Our remanufactured
parts are generally sold at competitively lowecesi than most new replacement parts. We believé ahosir automotive parts are nefective
replacement parts in all makes and models of vedhisecause they are required for a vehicle to tmera

We recycle nearly all materials in keeping with éagus of positively impacting the environment. Neall parts, including metal from the
Used Cores and corrugated packaging, are recycled.

The increasing complexity of cars and light truaksl the number of different makes and models afelvehicles have resulted in a significant
increase in the number of different automotive pegtjuired to service vehicles. We carry over 10 £0ck keeping units (“SKUs") for
automotive parts that are sold under our customeéd®ly recognized private label brand names arrdQuality-Built®, Xtreme®, Reliance™
and other brand names.

Customers: Customer Concentration

We sell our products to the largest retail autoweotihain stores including Advance, AutoZone, Geatarts (NAPA), O'Reilly, and Pep
Boys, with an aggregate of approximately 17,008ireutlets as well as a diverse group of autoneotixarehouse distributors and OES
customers.

While we continually seek to diversify our custorbase, we currently derive, and have historicadlgivid, a substantial portion of our sales
from a small number of large customers. Duringdist015, 2014 and 2013, sales to our four largestbmers in the aggregate represented
89%, 87% and 82%, respectively, of our net saled sales to our largest customer, AutoZone, reptedes6%, 53% and 41%, respectively
our net sales. Any meaningful reduction in the l@fesales to any of these customers, deterioraifdhe financial condition of any of these
customers or the loss of any of these customeilsl t@ve a materially adverse impact on our busiressilts of operations, and financial
condition.

Customer Arrangements; Impact on Working Capital

We have or are renegotiating loteym agreements with many of our major customensldd these agreements, which in most cases hdiz
terms of at least four years, we are designatédeasxclusive or primary supplier for specifiedezairies of our products. Because of the very
competitive nature of the market and the limitechber of customers for these products, our custofmere sought and obtained price
concessions, significant marketing allowances anterfavorable delivery and payment terms in consititen for our designation as a
customer’s exclusive or primary supplier. Thesenives differ from contract to contract and carlude (i) the issuance of a specified amoun
of credits against receivables in accordance wibhedule set forth in the relevant contractsipport for a particular customer’s research or
marketing efforts provided on a scheduled basiy d{scounts granted in connection with each imdlinal shipment of product, and (iv) other
marketing, research, store expansion or produatldpment support. These contracts typically reqihia¢ we meet ongoing standards relate
fulfillment, price, and quality. Our contracts withajor customers expire at various dates througrcMa019.

While these longeterm agreements strengthen our customer relatipsstiie increased demand for our products ofteminegjthat we increa
our inventories and personnel. Customer demandsvihaurchase their Remanufactured Core inventisty r@quire the use of our available
working capital. The marketing and other allowaneaestypically grant our customers in connectiorbvatir new or expanded customer
relationships adversely impact the nézmm revenues, profitability and associated camivslfrom these arrangements. However, we beliey
investment we make in these new or expanded custatationships will improve our overall liquidignd cash flow from operations over
time.
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Competition

The market for aftermarket automotive parts is lyighhmpetitive. We compete with several large aretlimm sized remanufacturers, including
BBB Industries and Remy International, and a largeber of smaller regional and specialty remanufacs. We also compete with overseas
manufacturers, particularly those located in Chimag are increasing their operations and could imeca significant competitive force in the
future.

We believe that the reputations for quality and@ouer service that a supplier provides are sigaifidactors in our customers’ purchase
decisions. We believe that our ability to providelity replacement automotive products, rapid atidile delivery capabilities as well as
promotional support distinguishes us from manywf@mpetitors and provides a competitive advantagaddition, we believe favorable
pricing, our core exchange program, and extendgthpat terms are also very important competitivédizcin customers’ purchase decisions.

We seek to protect our proprietary processes amel @tformation by relying on trade secret laws aod-disclosure and confidentiality
agreements with certain of our employees and qibeons who have access to that information.

Operations

Production ProcessOur remanufacturing process begins with the readiptsed Cores from our customers or core brokers.Used Cores
are evaluated for inventory control purposes aed gorted by part number. Each Used Core is cosaipldisassembled into its fundamental
components. The components are cleaned in a prtwgssmploys customized equipment and cleaningmads in accordance with the
required specifications of the particular compongétitcomponents known to be subject to major warat those components determined not f«
be reusable or repairable are replaced by new coemts. Non-salvageable components of the Used &ersold as scrap.

After the cleaning process is complete, the sal@blgecomponents of the Used Core are inspectetkatet] as prescribed by our ISO TS
16949 approved quality control program, which ipiemented throughout the production process. ISQEG%19 is an internationally
recognized, world class, automotive quality systeimon passage of all tests, which are monitoreddsjgnated quality control personnel, all
the component parts are assembled in a work delkifinished product. Inspection and testing aredccted at multiple stages of the
remanufacturing process, and each finished praduespected and tested on equipment designedngate performance under operating
conditions. Finished products are either storeslinwarehouse facility or packaged for immediatersient. To maximize remanufacturing
efficiency, we store component parts ready formbde in our production facilities.

Our remanufacturing processes combine product ii@sniith similar configurations into dedicated fagtwork cells. This remanufacturing
process, known as “lean manufacturing,” replacednlore traditional assembly line approach we hadipusly utilized and eliminated a large
number of inventory moves and the need to trackniary movement through the remanufacturing proCesis lean manufacturing process
has been fully implemented at all of our producfiacilities. This lean manufacturing approach eeshis to significantly reduce the time it
takes to produce a finished product. We continuexfdore opportunities for improving efficienciesdaur remanufacturing process.

Offshore Remanufacturing. The majority of our remanufacturing operationsrawe conducted at our facilities in Mexico and Ma&y We
continue to maintain production of certain remantifeed units that require specialized service an@foid turnaround in our U.S. facilities. In
addition, we operate a shipping and receiving waweh and testing facility in Singapore and Chinaofar products.
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Used CoresThe majority of our Used Cores are obtained frost@mers using our core exchange program. The careage program
consists of the following steps:

e Our customers purchase from us a remanufacturedcubé sold to their consume

e Our customers offer their consumers a credit ttharge their used unit (Used Core) at the time ¢timsemer purchases a
remanufactured uni

e We, in turn, offer our customers a credit to seadh@se Used Cores. The credit reduces our accaagivable

Our customers are not obligated to send us alU8exl Cores exchanged by their consumers. We hataribally purchased Used Cores in the
open market from core brokers who specialize infgnd selling Used Cores to supplement the supiplysed Cores sent to us by our
customers. Although the open market is not a prmsaurce of Used Cores, it is a critical sourcenfi@eting our raw material demands.
Remanufacturing consumes, on average, more thabse Core for each remanufactured unit produgezksiot all Used Cores are reusable
The yield rates depend upon both the product astbmer specifications.

The price of a finished rotating electrical prodseold to our customers is generally comprised airmount for remanufacturing (“unit value”)
and an amount separately invoiced for the Rematwuieat Core included in the product (“Remanufactu@ede charge”). The Remanufactured
Core charge is equal to the credit we offer to aedtihe customer to use our core exchange progrdreeard back the Used Cores to us. The
ability to obtain Used Cores, materials and comptef the types and quantities we need is es$émibar ability to meet demand.

Purchased Finished Goods In addition to our remanufactured goods, we plsehase certain of our finished goods from varswspliers,
including several located in Asia. We perform digsmualification, product inspection and testagrording to our ISO TS 16949 certified
quality system to assure product quality levelse &so perform periodic site audits of our suppliemranufacturing facilities. Finished
products purchased are either stored in our wamghfacility or packaged for immediate shipment. &Meently use our existing Torrance,
California facility to store and distribute wheelthassemblies and bearings and new brake mastedesd.

Return Rights. Under our customer agreements and general indpisigfice, our customers are allowed stock adjustsnghen their

inventory of certain product lines exceeds the imory necessary to support sales to end-user carsuistock adjustment returns). Customers
have various contractual rights for stock adjustimeturns which are typically less than 5% of usitéd. In some instances, we allow a higher
level of returns in connection with a significamidate order. In addition, we allow customers tanegoods to us that their emder consume!
have returned to them. We allow this general raftveturn regardless of whether the returned iteatefective. We seek to limit the aggregate
of stock adjustment and other customer returngydireg general right of return, to less than 20%ioit sales. Stock adjustment returns do not
occur at any specific time during the year.

As is standard in the industry, we only acceptrresdrom on-going customers. If a customer ceasggydusiness with us, we have no further
obligation to accept additional product returnsrirtihat customer. Similarly, we accept product meftand grant appropriate credits from new
customers from the time the new customer relatipnishestablished. This obligation to accept resurom new customers does not result in
decreased liquidity or increased expenses sinoagnlyeaccept one returned product for each unit smltie new customer. In each case, the
return must be received by us in the original bbthe unit sold.

Sales, Marketing and Distribution. We have one of the widest varieties of the typprotiucts we sell available to the market, and weketa
and distribute our products throughout North Ameeri©ur products for the automotive retail chain ketire primarily sold under our
customers’ widely recognized private labels. Weehexpanded our sales efforts beyond automotivé obtains to include warehouse
distribution centers serving professional install&e ship our products from our facilities andfeehouses located in North America.
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We publish, for print and electronic distributiangcatalog with part numbers and applications farpraducts along with a detailed technical
glossary and informational database. We believevieamaintain one of the most extensive catalogmnduct identification systems available
to the market.

Employees

We had 2,362 employees and 2,270 employees at Nadrc2015 and 2014, respectively, in our operati@ighese employees at March 31,
2015, 286 were located in the U.S., 8 in Canad®6lin Mexico, and 262 in our Asian facilities. \Wad 237 administrative employees, of
which 29 were engaged in sales. A union represkfitisl employees at our Mexico facility. All othengloyees are non-union. We consider
our relations with our employees to be satisfactory

Governmental Regulation

Our operations are subject to federal, state aral laws and regulations governing, among othegthi emissions to air, discharge to waters,
and the generation, handling, storage, transponatieatment and disposal of waste and other mbtewe believe that our businesses,
operations and facilities have been and are bgiegabed in compliance in all material respects &jiplicable environmental and health and
safety laws and regulations, many of which provatesubstantial fines and criminal sanctions falafions. Potentially significant
expenditures, however, could be required in ordeomply with evolving environmental and health aaéety laws, regulations or
requirements that may be adopted or imposed ifutiee.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

While we believe the risk factors described belowvall the material risks currently facing our mesis, additional risks we are not presently
aware of or that we currently believe are immatemiay also impair our business operations. Oumioi@ condition or results of operations
could be materially and adversely impacted by thisgs, and the trading price of our common stoakid be adversely impacted by any of
these risks. In assessing these risks, you shéadd-efer to the other information included in mcarporated by reference into this Form 10-K,
including our consolidated financial statements ealdted notes thereto appearing elsewhere orpocated by reference in this Form 10-K.

Werely on a few large customers for a majority of our business, and the loss of any of these customers, significant changesin the prices,
marketing allowances or other important terms provided to any of these customers or adver se developments with respect to the financial
condition of these customers could reduce our net income and operating results.

Our net sales are concentrated among a small nuohkbenge customers. During fiscal 2015, salesuofour largest customers in the aggregat
represented 89% of our net sales, and sales taig@st customer represented 56% of our net salesare under ongoing pressure from our
major customers to offer lower prices, extendechpant terms, increased marketing allowances and tghas more favorable to these
customers because our sales to these customarsrarentrated, and the market in which we operaterg competitive. These customer
demands have put continued pressure on our opgmatingins and profitability, resulted in periodantract renegotiation to provide more
favorable prices and terms to these customersigniisantly increased our working capital needsatdition, this customer concentration
leaves us vulnerable to any adverse change inrtaedial condition of these customers. The losara significant decline in sales to any of
these customers could adversely affect our businesslts of operations and financial condition.

There have been and may be additional claims filed against usin connection with the bankruptcy proceedings involving the Fenco Entities.

There have been and may be additional claims &itgadnst us by the trustee and some or all of thditors in connection with the bankruptcy
proceedings involving the Fenco Entities.

In February 2015, M&T Bank filed a complaint in tBeperior Court for the State of California, Couafyt os Angeles, against us and some o
our executives alleging negligent misrepresentatimmious interference with contractual relatioipsitonspiracy, unjust enrichment,
conversion, declaratory judgment/alter ego, bredatontract and breach of the covenant of goodh faitd fair dealing. The plaintiff is seeking
unspecified damages, punitive damages, attornegs' &nd other relief.

In addition, the trustee has notified us and oguiance companies that the trustee may have ctamagongful acts, breach of fiduciary duty,
civil conspiracy, aiding and abetting, negligennd aonversion, but has not filed any litigatioritas time.

We are also a defendant in the following cases:ioi@ntario Superior Court and another in the Bapkey Court for the District of Delaware.
In each case the plaintiffs’ claim that we arelgaffor amounts due from the Fenco Entities to teeiployees under applicable U.S. and
Canadian law. We are in negotiations with respetihése cases, although there can be no assurtetieanthe cases will settle and, if they
settle, on what terms. In this connection, we testablished a reserve of $1,000,000, which has ineemporated into the financial statements
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015.

Any litigation to determine the validity of theskims, regardless of its merit or resolution, maycbstly and time consuming and divert the

efforts and attention of our management from itsifiess strategy. Any adverse judgment or settletnens of these claims could also resu
significant additional expense.
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Our offshore remanufacturing and logistic activities expose usto increased political and economic risks and place a greater burden on
management to achieve quality standards.

Our overseas operations, especially our operatiolgexico, increase our exposure to political, ériad or economic instability in the host
countries and to currency fluctuations. Risks aleerent in international operations, including:

. exchange controls and currency restrictions;

. currency fluctuations and devaluations;

. changes in local economic conditions;

. repatriation restrictions (including the impositionincrease of withholding and other taxes on temces and other payments by
foreign subsidiaries

. global sovereign uncertainty and hyperinflatiorcéntain foreign countries;

. laws and regulations relating to export and impestrictions;

. exposure to government actions; and

. exposure to local political or social unrest inghgdresultant acts of war, terrorism or similar ietge

These and other factors may have a material adeéfieset on our offshore activities and on our basB) results of operations and financial
condition. Our overall success as a businessndispén part, upon our ability to manage our fonedgerations. We may not continue to
succeed in developing and implementing policiessirategies that are effective in each locationre/ee do business, and failure to do so
could materially and adversely impact our businessylts of operations and financial condition.

Interruptions or delays in obtaining component parts could impair our business and adversely affect our operating results.

In our remanufacturing processes, we obtain Used<Zprimarily through the core exchange prograth wir customers, and component g
from third-party manufacturers. We generally pusghapproximately 120% of our Used Cores from core brokers. Histoljcéihe Used Cor
returned from customers together with purchasems frore brokers have provided us with an adequaelpof Used Cores. If there was a
significant disruption in the supply of Used Comnebether as a result of increased Used Core atiquisiby existing or new competitors or
otherwise, our operating activities could be matiriand adversely impacted. In addition, a nunmidfehe other components used in the
remanufacturing process are available from a vierigdd number of suppliers. We are, as a resulhenable to any disruption in component
supply, and any meaningful disruption in this sypgbuld materially and adversely impact our op&gtiesults.

Increases in the market prices of key component raw materials could increase the cost of our products and negatively impact our
profitability.

In light of the continuous pressure on pricing whice have experienced from our large customersnasenot be able to recoup the higher
costs of our products due to changes in the patesw materials, particularly aluminum and coppewe are unable to recover a substantial
portion of our raw materials from Used Cores reddrto us by our customers through the core excharaggram, the prices of Used Cores that
we purchase may reflect the impact of changesarctst of raw materials. However, we are unabtietermine what adverse impact, if any,
sustained raw material price increases may hawaioproduct costs or profitability.

Substantial and potentially increasing competition could reduce our market share and significantly harm our financial performance.

While we believe we are well-positioned in the aibtive aftermarket, this market is very competitiveaddition, other overseas
manufacturers, particularly those located in Chara,increasing their operations and could becosigraficant competitive force in the future.
We may not be successful competing against othrapaaies, some of which are larger than us and aater financial and other resource
their disposal. Increased competition could puitamtthl pressure on us to reduce prices or takerahtions which may have an adverse effec
on our operating results.

11
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Our financial results are affected by automotive partsfailureratesthat are outside of our control.

Our operating results are affected over the long t&y automotive parts failure rates. These faihates are impacted by a number of factors
outside of our control, including, the age of car®duct designs that have resulted in greateabidiy, the number of miles driven by
consumers, and the average age of vehicles omd#ae A reduction in the failure rates of automofieets would adversely affect our sales anc
profitability.

Our operating results may continue to fluctuate significantly.

We have experienced significant variations in ourual and quarterly results of operations. Thasedhtions have resulted from many fact
including shifts in the demand and pricing for pooducts, general economic conditions, includingnges in prevailing interest rates, and the
introduction of new products. Our gross profit gerage fluctuates due to numerous factors, soméich are outside of our control. These
factors include the timing and level of marketitigw@ances provided to our customers, actual salesg the relevant period, pricing
strategies, the mix of products sold during a répgperiod, and general market and competitivedié@ms. We also incur allowances,
accruals, charges and other expenses that ditfer freriod to period based on changes in our busimédsch causes our operating income and
net income to fluctuate.

Our lenders may not waive future defaults under our credit agreements.

Over the past several years, we have violated dauof the financial and other covenants containexlr credit agreements with a syndicate
of lenders, Cerberus Business Finance, LLC, astenll agent, and PNC Bank, National Associatisrgdministrative agent. Our most recent
waiver was in June 2013. If we fail to meet thafinial covenants or the other obligations set forthur credit agreements in the future, there
is no assurance that our lenders will waive anyh slefaults. If obtained, any such waiver may impgigeificant costs or covenants on us.

Our level of indebtedness and the terms of our indebtedness could adversely affect our business and liquidity position.

As of March 31, 2015, we had $80,101,000 of net debder our credit agreement and cash on handigp2$6,000. Our indebtedness may
increase substantially from time to time for vagoeasons, including fluctuations in operating itssmarketing allowances provided to
customers, Remanufactured Core inventory purchiasesour customers, capital expenditures and ptessitjuisitions. Our indebtedness
could materially affect our business because fiprion of our cash flow must be used to servidet dather than finance our operations, (ii) it
may eventually impair our ability to obtain finangiin the future, and (iii) it may reduce our fleiity to respond to changes in business and
economic conditions or take advantage of businppsrtunities that may arise.

Our stock price may be volatile and could decline substantially.

Our stock price has fluctuated from $21.79 to $3@ldring fiscal 2015. It may decline substantiatya result of developments in our busines:
the volatile nature of the stock market, and ofhetors beyond our control. The stock market hasnftime to time, experienced extreme price
and volume fluctuations. Many factors may causentheket price for our common stock to decline, udohg (i) our operating results failing to
meet the expectations of securities analysts @sitors in any quarter, (i) downward revisionséoigities analysts’ estimates, (iii) market
perceptions concerning our future earnings prospéed public or private sales of a substantiahitver of shares of our common stock, and (v
adverse changes in general market conditions ovogsiz trends.
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Unfavorable currency exchange rate fluctuations could adversely affect us.

We are exposed to market risk from material movamenforeign exchange rates between the U.S. dafid the currencies of the foreign
countries in which we operate. In fiscal 2015, appnately 12% of our total expenses were in curieother than the U.S. dollar. As a result
of our extensive operations in Mexico, our primesk relates to changes in the rates between tBeddllar and the Mexican peso. To mitig
this currency risk, we enter into forward foreigttlkeange contracts to exchange U.S. dollars for béaxpesos. We also enter into forward
foreign exchange contracts to exchange U.S. ddar€hinese yuan in order to mitigate risk relate@dur purchases and payments to our
Chinese vendors. The extent to which we use fonf@algn exchange contracts is periodically revigwelight of our estimate of market
conditions and the terms and length of anticipa¢eglirements. The use of derivative financial imstents allows us to reduce our exposure tc
the risk that the eventual net cash outflow resglfrom funding the expenses of the foreign openatiwill be materially affected by change:
the exchange rates. We do not engage in curreragukggion or hold or issue financial instrumentstfading purposes. These contracts
generally expire in a year or less. Any changd@fair value of foreign exchange contracts is anted for as an increase or decrease to
general and administrative expenses in currenbg@earnings.

We may continue to make strategic acquisitions of other companies or businesses and these acquisitions introduce significant risks and
uncertainties, including risksrelated to integrating the acquired businesses and achieving benefits from the acquisitions.

In order to position ourselves to take advantaggrofvth opportunities, we have made, and may coatip make, strategic acquisitions that
involve significant risks and uncertainties. Theasks and uncertainties include:

. the difficulty in integrating newly-acquired busgses and operations in an efficient and effectisamer;

. the challenges in achieving strategic objectivest savings and other benefits from acquisitions;

. the potential loss of key employees of the acquinesinesses;

. the risk of diverting the attention of senior magagnt from our operations;

. risks associated with integrating financial repagtand internal control systems;

. difficulties in expanding information technologyssgms and other business processes to accommbdateduired businesses; and
. future impairments of any goodwill of an acquiragsimess.

Any of the foregoing, or a combination of them, lcbcause us to incur additional expenses, distrectagement and materially and adversely
impact our business, financial condition, resuftefgerations or liquidity.

Weaknessin conditionsin the global credit markets and macroeconomic factors could adversely affect our financial condition and results
of operations.

Any weakness in the credit markets could resusigmificant constraints on liquidity and availabyjilof borrowing terms from lenders and
accounts payable with vendors. Modest economic gréawmost major industrial countries in the woaldd uncertain prospects for continued
growth threaten to cause further tightening ofdteslit markets, more stringent lending standardstanms, and higher interest rates. The
persistence of these conditions could have a nahtttiverse effect on our borrowings and the aviithafterms and cost of such borrowings.
addition, deterioration in the U.S. economy coulatenially and adversely impact our operating rasult
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Our reliance on foreign suppliersfor some of the automotive parts we sell to our customers or included in our products presentsrisksto our
business.

A significant portion of automotive parts and compnts we use in our remanufacturing process arertexh from suppliers located outside
U.S., including various countries in Asia. As auleswve are subject to various risks of doing basmin foreign markets and importing prodi
from abroad, such as:

° significant delays in the delivery of cargo dugtwt security consideration

imposition of duties, taxes, tariffs or other ches@n imports

imposition of new legislation relating to impodatas or other restrictions that may limit the ditgrof our product that may be
imported into the U.S. from countries or regionsevéwe do busines

° financial or political instability in any of the aatries in which our product is manufactur

° potential recalls or cancellations of orders foy product that does not meet our quality standz

° disruption of imports by labor disputes or strilesl local business practict

° political or military conflict involving the U.Swhich could cause a delay in the transportatioouwfproducts and an increase in
transportation cost:

° heightened terrorism security concerns, whichasubject imported goods to additional, more freque more thorough inspections,
leading to delays in deliveries or impoundment@dds for extended perioc

° natural disasters, disease epidemics and headttedetoncerns, which could result in closed faemnieduced workforces, scarcity of
raw materials and scrutiny or embargoing of goadsipced in infected aree

° inability of our no1-U.S. suppliers to obtain adequate credit or adégsislity to finance their operations; a

° our ability to enforce any agreements with our foresgippliers.

Any of the foregoing factors, or a combinationteémn, could increase the cost or reduce the suggyoducts available to us and materially
and adversely impact our business, financial camdiresults of operations or liquidity.

In addition, because we depend on independent phiries to manufacture a significant portion of wheel hub and other purchased finished
goods, we cannot be certain that we will not exgreré operational difficulties with such manufactsysuch as reductions in the availability of
production capacity, errors in complying with meanHtise specifications, insufficient quality consraind failure to meet production deadlines
or increases in manufacturing costs.

Our failure to implement and maintain effective internal control over financial reporting could result in material misstatementsin our
financial statements.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“Sa¥quires our management to assess the effeedgeaf our internal control over
financial reporting at the end of each fiscal yaad certify whether or not internal control overdincial reporting is effective. Our independen
accountants are also required to express an opivithrrespect to the effectiveness of our intemaitrols. In the past we have identified
material weaknesses in our internal control oveairitial reporting in our discontinued subsidiavye cannot assure that additional significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses in our intezoatrol over financial reporting will not be idéied in the future. Any failure to maintain or
implement new or improved internal controls, or difficulties we encounter in their implementati@ould result in significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses, cause us to fail to meetenogic reporting obligations (which may resulboiar failure to maintain the listing standards
for our common stock) or result in material misstaénts in our financial statements. Any such faitould also adversely affect the results o
periodic management evaluations and annual aualitestation reports regarding the effectivenessuofinternal control over financial
reporting required under SOX.
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An increasein the cost or a disruption in the flow of our imported products may significantly decrease our sales and profits.

Merchandise manufactured offshore represents &isam portion of our total product purchases. i8rdption in the shipping or cost of such
merchandise may significantly decrease our saldgeafits. In addition, if imported merchandise be@s more expensive or unavailable, the
transition to alternative sources may not occuimire to meet our demands. Merchandise from altermaburces may also be of lesser quality
and more expensive than those we currently impisks associated with our reliance on imported memdise include disruptions in the
shipping and importation or increase in the cobtmported products. For example, common risks imgy

. raw material shortages;

. work stoppages;

. strikes and political unrest;

. problems with oceanic shipping, including shippammtainer shortages;

. increased customs inspections of import shipmentgher factors causing delays in shipments;
. economic crises;

. international disputes and wars;

. loss of “most favored nation” trading status by theS. in relations to a particular foreign country
. import duties;

. import quotas and other trade sanctions; and

. increases in shipping rates.

Products manufactured overseas and imported irttJi8. and other countries are subject to impaitintions and duties.

If our technology and telecommunications systems were to fail, or we were not able to successfully anticipate, invest in or adopt
technological advancesin our industry, it could have an adverse effect on our operations.

We rely on computer and telecommunications systereemmunicate with our customers and vendors astbge our business. The
temporary or permanent loss of our computer argté@hmunications equipment and software systenmsyghrcasualty, operating
malfunction, software virus or service providefddeg, could disrupt our operations. In additionr future growth may require additional
investment in our systems to keep up with techrioldgdvances in our industry. If we are not a@blévest in or adopt changes to our
systems, or such upgrades take longer or cost thareanticipated, our business, financial conditiad operating results may be adversely
affected.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 2.  Properties

The following table sets forth the location, tygdarility, square footage and ownership interastach of our facilities.

Approx. Leased
Square or
Location Type of Facility Feet Owned Expiration
Torrance, CA Remanufacturing, Warehouse, Administrati 231,00 Leased March 2022
and Office
Tijuana, Mexico (1 Remanufacturing, Warehouse, and Of 311,0C Leasec October 201¢
Singapore & Malaysic Remanufacturing, Warehouse, and Office 65,00 Leased Various through November
2017
Shanghai, Chin Warehouse and Offic 27,00 Leasec March 201€

(1) We have the option to extend the lease term foadditional 3-day periods

We believe the above mentioned facilities are sigfit to satisfy our foreseeable warehousing, peton, distribution and administrative offi
space requirements for our current operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

There have been and may be additional claims &itgdnst us by the trustee and some or all of thditors in connection with the bankruptcy
proceedings involving the Fenco Entities.

In February 2015, M&T Bank filed a complaint in tBeperior Court for the State of California, Couafyt os Angeles, against us and some o
our executives alleging negligent misrepresentatimmious interference with contractual relatioipsitonspiracy, unjust enrichment,
conversion, declaratory judgment/alter ego, bredatontract and breach of the covenant of goodh faitd fair dealing. The plaintiff is seeking
unspecified damages, punitive damages, attornegs' &nd other relief.

In addition, the trustee has notified us and oguiance companies that the trustee may have ctamagongful acts, breach of fiduciary duty,
civil conspiracy, aiding and abetting, negligennd aonversion, but has not filed any litigatiortas time.

We are also a defendant in the following cases:ioi@ntario Superior Court and another in the Bapkey Court for the District of Delaware.
In each case the plaintiffs’ claim that we arelgafor amounts due from the Fenco Entities to teeiployees under applicable U.S. and
Canadian law. We are in negotiations with respetihése cases, although there can be no assurhetieenthe cases will settle and, if they
settle, on what terms. In this connection, we testablished a reserve of $1,000,000, which has ineemporated into the financial statements
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015.

Any litigation to determine the validity of theskiens involving the Fenco Entities, regardlesst®inerit or resolution, may be costly and time
consuming and divert the efforts and attentionwfroanagement from their business strategy. Angi@gvjudgment or settlement by us of
these claims could also result in significant aiddil expense.

We are also subject to various other lawsuits daichs in the normal course of business. Managenhees not believe that the outcome of
these other matters will have a material adverfse®ebdn its financial position or future resultsogferations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable
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PART II
ltem 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securitie

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Globak8eMarket under the trading symbol MPAA. The faling table sets forth the high
and low sale prices for our common stock duringai015 and 2014.

Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014
High Low High Low
1st Quarte $ 29.2¢ % 221 $ 9.6C $ 5.7t
2nd Quarter $ 31.0z $ 21.7¢ % 129 $ 8.27
3rd Quartel $ 36.4: % 23.3C $ 19.4C $ 12.3¢
4th Quartel $ 3165 $ 221z % 2727 $ 18.51

As of June 8, 2015, there were 17,974,598 sharesroimon stock outstanding held by 19 holders dfmetcWe have never declared or paid
dividends on our common stock. The declarationngfarospective dividends is at the discretion ef Board of Directors and will be
dependent upon sufficient earnings, capital requénets and financial position, general economic e, state law requirements and other
relevant factors. Additionally, our agreement wotlr lenders prohibits the payment of dividends ggxstock dividends, without the lenders’
prior consent.

Share Repurchase Program

In March 2010, our Board of Directors authorizeshare repurchase program of up to $5,000,000 obwistanding common stock from time
to time in the open market and in private transactiat prices deemed appropriate by managemenproljeam does not have an expiration
date. Under this program, we repurchased and deditetal of 67,347 shares at a total cost of apprately $389,000 during fiscal 2013. We
did not repurchase any outstanding common stodkgldiscal 2015 and 2014.

Public Offering of Common Stock

During fiscal 2014, we filed a universal shelf gation statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-19%%@%ch was declared effective on May 9,
2014, for the proposed offering from time to tinfaup to $100,000,000 of our securities, includimgnenon stock, preferred stock, and debt
securities. The securities may be offered by us ftime to time at amounts, prices, interest raad, other terms to be determined at the tin
the offering.

In September 2014, we completed a public offerihg, 860,000 shares of our common stock at a pfid26.00 per sharewhich included the
exercise in full by the underwriters of their optito purchase up to 360,000 additional shares mfton stock. We received aggregate gross
proceeds of $71,760,000 and net proceeds of $6®0007 &fter expenses. We used the net proceedfiing capital and other general
corporate purposes.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes our equity compeinsaplans as of March 31, 2015:

Number of securities

Number of securities tc remaining available for
be issued upon Weighted-average  future issuance under

exercise of outstandin exercise price of equity compensation plan

options, warrants and  outstanding options (excluding securities
Plan Category rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by securitidédens 1,389,25(1) $ 9.97 1,489,62/(2)
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechaotgers N/A N/A N/A
Total 1,389,25. $ 9.97 1,489,62!

(@) Consists of options issued pursuant to our 2003jtBerm Incentive Plan, 2004 Non-Employee Directimc® Option Plan, and Second
Amended and Restated 2010 Incentive Award F

@ Consists of shares available for issuance undeBecond Amended and Restated 2010 Incentive Awlarddhd 2014 Non-Employee
Director Incentive Award Plat
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative retarholders of our common stock for the five yeardieg March 31, 2015 with the
NASDAQ Composite Index and the Zacks Retail and \&$ede Auto Parts Index. The comparison assume3 %46 invested at the close
business on March 31, 2010 in our common stockimedch of the comparison groups, and assumesastiment of dividends.

Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Total Return
Assumes Initial Investment of $100
March 2015

Compan=on of5 Year Cumulative Total Retum
Assumes Initial Investment of 3100
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Item 6. Selected Financial Date

The following selected historical consolidated fingl information for the periods indicated beloastbeen derived from and should be read i
conjunction with our consolidated financial statemseand related notes thereto.

Our selected income statement data below represantsontinuing operations and excludes the resfiftise discontinued subsidiary
subsequent to its acquisition in May 2011. See Saiéthe notes to consolidated financial statement

Income Statement Date 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Net sales $301,711,00 $258,669,00 $213,151,00 $178,551,00 $161,285,00
Operating incom 33,586,00 32,104,00 34,314,00 26,574,00 25,384,00
Income from continuing operatior 11,453,00 6,482,001 14,558,00 14,348,00 12,220,00
Basic net income per share from continuing opemnatio $ 0.6¢ $ 0.4t $ 1.01 $ 115§ 1.01
Diluted net income per share from continuing operst $ 0.65 $ 04z $ 1.01 $ 1.1 $ 0.9¢

March 31,

Balance Sheet Dat: 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Total asset $421,760,00 $318,853,00 $364,969,00 $501,898,00 $191,865,00
Working capital (1) 66,624,00 22,077,00 33,722,00 15,311,00 1,395,00!
Revolving loar - 10,000,00 - - -
Term loan 80,101,00 87,277,00 81,905,00 75,000,00 7,500,00!
Capital lease obligatior 528,00( 318,00 214,00( 463,00( 834,00
Other long term liabilitie: 43,725,00 26,340,00 15,464,00 10,526,00 9,984,00!
Shareholder equity (deficit) $190,203,00 $109,636,00 $ (3,514,00) $ 73,619,000 $117,177,00

@ The calculation of working capital excludes the a@opof the discontinued subsidia
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ltem 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations
Disclosure Regarding Private Securities LitigatiorReform Act of 1995

This report contains certain forward-looking stagems with respect to our future performance thatlive risks and uncertainties. Various
factors could cause actual results to differ matigrfrom those projected in such statements. THasers include, but are not limited to: the
bankruptcy of the Fenco Entities and related claamd contingent liabilities, concentration of sales small number of customers, changes ir
the financial condition of or our relationship wihy of our major customers, the increasing cust@ressure for lower prices and more
favorable payment and other terms, lower revertgs anticipated from new and existing contraces,niereasing demands on our working
capital, the significant strain on working cap#akociated with large inventory purchases fromatosts, any meaningful difference between
expected production needs and ultimate sales tougiomers, our ability to obtain any additionakficing we may seek or require, our ability
to achieve positive cash flows from operationseptal future changes in our previously reportesiitts as a result of the identification and
correction of errors in our accounting policiepoocedures or the potential material weaknessesriinternal controls over financial reporti
our failure to meet the financial covenants ordtteer obligations set forth in our credit agreensrd the lenders’ refusal to waive any such
defaults, increases in interest rates, the impllcigh gasoline prices, consumer preferences andrgeeconomic conditions, increased
competition in the automotive parts industry inghgdincreased competition from Chinese and othishofe manufacturers, difficulty in
obtaining Used Cores and component parts or inescsiasthe costs of those parts, political, crimimagéconomic instability in any of the forei
countries where we conduct operations, currenchiaxge fluctuations, unforeseen increases in opgratists, and other factors discussed
herein and in our other filings with the SEC.

Management Overview

We are a leading manufacturer, remanufacturerdastdbutor of aftermarket automotive parts for imnppand domestic cars, light trucks, heavy
duty, agricultural and industrial applications. &l our products predominantly in North Americahe largest auto parts retail and traditiona
warehouse chains and to major automobile manufarstfior both their aftermarket programs and thé&SQrograms. Our products include (i)
rotating electrical products such as alternatotssarters, (ii) wheel hub assemblies and bearangs (i) new brake master cylinders.

The current population of vehicles in the U.S.ppr@ximately 251 million and the average age o$éheehicles is approximately 11.5 years.
While the aged vehicle population is favorable todailes driven continues to fluctuate primarilysled on fuel prices. We believeethand an
replacement rates for aftermarket automotive ggeterally increase with the age of vehicles anteases in miles driven.

The aftermarket for automobile parts is divideaitwo markets. The first market is the DIY markehich is generally serviced by the large
retail chain outlets. Consumers who purchase frants the DIY channel generally install parts intteitr vehicles themselves. In most cases,
this is a less expensive alternative than haviegdipair performed by a professional installer. 3&eond market is the professional installer
market, commonly known as the DIFM market. This keais serviced by the traditional warehouse distors, the dealer networks, and the
commercial divisions of retail chains. Generallhye tonsumer in this channel is a professional frastaller. Our products are distributed to
both the DIY and DIFM markets.

Pursuant to the guidance provided under the FASB 8 segment reporting, we have determined thabparating segments meet the crit
for aggregation and accordingly we have one reptatsegment for purposes of recording and repodingdinancial results.
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Discontinued Operation and Deconsolidation of Fenco

In May 2011, we purchased (i) all of the outstagdiquity of FAPL, (ii) all of the outstanding equif Introcan, and (iii) 1% of the
outstanding equity of Fapco (collectively, “Fen@oid also referred to herein as the “discontinuédigliary”). Since FAPL owned 99% of
Fapco prior to these acquisitions, we owned 100%agfico.

Between May 2011 and its bankruptcy in June 20&8¢cB had been attempting to turn around its busiré@wvever, revenues generated by its
undercar product line segment were not sufficierdrtable Fenco to meet its operating expensesthedidse implement its undercar product
line turnaround plan. Fenco had recurring operdtisges since the date of acquisition and had &imgcapital and equity deficiency.

In May 2013, FAPL appointed a new board of indegendlirectors, hired an independent chief restrirgjuofficer and all its previously
existing officers resigned from FAPL. As a resultass of control of Fenco, we deconsolidated thsets and liabilities of Fenco from our
consolidated financial statements effective MayZ11,3. On June 10, 2013, the Fenco Entities filedlantary petition for relief under the
Bankruptcy Code in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court fa bBistrict of Delaware. As a result of the lossohtrol of Fenco and the subsequent filing
of the petition for relief under the Bankruptcy @p&enco had effectively been disposed of and @eaai and do not retain any continuing
involvement in the operations of Fenco (see NadétBe notes to consolidated financial statemenifgg may be subject to claims relating to
the bankruptcy, as described in Item 3 — Legal &dngs.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemientade the accounts of Motorcar Parts of Amerina, and its wholly owned subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been etedind/e have classified Fenco operations as disegd operations |
the consolidated financial statements as a re$tiieo~enco Entities voluntary petition for religider the Bankruptcy Code in the U.S.
Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware oméul0, 2013. Correspondingly, reclassificationE@fco’s assets, liabilities, and operations
for prior year periods to discontinued operatioagehbeen made.

Critical Accounting Policies

We prepare our consolidated financial statemendés@ordance with generally accepted accountingiplies, or GAAP, in the United States.
Our significant accounting policies are discussedatail below and in Note 2 of the notes to cadstéd financial statements.

In preparing our consolidated financial statementspuse estimates and assumptions for matteratbabherently uncertain. We base our
estimates on historical experiences and reasomablemptions. Our use of estimates and assumpffi@es the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities and the amount and timing of revenued axpenses we recognize for and during the reygpperiod. Actual results may differ from
our estimates.

Our remanufacturing operations require that we medused Cores, a necessary raw material, frontoestomers and offer our customers
marketing and other allowances that impact reveagegnition. These elements of our business gaeetd accounting issues that are more
complex than many businesses our size or largexddiition, the relevant accounting standards asukis continue to evolve.

Inventory

Nor-core Inventory

Non-core inventory is comprised of (i) non-core rawtenils, (ii) the non-core value of work in proce@s) the non-core value of
remanufactured finished goods, and (iv) purchaseshfed goods. Used Cores, the Used Core valu®d in process and the Remanufacture

Core portion of finished goods are classified agjlterm core inventory as described below undec#pion “Long-term Core Inventory.”
Used Cores are a source of raw materials useairethanufacturing of our rotating electrical praguc
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Non-core inventory is stated at the lower of cost arket. The cost of non-core remanufactured invgrapproximates average historical
purchase prices paid for raw materials, and isdapen the direct costs of material and an allocadif labor and variable and fixed overhead
costs. The cost of purchased finished goods invermpproximates average historical purchase ppeés, and an allocation of fixed overhead
costs. The cost of non-core inventory is evaluatddast quarterly during the fiscal year and adjiisis necessary to reflect current lower of
cost or market levels. These adjustments are ditedhfior individual items of inventory within eaofithe three classifications of non-core
inventory as follows:

e Nonr-core raw materials are recorded at average cbéthwvis based on the actual purchase price of raterials on hand. The average
cost is updated quarterly. This average cost id irsthe inventory costing process and is the Hasiallocation of materials to finished
goods during the production proce

e Non-core work in process is in various stages of pctida and is valued at the average cost of maseisaled to the open work orders.
Historically, nor-core work in process inventory has not been matesiapared to the total n-core inventory balanc

e The cost of remanufactured finished goods inclubesaverage cost of non-core raw materials andailns of labor and variable and
fixed overhead. The allocations of labor and vdeand fixed overhead costs are determined baséitecaverage actual use of the
production facilities over the prior twelve montlikich approximates normal capacity. This method@nés the distortion in allocated
labor and overhead costs that would occur durimgtgreriods of abnormally low or high production.dddition, we exclude certain
unallocated overhead such as severance costscatiysi facility overhead costs, and spoilage fromdalculation and expense these
unallocated overhead as period costs. During fi28ab there was no unallocated overhead chargedtlyito cost of sales due to the
usage of our U.S. facilities for wheel hub prodwatsl new brake master cylinder products. For gwafiyears ended March 31, 2014
and 2013, costs of approximately $1,070,000, an8i6#1000, respectively, were considered unallocatethead charged directly to
cost of sales and thus excluded from the calculaifacost for remanufactured finished goc

We record an allowance for potentially excess argblete inventory based upon recent sales hidteeyquantity of inventory on-hand, and a
forecast of potential use of the inventory. We gaidally review inventory to identify excess quéies and part numbers that are experienc
reduction in demand. Any part numbers with quaeitdentified during this process are reserve@foates based upon management’s
judgment, historical rates, and consideration afsfile scrap and liquidation values which may bhkigls as 100% of cost if no liquidatic
market exists for the part.

The quantity thresholds and reserve rates are ctilgeand are based on management’s judgment ansll&dge of current and projected
industry demand. The reserve estimates may, therdfe revised if there are changes in the ovaratket for our products or market changes
that in management’s judgment, impact our abititge¢ll or liquidate potentially excess or obsolatentory. We recorded $2,675,000 and
$2,708,000 for excess and obsolete inventory atMal, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

We record vendor discounts as reductions of invéegdhat are recognized as reductions to costlesas the inventories are sold.

Inventory Unreturnes

Inventory unreturned represents our estimate, basdstorical data and prospective informatiorvted directly by the customer, of finished
goods shipped to customers that we expect to hened, under our general right of return policyeathe balance sheet date. Because all cor
are classified separately as long-term assetsnvleatory unreturned balance includes only the dddet value of a finished good. The return
rate is calculated based on expected returns witiéimormal operating cycle of one year. As suté related amounts are classified in current
assets.

Inventory unreturned is valued in the same mans@ua finished goods inventory.
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Longterm Core Inventory

Long-term core inventory consists of:
e Used Cores purchased from core brokers and hétémtory at our facilities
e Used Cores returned by our customers and heldsantory at our facilities

e Used Cores returned by end-users to customersobyehreturned to us which are classified as Rerf@tured Cores until they are
physically received by u

e Remanufactured Cores held in finished goods invgrabour facilities; an

e Remanufactured Cores held at customer locatioaspast of the finished goods sold to the custoifrer these Remanufactured Cores,
we expect the finished good containing the Remantufad Core to be returned under our general a§hdturn policy or a similar Used
Core to be returned to us by the customer, in eash, for credi

Long-term core inventory is recorded at averag®hisal purchase prices determined based on aptuahases of inventory on hand. The cost
and market value of Used Cores for which sufficietent purchases have occurred are deemed theasatme purchase price for purchases
that are made in arm’s length transactions.

Long-term core inventory recorded at average hicdbpurchase prices is primarily made up of UsedeS for newer products related to more
recent automobile models or products for whichehsra less liquid market. We must purchase thesel (Cores from core brokers because ol
customers do not have a sufficient supply of thesger Used Cores available for the core exchanggram.

Used Cores obtained in core broker transactionsalued based on average purchase price. The avpurghase price of Used Cores for ir
recent automobile models is retained as the coshése Used Cores in subsequent periods evemr astince of these Used Cores shifts to oul
core exchange program.

Long-term core inventory is recorded at the lower oft cmsnarket value. In the absence of sufficienere@urchases, we use core broker
lists to assess whether Used Core cost exceeds@isednarket value on an item by item basis. Tivaguy reason for the insufficient recent
purchases is that we obtain most of our Used Guenitory from the customer core exchange program.

We classify all of our core inventories as long¥terssets. The determination of the long-term diaasion is based on our view that the value
of the cores is not consumed or realized in casimglour normal operating cycle, which is one yeamost of the cores recorded in invent
According to guidance provided under the FASB AB@rent assets are defined as “assets or resocoogsonly identified as those which are
reasonably expected to be realized in cash oraatdnsumed during the normal operating cycle eflibisiness.” We do not believe that core
inventories, which we classify as long-term, arestoned because the credits issued upon the rdtlsed Cores offset the amounts invoiced
when the Remanufactured Cores included in finigimatls were sold. We do not expect the core invasgoo be consumed, and thus we do
not expect to realize cash, until our relationshiih a customer ends, a possibility that we considmote based on existing long-term
customer agreements and historical experience.

However, historically for a portion of finished gi®sold, our customer will not send us a Used @oobtain the credit we offer under our ¢
exchange program. Therefore, based on our hist@#tinate, we derecognize the core value for tfiafghed goods upon sale, as we believe
they have been consumed and we have realized cash.

We realize cash for only the core exchange progtfaontfall. This shortfall represents the historidéference between the number of finished
goods shipped to customers and the number of UsessCeturned to us by customers. We do not readigh for the remaining portion of the
cores because the credits issued upon the retlwseaaf Cores offset the amounts invoiced when theadRefactured Cores included in finished
goods were sold. We do not expect to realize caisthé remaining portion of these cores until @lationship with a customer ends, a
possibility that we consider remote based on exdgstbng-term customer agreements and historicatéempce.
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For these reasons, we concluded that it is moreogpgte to classify core inventory as long-terreeds.
Long-term Core Inventory Deposit

The long-term core inventory deposit account regmmessthe value of Remanufactured Cores we havéasied from customers, which are helc
by the customers and remain on the customers’ gesmirhe purchase is made through the issuancedifscagainst that customer’s
receivables either on a one time basis or ovegased-upon period. The credits against the custsmexeivable are based upon the
Remanufactured Core purchase price previously kstted with the customer. At the same time, we mé¢loe longterm core inventory depo:
for the Remanufactured Cores purchased at its des#rmined as noted under Long-term Core Invenfmg long-term core inventory deposit
is stated at the lower of cost or market. The sstablished at the time of the transaction basetthe then current cost, determined as noted
under Long-term Core Inventory. The difference leswthe credit granted and the cost of the long-tare inventory deposit is treated as a
sales allowance reducing revenue. When the pursteasemade over an agreed-upon period, the longdere inventory deposit is recorded a
the same time the credit is issued to the custdoneéhe purchase of the Remanufactured Cores.

At least annually, and as often as quarterly, reti@ations and confirmations are performed to deiee that the number of Remanufactured
Cores purchased, but retained at the customeiidosaremains sufficient to support the amountsmed in the long-term core inventory
deposit account. At the same time, the mix of Rarfatured Cores is reviewed to determine that dggegate value of Remanufactured Ci
in the account has not changed during the repopé@rgpd. We evaluate the cost of Remanufacture@£supporting the aggregate long-term
core inventory deposit account each quarter. [fdeatify any permanent reduction in either the nemdr the aggregate value of the
Remanufactured Core inventory mix held at the acustdocation, we will record a reduction in the determ core inventory deposit account
during that period.

Revenue Recognition
We recognize revenue when our performance is cammead all of the following criteria have been met

e Persuasive evidence of an arrangement e:

e Delivery has occurred or services have been redd

e The selle’'s price to the buyer is fixed or determinable,

e Collectability is reasonably assure
For products shipped free-on-board (“FOB”) shippiregnt, revenue is recognized on the date of shippnfer products shipped FOB
destination, revenues are recognized on the egtthtatactual date of delivery. We include shippang handling charges in the gross invoice
price to customers and classify the total amoume@snue. Shipping and handling costs are recdrdedst of sales.
Revenue Recognition; Mof-Core-Value Basis
The price of a finished rotating electrical prodseold to customers is generally comprised of séplgranvoiced amounts for the
Remanufactured Core included in the product (“Reaufestured Core value”) and the unit value. The ualte is recorded as revenue based ©
our then current price list, net of applicable disats and allowances. Based on our experiencesambuél arrangements with customers and
inventory management practices, a significant portf the remanufactured automobile parts we eadlstomers are replaced by similar Usec
Cores sent back for credit by customers under otg exchange program. In accordance with our nebod-value revenue recognition policy,

we do not recognize the Remanufactured Core vauewenue when the finished products are sold. #vemlly limit the number of Used
Cores sent back under the core exchange progréme ttumber of similar Remanufactured Cores preWatspped to each customer.
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Revenue Recogniti— Core Revenue

Full price Remanufactured Cordhen we ship a rotating electrical product, we ingaertain customers for the Remanufactured Calgev
portion of the product at the full RemanufactureateCsales price but do not recognize revenue oRéamanufactured Core value at that time.
For these Remanufactured Cores, we recognize evenue based upon an estimate of the rate at whicbustomers will pay cash for
Remanufactured Cores in lieu of sending back simlied Cores for credits under our core exchanggram.

Nominal price Remanufactured CorWe invoice other customers for the Remanufacturaee @alue portion of a rotating electrical product
shipped at a nominal Remanufactured Core pricak®&tie full price Remanufactured Cores, we ontognize revenue from nominal
Remanufactured Cores not expected to be replacadsbyilar Used Core sent back under the core exgghprogram when we believe that we
have met all of the following criteria:

e We have a signed agreement with the customer cayére nominally priced Remanufactured Cores npeeted to be sent back under
the core exchange program, and the agreement prfysthe number of Remanufactured Cores our costavill pay cash for in lieu
of sending back a similar Used Core under our ezgphange program and the basis on which the nolypipated Remanufactured
Cores are to be valued (normally the average pecdRemanufactured Core stipulated in the agreén

e The contractual date for reconciling our records emstomer’s records of the number of nominallgguali Remanufactured Cores not
expected to be replaced by similar Used Corestsmit under our core exchange program must be ioutrent or a prior periot

e The reconciliation must be completed and agredyy tihe custome
e The amount must be billed to the custon
Revenue Recognition; General Right of Re

We allow our customers to return goods to us tieit end-user customers have returned to them hehéte returned item is or is not
defective (warranty returns). In addition, under terms of certain agreements with our custometsratustry practice, our customers from
time to time are allowed stock adjustments wheir theentory of certain product lines exceeds thécipated sales to end-user customers
(stock adjustment returns). Customers have vagoungractual rights for stock adjustment returnsolthare typically less than 5% of units sold.
In some instances, we allow a higher level of retuin connection with a significant update orderadldition, we allow customers to return
goods to us that their end-user consumers havmnegtuo them. We seek to limit the aggregate ofagner returns, including warranty and
stock adjustment returns, to less than 20% ofsailés.

We provide for such anticipated returns of inveytoy reducing revenue and the related cost of datebe units estimated to be returned as
further described under the captions “Customershizdl Goods Returns Accrual” and “Inventory Unretdfn

Our allowance for warranty returns is establishasill on a historical analysis of the level of thie of return as a percentage of total unit
sales. Stock adjustment returns do not occur aspayific time during the year, and the expectedllef these returns cannot be reasonably
estimated based on a historical analysis. Our alfms for stock adjustment returns is based onfépeastomer inventory levels, inventory
movements and information on the estimated timiingtack adjustment returns provided by our cust@mer
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Customer Finished Goods Returns Accrual

The customer finished goods returns accrual repteseir estimate of our exposure to customer rsfuncluding warranty returns, under our
general right of return policy to allow customavgeéturn items that their end-user customers hetegrred to them and from time to time, stock
adjustment returns when the customers’ inventorgeofain products exceeds the anticipated salesdaiser customers. The customer finis|
goods returns accrual represents the came-sales value of the estimated returns andssified as a current liability due to the expéatathal
these returns will occur within the normal opergtaycle of one year.

Accrued Core Payment

The accrued core payment represents the full Refaetowed Core sales price of Remanufactured Coeelsawe purchased from our
customers, which are held by these customers andineon their premises. At the same time, we retitoedong-term core inventory for the
Remanufactured Cores purchased at its cost, detednais noted under the caption “Long-term Coreritorg”. The difference between the f
Remanufactured Core sales price of Remanufactuoeels@nd its related cost is treated as salesaticgvreducing revenue when the
purchases are made.

The repayments for these Remanufactured Core lomeptirchases are made through the issuance afscegginst that customerteceivable
either on a one time basis or over an agreed-uptog The accrued core payments are recordedreentand non-current liability in the
consolidated balance sheets based on whether repéymill occur within the normal operating cycleone year.

Sales | ncentives

We provide various marketing allowances to our@msrs, including sales incentives and concessiasketing allowances related to a sin
exchange of product are recorded as a reductioevehues at the time the related revenues aredetar when such incentives are offered.
Other marketing allowances, which may only be aggpligainst future purchases, are recorded as eti@uto revenues in accordance with a
schedule set forth in the relevant contract. Salesntive amounts are recorded based on the vélire incentive provided.

I ntangible Assets

Our intangible assets other than goodwill are didived and amortized on a straight line basis okeirtrespective useful lives. We analyze
finite-lived intangible assets for impairment whamd if indicators of impairment exist. As of Margh, 2015, there were no indicators of
impairment.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using the liability Inoet, which measures deferred income taxes by agpbmacted statutory rates in effect at
the balance sheet date to the differences betweetax basis of assets and liabilities and th@iomed amounts in the financial statements. Th
resulting asset or liability is adjusted to reflebanges in the tax laws as they occur. A valualtmwance is provided to reduce deferred tax
assets when it is more likely than not that a partf the deferred tax asset will not be realized.

The primary components of our income tax expensdipthe current liability or refund due for fedérstate and foreign income taxes and (ii)
the change in the amount of the net deferred indamasset, including the effect of any changééwvaluation allowance.

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependernt opoability to generate sufficient future taxalleome. We review our deferred tax asse
a jurisdiction by jurisdiction basis to determin@ether it is more likely than not that the defertaxd assets will be realized. We believe that
more likely than not that our future taxable incowit be sufficient to realize the recorded defertax assets. In evaluating this ability, we
consider long-term agreements and Remanufacturesl fZwchase obligations with our major customeas éxpire at various dates through
March 2019. We also periodically compare the fosesto actual results. Although there can be noraese that the forecasted results will be
achieved, the history of income in all jurisdictsoprovides sufficient positive evidence that nasagibn allowance is needed.
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Financial Risk Management and Derivatives

We are exposed to market risk from material movamenforeign exchange rates between the U.S. dafid the currencies of the foreign
countries in which we operate. As a result of agnificant operations in Mexico, our primary risklates to changes in the rates between the
U.S. dollar and the Mexican peso. To mitigate thigency risk, we enter into forward foreign exahparontracts to exchange U.S. dollars for
Mexican pesos. We also enter into forward foreigrhange contracts to exchange U.S. dollars for €@ryuan in order to mitigate risk rela
to our purchases and payments to our Chinese ventloe extent to which we use forward foreign ergieacontracts is periodically reviewed
in light of our estimate of market conditions ahd terms and length of anticipated requirements.ge of derivative financial instruments
allows us to reduce our exposure to the risk tiagetventual net cash outflow resulting from fundimg expenses of the foreign operations will
be materially affected by changes in the exchaatgsr We do not engage in currency speculatiomldrdr issue financial instruments for
trading purposes. These contracts generally expiaeyear or less. Any changes in the fair valutoign exchange contracts are accounte
as an increase or decrease to general and admiivistexpenses in current period earnings.

Share-based Payments

In accounting for share-based compensation awenal$pllow the accounting guidance for equity-basedhpensation, which requires that we
measure the cost of employee services receivexcim@ge for an award of equity instruments basetthegrant-date fair value of the award.
The cost associated with stock options is estimaséty the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Thest associated with restricted stock or
restricted stock units is measured based on thdeuof shares granted and the closing price otoarmon stock on the grant date, subject to
continued employment. The cost of equity instruraéntrecognized in the consolidated statementpefations on a straight-line basis (net of
estimated forfeitures) over the period during whachemployee is required to provide service in arge for the award. Also, excess tax
benefits realized are reported as a financing oekiw.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Income Taxe

In July 2013, the FASB issued guidance that requargities to present an unrecognized tax bermefd, portion of an unrecognized tax benefit,
as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for a rexatipg loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, éeacredit carryforward when settlement in this
manner is available under the tax law and the Compgends to use the deferred tax asset for thigigse. The amendments in this update ar

effective for fiscal years, and interim periodshiitthose fiscal years, beginning after DecembeR033. The adoption of this guidance did
have any impact on our financial position, resaftsperations or cash flows.
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Discontinued Operation

In April 2014, the FASB issued guidance on repagrtiiscontinued operations. The new guidance chathgesriteria for determining which
disposals can be presented as discontinued opesatiwl modifies related disclosure requirementsledthe new guidance, a discontinued
operation is defined as a disposal of a componegtaup of components that is disposed of or issifeed as held for sale and represents a
strategic shift that has or will have a major eff@e an entity’s operations and financial resulltse guidance applies prospectively to new
disposals and new classifications of disposal gs@gpheld for sale after the effective date. Thrdsrd is required to be adopted by public
business entities in annual periods beginning aafter December 15, 2014, and interim periods withbse annual periods. We do not expect
any impact on our financial position, results oémgtions or cash flows from the adoption of thiglgace.

Revenue Recognitic

In May 2014, the FASB issued guidance codified 8GA606, “Revenue Recognition - Revenue from Cotgraith Customers”, which
amends the guidance in the former ASC 605, “Rev&aaognition”. The new guidance is effective fonaal periods beginning after
December 15, 2016, and interim periods within tlabrting period for a public company. Early apation is not permitted. A full or modified
retrospective transition method is required. Wecargently evaluating the impact of the provisiafshis guidance to our consolidated
financial statements.

Disclosure of Uncertainties about an En's Ability to Continue as a Going Concern

In August 2014, the FASB issued guidance which ireglan entity to evaluate whether there are cmmditor events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt aboutrttiy’s ability to continue as a going concern \itlone year after the date that the financial
statements are issued (or available to be issifemt)nditions or events raise substantial doubt ihaot alleviated, an entity should disclose
there is substantial doubt about the entity’s gbib continue as a going concern within one ydi@r she date that the financial statements are
issued (or available to be issued), along withpttiecipal conditions or events that raise substhaibubt, management’s evaluation of the
significance of those conditions or events in fetato the entity’s ability to meet its obligatioaad management’s plans that are intended to
mitigate those conditions. The new guidance iscéiffe for the annual period ending after Decemi&r2D16, and for annual periods and
interim periods thereafter. Early application isrpigted. We do not expect any impact on our finahposition, results of operations or cash
flows from the adoption of this guidance.

Extraordinary Iltems

In January 2015, the FASB issued guidance thatldiegpincome statement presentation by eliminatimg concept of extraordinary items.
This guidance is effective for fiscal years, anetim periods within those fiscal years, beginrafigr December 15, 2015. A reporting entity
may apply the amendments prospectively or retrdgdy to all prior periods presented in the finEstatements. Early adoption is permitted
provided that the guidance is applied from the beigig of the fiscal year of adoption. We do notectpany impact on our consolidated
financial statements from the adoption of this guick.

Debt Issuance Cos
In April 2015, the FASB issued guidance that reggilebt issuance costs related to a recognizatityiab be presented in the balance sheet a
a direct deduction from the carrying amount of et liability. The amendments in this updateedfective for financial statements issued for

fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015,iatedim period within those fiscal years. We da erpect the adoption of this guidance to
have a material impact on our consolidated findrat&gements.
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Subsequent Events
Acquisition

On May 20, 2015 we completed the acquisition ofabsets and certain liabilities of OE Plus, LTD E'‘®@lus”),a privately held remanufactui

of alternators and starters based in North Dightdeissachusetts We believe the acquisition of OE Bdmtinues a strategy designed to further
enhance our market share in North America. Thetsss® results of operations of OE Plus were mtitant to our consolidated financial
position or results of operations, and thus pronfoinformation is not presented.

Financing Agreemer

On June 3, 2015 we entered into a $125,000,000ssecured financing (the “Credit Facility”) withe lenders, and PNC Bank, National
Association, as administrative agent, consistin(j)ai $100,000,000 five-year revolving loan fagilisubject to borrowing base restrictions anc
a $15,000,000 sublimit for letters of credit (tidetv Revolving Loans”) and (ii) a $25,000,000 fiveay term loan facility (the “New Term
Loans”). In connection with the Credit Facilithetlenders were granted a security interest intanbally all of our assets.

The New Term Loans require quarterly principal papts of $781,250. The loans made under the Creditify bear interest at rates equal to
either LIBOR plus a margin of 2.50%, 2.75% or 3.000& reference rate plus a margin of 1.50%, 1.85%00%, in each case depending on
the total leverage ratio as of the applicable messant date. There is also a facility fee of 0.26%.375%, depending on the total leverage
ratio as of the applicable measurement date.

In addition to other covenants, the Credit Facitilgces limits on our ability to incur liens, incadditional indebtedness, make loans and
investments, engage in mergers and acquisitiogggmin asset sales, declare dividends or redeeeporchase capital stock, alter the
business conducted by us and our subsidiariesacamith affiliates, prepay, redeem or purchas®slinated debt, and amend or otherwise
alter debt agreements.

The Credit Facility also contains financial covetsarequiring us to maintain (i) a maximum ratiocohsolidated funded debt to consolidated
EBITDA of 2.50:1 and (ii) a minimum ratio of consdted EBITDA to fixed charges that ranges fronb11(o 1.15:1, in each case beginning
with the fiscal quarter ending on September 305204 failure to comply with these covenants coodatmit the lenders under the Credit
Facility to declare all amounts borrowed underG@nedit Facility, together with accrued interest &k, to be immediately due and payable.
Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should bel ieaconjunction with the financial statements ates thereto appearing elsewhere herein
The following table summarizes certain key opegatiata from our continuing operations for the pasindicated:

Fiscal Years Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
Gross profit percentac 27.(% 31.5% 32.5%
Cash flow (used in) provided by continuing openasi $ (9,457,00) $ 13,290,00 $ (4,758,00)
Finished goods turnover ( 6.3 7.2 7.7

(1) Finished goods turnover is calculated by dividihe cost of goods sold for the year by the ayek@tween beginning and ending non-core
finished goods values, for each fiscal year. Weelelthat this provides a useful measure of oditgld turn finished goods into revenut

30




Table of Content

Fiscal 2015 Compared to Fiscal 2014

Net Sales and Gross Profit

The following table summarizes net sales and goosfit from our continuing operations for fiscalZ9and 2014:

Fiscal Years Ended March

31,
2015 2014
Net sales $301,711,00 $258,669,00
Cost of goods sol 220,138,00 177,103,00
Gross profit 81,573,00 81,566,00
Cost of goods sold as a percentage of net 73.(% 68.5%
Gross profit percentac 27.(% 31.5%

Net Sale:. Our net sales for fiscal 2015 increased by $43RD, or 16.6%, to $301,711,000 compared to res $ar fiscal 2014 of
$258,669,000. The increase in net sales was do&ply to (i) growth in the sales of our wheel hatoducts, including the full period impact
of the introduction of our wheel hub products, whige launched in late June 2013, (ii) recognitibresenue related to the Remanufactured
Cores of $16,331,000, which was previously deferpadtly offset by an accrued sales allowance ¢g7@3,000 for future buy-backs of
Remanufactured Cores, (iii) growth in the unit saléour rotating electrical products, and (iv)dah of new brake master cylinder products
which we began selling in late July 2014. In fis2@15, sales of wheel hub products and the newebmzaster cylinder products represented
16.9% and 1.0%, respectively, of net sales.

Cost of Goods Sold/Gross Profdur cost of goods sold as a percentage of net sade=ased during fiscal 2015 to 73.0% from 68.8%discal
2014, resulting in a corresponding decrease irgoass profit to 27.0% for fiscal 2015 from 31.5% figcal 2014. Our gross profit for the fis
2015 was lower primarily due to changes in the afigroduct sold. In addition, our gross profit facal 2015 was impacted by (i) $5,746,000
of sales allowances recorded for the core purchasamnection with the new business awarded tio wsir rotating electrical product lines,
which we began shipping in January 2015, (ii) $2,880 recorded in connection with the returns ofade wheel hub and new brake master
cylinder products, (iii) $2,879,000 of sales allmwa recorded in connection with certain core inegnpurchases, (iv) $2,819,000 of initial
warranty accrual set up for the new brake mastémdsr products and the new business awarded o aigr existing product lines, (v)
$1,070,000 of special upfront allowances incurfei),$537,000 net expense recorded in connectiah thie returns of products associated
the new business awarded to us, and (vii) $189%®@8art-up costs incurred related to new braketenaylinder products. In addition, our
gross profit was impacted by lower per unit mantufang costs due to better absorption of manufaeguoverhead.
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Operating Expenses
The following table summarizes operating expens@s ur continuing operations for fiscal 2015 afd £

Fiscal Years Ended March

31,
2015 2014

General and administrati $ 37,863,00 $ 39,684,00
Sales and marketir 7,851,001 7,838,001
Research and developmt 2,273,001 1,940,001
Percent of net sale:

General and administratiy 12.5% 15.2%
Sales and marketir 2.€% 3.C%
Research and developmt 0.8% 0.7%

General and Administrativé®ur general and administrative expenses for fig6ab were $37,863,000, which represents a decofase
$1,821,000, or 4.6%, from general and administeagixpenses for fiscal 2014 of $39,684,000. Theedser in general and administrative
expenses was primarily due to (i) $7,949,000 ofekesed loss recorded due to the change in thedkie of the Wanxiang warrant liability
and (i) our prior year general and administragxgenses included $2,035,000 of expense due htgge in the fair value of the Cerberus
warrant liability partly offset by a gain of $216@recorded on the extinguishment of the Cerbemarsamt. These decreases were partly offset
by (i) $3,701,000 of increased legal fees relateith¢ discontinued subsidiary, which was partiaffget by decreased legal fees of $621,00
all other corporateelated activities, (ii) $2,002,000 of cash inceatcompensation to certain executives in fiscab2@dmpared to $528,000
fiscal 2014, (iii) $900,000 of increased incentb@npensation, (iv) $1,240,000 of increased shasedaompensation, (v) $1,000,000 of
reserve established in connection with certainllegses, (vi) $556,000 of increased employee-relatsts, (vii) $231,000 of increased bad
debt expense, (viii) $192,000 of increased expegis¢ed to the change in the fair value of the Bmdvforeign exchange contracts, and (ix)
$192,000 of increased travel. In addition, our pyiear general and administrative expenses incl$8&,000 of professional fees related to
the discontinued subsidiary.

Sales and MarketingOur sales and marketing expenses for fiscal 20drgased $13,000, or 0.2%, to $7,851,000 from3& @O0 for fiscal
2014, due primarily to an increase in advertisingense.

Research and Developme. Our research and development expenses incregsk2BB,000, or 17.2%, to $2,273,000 for fiscal 2€bsn
$1,940,000 for fiscal 2014 due primarily to $254 @ increased employee-related costs and $79,Db@eased supplies expense.

I nterest Expense

Interest Expense, neOur interest expense, net from continuing operatfon fiscal 2015 decreased $5,224,000, or 28.6%18,065,000 from
$18,289,000 for fiscal 2014. The decrease in istezrpense was due primarily to lower interestsratelong-term debt. In addition, our prior
year interest expense included the v-off of deferred financing costs in connection witle amendment to the financing agreements and
interest on certain vendor payables. These dezsemsre partly offset by increased interest paymentreceivables discount programs due
larger balance of receivables discounted undepithgram during fiscal 2015 as compared to fisca420
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Provision for Income Taxes

Income Ta. Our income tax expense was $9,068,000, or tleet®fe tax rate of 44.2%, and $7,333,000, or tifecéfe tax rate of 53.1%
during fiscal 2015 and 2014, respectively. The priyrchange in the effective tax rate was due tartipact of non-deductible expenses in
connection with the fair value adjustments on tlaerants and the impact of the non-deductible exezgbmpensation under Internal Revenue
Code Section 162(m).

Income (L oss) from Discontinued Operations

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operatit. Our income from discontinued operations was $10Q@10 during fiscal 2014. The income fr
discontinued operations during fiscal 2014 con%i{§) a $118,095,000 gain on the deconsolidatibthe discontinued subsidiary, including
an income tax benefit of $1,374,000, (ii) a lossypproximately $20,464,000 in connection with tharmgntee of obligations to certain suppl
of the discontinued subsidiary partly offset bydme tax benefits of $9,156,000 recorded duringafi2014, and (iii) losses of approximately
$5,910,000 incurred by the discontinued subsidiaom April 1, 2013 to May 31, 2013.

Fiscal 2014 Compared to Fiscal 2013

Net Sales and Gross Profit

The following table summarizes net sales and goosfit from our continuing operations for fiscal20and 2013:

Fiscal Years Ended March

31,
2014 2013
Net sales $258,669,00 $213,151,00
Cost of goods sol 177,103,00 143,810,00
Gross profit 81,566,00 69,341,00
Cost of goods sold as a percentage of net 68.5% 67.5%
Gross profit percentac 31.5% 32.5%

Net Sale:. Our net sales for fiscal 2014 increased by $45(10, or 21.4%, to $258,669,000 compared to res $ar fiscal 2013 of
$213,151,000. The increase in net sales was doetlothe introduction of our new wheel hub prodwaatd growth in the sales of our rotating
electrical products primarily to existing customefge began selling wheel hub products in late 2018 and they represented approximately
11.3% of our net sales during fiscal 2014.

Cost of Goods Sold/Gross Profdur cost of goods sold as a percentage of net salesased during fiscal 2014 to 68.5% from 67.9¥diEcal

2013, resulting in a corresponding decrease irgoss profit to 31.5% for fiscal 2014 from 32.5% figcal 2013. Our gross profit was
primarily impacted by lower gross margin on wheab lproducts, which we began selling in late Junk320
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Operating Expenses
The following table summarizes operating expeng@s bur continuing operations for fiscal 2014 afd 2

Fiscal Years Ended March

31,
2014 2013

General and administrati $ 39,684,000 $ 25,807,00
Sales and marketir 7,838,001 7,290,00!I
Research and developmt 1,940,00! 1,930,001
Percent of net sale:

General and administratiy 15.2% 12.1%
Sales and marketir 3.C% 3.4%
Research and developmt 0.7% 0.€%

General and Administrativé®ur general and administrative expenses for fig6ak were $39,684,000, which represents an inciefase
$13,877,000, or 53.8%, from general and adminisgaxpenses for fiscal 2013 of $25,807,000. Tleeciase in general and administrative
expenses was primarily due to (i) $10,054,000 oféased loss recorded due to the change in thedlaie of the warrant liability, (ii) a loss of
$842,000 recorded due to the change in the valtigedrward foreign currency exchange contractsequent to entering into the contracts
compared to a gain of $804,000 recorded duringfi2013, (iii) $780,000 of increased salaries aades, (iv) $515,000 of increased legal
and (v) $406,000 of increased general and admatiigér expenses at our offshore locations due t@ased employee-related expenses and
outside services. These increases were partlytdffsg@) $982,000 of expenses incurred during i3 in connection with the discontinued
subsidiary’s initial implementation work relatedtt® compliance with Section 404 of the SarbanelgyOict of 2002, (ii) $675,000 recorded
during fiscal 2013 for the settlement of liquidatiimages in connection with our April 2012 privalecement, and (iii) $650,000 recorded in
fiscal 2013 related to the termination of our cdtisg agreement with Mel Marks. In addition, gefdenad administrative expenses increased
during fiscal 2014 due to $2,868,000 of legal arafgssional services expenses incurred by us dattdeto the discontinued subsidiary.

Sales and MarketingOur sales and marketing expenses for fiscal 20dréased $548,000, or 7.5%, to $7,838,000 fror@%¥,000 for fiscal
2013. The increase was due primarily to (i) $238,60increased employee-related expenses, (ii) $084of increased professional services
and consulting fees, and (iii) $120,000 of increlsavel expenses.

Research and Developme. Our research and development expenses incregsgtDi00, or 0.5%, to $1,940,000 for fiscal 20dhf
$1,930,000 for fiscal 2013. The increase was dimeapily to increased consulting fees.

I nterest Expense

Interest Expense, neOur interest expense, net from continuing operation fiscal 2014 increased $5,965,000, or 48.474118,289,000 from
$12,324,000 for fiscal 2013. Interest expenseismal 2013 reflects $5,182,000 of interest incomednnection with the long-term note
receivable from the discontinued subsidiary. Initholdl, interest expense increased due to (i) theevaff of approximately $2,581,000 in
deferred financing costs in connection with the admeents to our credit agreements, (ii) interesalbof our outstanding obligations related to
our discontinued subsidiary guaranteed by us tlea¢waid in full on August 26, 2013. These increasere partly offset by (i) lower interest
rates on our term loan and factored receivablemgldiscal 2014 and (ii) expenses incurred in fit@l3 in connection with the third
amendment and waiver to the Financing Agreemerdg€fised below).
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Provision for Income Taxes

Income Ta». Our income tax expense from continuing operativas $7,333,000, or the effective tax rate of 53.4f@ $7,432,000, or the
effective tax rate of 33.8% during fiscal 2014 &0d.3, respectively. The primary change in the éffedax rate was due to non-deductible
expenses in connection with the fair value adjustsien the warrants and the impact of the non-ddsleexecutive compensation under
Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m). The balahtiee change in the effective tax rate was duedtarring rate impacting items, such as
our state and foreign income taxes, uncertain textipns, and permanent book to tax differences.

Income (L oss) from Discontinued Operations

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operatit. Our income from discontinued operations was 800000 during fiscal 2014 compared to a
loss from discontinued operations of $106,069,@0Giscal 2013. The income from discontinued operet during fiscal 2014 consists of (i) a
$118,095,000 gain on the deconsolidation of theatisnued subsidiary, including an income tax biméf$1,374,000 , (ii) a loss of
approximately $20,464,000 in connection with thargmtee of obligations to certain suppliers ofdtseontinued subsidiary partly offset by
income tax benefits of $9,156,000 recorded duriscpf 2014, and (iii) losses of approximately $9,8D0 incurred by the discontinued
subsidiary from April 1, 2013 to May 31, 2013.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

We generated cash in fiscal 2015 from the useagfivable discount programs with certain of our majgstomers and the public offering of
our common stock. The cash generated from thegatiast was used partly to increase our inventenels, make Remanufactured Core buy-
backs, repay all amounts outstanding under ourdvigloan, and make the quarterly principal teoar payments.

At March 31, 2015, we had working capital of $66LE00, a ratio of current assets to current liabgdiof 1.6:1, and cash of $61,230,000,
compared to working capital of $22,077,000, a refiourrent assets to current liabilities of 1.2afid cash of $24,599,000 at March 31, 2014.

During fiscal 2014, we filed a universal shelf gation statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-19%%@%ch was declared effective on May 9,
2014, for the proposed offering from time to tinfaip to $100,000,000 of our securities, includimgnenon stock, preferred stock, and debt
securities. The securities may be offered by us flime to time at amounts, prices, interest raad, other terms to be determined at the tin
the offering.

In September 2014, we completed a public offering, 60,000 shares of our common stock at a prfig®26.00 per sharewhich included the
exercise in full by the underwriters of their optito purchase up to 360,000 additional shares miton stock. We received aggregate gross
proceeds of $71,760,000 and net proceeds of $68Q@0 &fter expenses. We used the net proceedsfing capital and other general
corporate purposes.

We believe our cash and cash equivalents, shantiterestments, use of receivable discount programgunts available under our financing

agreement, and other sources are sufficient tefgatur working capital needs, repayment of theentrportion of our term loans, capital lease
commitments, and capital expenditures over the b2xhonths.
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Cash Flows

Our cash flows from our continuing operations dected in the consolidated statement of cash fliawdiscal 2015, 2014, and 2013 are
summarized as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities from our continuing operatit $ (9,457,000 $ 13,290,000 $ (4,758,00)

Investing activities from our continuing operatic (3,868,00i) (3,032,00i) (2,371,00)

Financing activities from our continuing operatic 50,081,00 15,642,00 21,639,00

Effect of exchange rates on cash. (125,000) (31,000 45,00(
Net increase in cash from our continuing operat 36,631,00 25,869,00 14,555,00
Additional selected cash flow data:

Depreciation and amortizatic $ 2,521,000 $ 2,742,000 $ 2,849,00

Capital expenditure 3,734,001 2,978,001 2,330,001

Fiscal 2015 Compared to Fiscal 20

Net cash used in operating activities from our wihg operations was $9,457,000 during fiscal 26dSpared to net cash provided
operating activities from our continuing operatiafi$13,290,000 during fiscal 2014. Our prior yeperating activities from our continuing
operations included the receipt of an income tér of $16,472,000. In addition, our prior yeac@ents payable balances increased more
significantly compared to fiscal 2015 as we incesbsur noncore inventory. The remaining change in cash ussd bur continuing operatio
was due to changes in our operating assets arilitiésh Our major use of cash from operationsed building our inventory levels to
support significant new business awarded to us.

Net cash used in investing activities from our @orihg operations was $3,868,000 and $3,032,00ddiscal 2015 and 2014, respective
This change was due primarily to (i) purchasesqoiigment for our manufacturing facilities includifay our wheel hub products and new
brake master cylinder products and (ii) improveragatour facilities.

Net cash provided by financing activities from gontinuing operations was $50,081,000 and $15,802d@ring fiscal 2015 and 201
respectively. This change was due mainly to thepmateeds of $66,973,000 received from the pulifering of our common stock in fiscal
2015 partly offset by the repayment of all amownttstanding under our revolving loan compared titaxhal borrowing during fiscal 2014.
addition, fiscal 2014 included financing costs paidonnection with the amendment of our credieagnent.

Fiscal 2014 Compared to Fiscal 20

Net cash provided by operating activities from comtinuing operations was $13,290,000 during fi@€dl4 compared to net cash use
operating activities from our continuing operatiai$4,758,000 during fiscal 2013. The significah&inges in our operating activities from
continuing operations in fiscal 2014 were due prilydo (i) an increase in accounts payable balaraewe increased our noare inventory i
anticipation of increased sales, compared to tlyedpavn of accounts payable balances in the priar which were incurred in connection with
the inventory provided to the discontinued subsidéuring fiscal 2012, (ii) the receipt of inconaxtrefunds in fiscal 2014 compared to cash
payments for income taxes in fiscal 2013, and &iii)increase in accounts receivable during fisdahalue to higher net sales compared to
fiscal 2013. In addition, other changes in operptintivities from our continuing operations wenea(idecrease of $546,000 to the provision fo
customer payment discrepancies, (ii) a decrea$213,000 to the provision for bad debt, and (iiezrease of $194,000 to the provision for
inventory reserves.
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Net cash used in investing activities from our @orihg operations was $3,032,000 and $2,371,00ddiscal 2014 and 2013, respective
This change was due primarily to (i) increase irchase of equipment related to our wheel hub adéesrdnd bearings and (i) increase in
purchases of equipment related to our manufactdaaijties.

Net cash provided by financing activities from gontinuing operations was $15,642,000 and $21,68%aring fiscal 2014 and 201
respectively. This change was due mainly to (i)itaithl borrowing under the amended credit agred@martly offset by the repayment of our
term loan, (ii) net proceeds from the stock optamrrcises during fiscal 2014, (iii) financing coptsd in connection with the amendment of
credit agreement, and (iv) the repurchase of wisrom our lenders. In addition, our fiscal 20ir®ahcing activities from continuing
operations included the net proceeds received fronprivate placement in April 2012.

Capital Resources

Debt

We are party to the following credit agreements.

Financing Agreemer

We are party to a financing agreement, as amertlerl;Financing Agreement”), with a syndicate aiders, Cerberus Business Finance, LLC
(“Cerberus”), as collateral agent, and PNC Bankjdsal Association, as administrative agent. Trenkbmade thereunder (the “Loansdnsis
of: (i) term loans aggregating $95,000,000 (thertiTé.oans”) and (ii) revolving loans of up to $3000000, subject to borrowing base
restrictions and a $10,000,000 sublimit for let@frsredit (the “Revolving Loans”). The Loans matun November 6, 2018. In connection
with the Financing Agreement, the lenders were tg@a security interest in substantially all of assets. In addition, we have the right,
subject to meeting certain conditions, to repurehgsto $10,000,000 of our equity interests.

In June 2014, we entered into a first amendmetitdd-inancing Agreement (the “First Amendment”);quant to which (i) the Revolving
Loans were increased by $10,000,000 to $40,00(t6e0'Amended Revolving Loans”), (ii) the maximumaunt of capital expenditures was
increased to $7,000,000 for fiscal 2015, and $4@@Dfor each of fiscal 2016 and 2017, and (iint@@ other amendments and modifications
were made.

In September 2014, we entered into a second ameridmthe Financing Agreement (the “Second Amendifgnursuant to which we were
permitted to lease an additional third party waredgolocation in Mexico and office space in Canada.

In December 2014, we entered into a third amendmaetfie Financing Agreement (the “Third Amendmenplrsuant to which (i) the
definition of consolidated earnings before intergstome tax, depreciation and amortization expei{$€BITDA”") was amended and (ii)
certain schedules to the Financing Agreement wedated.

In April 2015, we entered into a fourth amendmendar Financing Agreement (the “Fourth Amendmergt)rsuant to which (i) the definition
of consolidated EBITDA was amended, (ii) the coitsdbd EBITDA covenant levels were increased ferftbcal quarter ending March 31,
2015 and each quarter thereafter by $11,800,0@D(i@ncertain schedules to the Financing Agreetveere updated.

The Term Loans require quarterly principal paymeit$2,100,000 and bear interest at rates equat @myr option, either LIBOR (subject to a
1.50% LIBOR floor) plus 5.25% or a reference rdtespl.25%. The Amended Revolving Loans bear intexesates equal to, at our option,
either LIBOR plus 2.50% or a reference rate pl@%. The interest rate on our Term Loans usind tBOR option was 6.75% at March 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively. The interest rateusrRevolving Loans using the LIBOR option was 2.6&8eMarch 31, 2014, respectively.
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We may reduce or terminate the commitments ofeéhdérs to make the Amended Revolving Loans or grégmaTerm Loans in whole or in
part. Such prepayments were subject to a prepaypesraity of 2.00% times the sum of the reductiothefrevolving credit commitment plus
the principal amount of any prepayment of the Teoans through January 18, 2015 and may be madenaitirepayment penalty thereafter.

The Financing Agreement, among other things, reguis to maintain certain financial covenants idicdlg a maximum senior leverage ratio, a
minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, and minimumsmidated earnings before EBITDA. We were in caarae with all financial covenar
under the Financing Agreement as of March 31, 2015.

The following table summarizes the financial covasaequired under the Financing Agreement as gtMal, 2015:
Financial covenants

required per the
Calculation as o Financing Agreement, a

March 31, 2015 amended
Maximum senior leverage rat 1.2¢ 3.0t
Minimum fixed charge coverage ra 2.0¢ 1.0t
Minimum consolidated EBITD/ $ 66,195,00 $ 44,300,00

We had no outstanding balance on the Amended Riegolwans; however, $430,000 was reserved for statetters of credit for workers’
compensation insurance and $1,794,000 for comniéetiiers of credit as of March 31, 2015. We had®eed $10,000,000 under the
Revolving Loans at March 31, 2014. As of March 3115, $35,950,000, subject to certain adjustmevds,available under the Amended
Revolving Loans.

WX Agreement

In August 2012, we entered into the Revolving Cv&tiiategic Cooperation Agreement (the “WX Agreetijerith Wanxiang America
Corporation (the “Supplier”) and the discontinuedsidiary. In connection with the WX Agreement, also issued a warrant (the “Supplier
Warrant”)to the Supplier to purchase up to 516,129 sharesiofommon stock for an initial exercise prices@f75 per share exercisable at
time after August 22, 2014 and on or prior to Seyiiter 30, 2017. The exercise price is subject tosijents, among other things, for sales of
common stock by us at a price below the exercige pr

The fair value of the Supplier Warrant using therfdoCarlo simulation model was $10,506,000 and®1QQ00 at March 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. This amount is recorded as a waltiapitity which is included in other liabilities ithe consolidated balance sheets. During fisca
2015 and 2014, losses of $459,000 and $8,408,880ectively, were recorded in general and admatisé expenses due to the change in the
fair value of this warrant liability.

Receivable Discount Prograr

We use receivable discount programs with certaiouofmajor customers and their respective banksetthese programs, we have options tc
sell those customers’ receivables to those banaslegcount to be agreed upon at the time thevalbkss are sold. These programs allow us tc
accelerate collection of customersteivables. While these programs have improvedigquidity, there can be no assurance that thesgram:
will continue in the future. Interest expense résglfrom these programs would increase if interasts rise, if utilization of these programs
expands or if the discount period is extended flecemore favorable payment terms to customers.
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The following is a summary of the receivable disggorograms from our continuing operations:

Years Ended March 31,

2015 2014
Receivables discountt $260,973,00 $210,752,00
Weighted average da 33€ 337
Weighted average discount ri 2.(% 2.2%
Amount of discount as interest expe!| $ 4,917,000 $ 4,336,00

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At March 31, 2015, we had no off-balance sheetrfiivag or other arrangements with unconsolidatediesr financial partnerships (such as
entities often referred to as structured financepacial purpose entities) established for purpobéacilitating off-balance sheet financing or
other debt arrangements or for other contractuedtyow or limited purposes.

Multi-year Customer Agreements

We have or are renegotiating loteym agreements with many of our major customenslddthese agreements, which in most cases hdiz
terms of at least four years, we are designatekeasxclusive or primary supplier for specifiedezmiries of our products. Because of the very
competitive nature of the market and the limitechber of customers for these products, our custohmeare sought and obtained price
concessions, significant marketing allowances anterfavorable delivery and payment terms in consititen for our designation as a
customer’s exclusive or primary supplier. Thesemives differ from contract to contract and carlude (i) the issuance of a specified amoun
of credits against receivables in accordance witbheedule set forth in the relevant contractsfipport for a particular customer’s research or
marketing efforts provided on a scheduled basiy d{scounts granted in connection with each imdlinal shipment of product, and (iv) other
marketing, research, store expansion or produatldpment support. These contracts typically reqihia¢ we meet ongoing standards relate
fulfillment, price, and quality. Our contracts withajor customers expire at various dates througrcMa019.

While these longeterm agreements strengthen our customer relatipsstiie increased demand for our products oftemnes)that we increa
our inventories and personnel. Customer demandsvihaurchase their Remanufactured Core inventisty r@quire the use of our available
working capital. The marketing and other allowanwestypically grant our customers in connectiontwgtir new or expanded customer
relationships adversely impact the nesmm revenues, profitability and associated cashdlfrom these arrangements. However, we belies
investment we make in these new or expanded custa@tationships will improve our overall liquidignd cash flow from operations over
time.

Share Repurchase Program

In March 2010, our Board of Directors authorizeshare repurchase program of up to $5,000,000 obwistanding common stock from time
to time in the open market and in private transactiat prices deemed appropriate by managemenproljeam does not have an expiration
date. Under this program, we repurchased and deditetal of 67,347 shares at a total cost of apprately $389,000 during fiscal 2013. We
did not repurchase any outstanding common stodkgldiscal 2015 and 2014.

Capital Expenditures and Commitments

Our capital expenditures were $3,734,000 duringafi2015. A significant portion of these expendiirelate to (i) purchases of equipment fol
our manufacturing facilities including for our whéeib products and new brake master cylinder prtsdaied (ii) improvements to our faciliti
We expect our fiscal 2016 capital expendituresofarcurrent operations to be approximately $4,000 frimarily related to our purchases of
equipment, information technology, and leaseholdrowements to our current facilities. We expeaide our working capital and incur
additional capital lease obligations to financestheapital expenditures.
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Contractual Obligations

The following summarizes our contractual obligasi@md other commitments as of March 31, 2015 ameftlect such obligations could have
on our cash flows in future periods:

Payments Due by Period

Less than 2t03 4t05 More than 5
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year years years years
Capital Lease Obligations ( $ 592,000 $ 150,00 $ 281,000 $ 111,000 $ 50,00(
Operating Lease Obligations ( 11,978,00 3,141,001 4,314,001 2,230,001 2,293,00!
Term Loan (3 101,619,00 13,864,00 25,979,00 61,776,00 -
Accrued Core Payment (. 38,707,00 13,882,00 16,550,00 8,275,001 -
Unrecognized Tax Benefits ( - - - - -
Other Long-Term Obligations (6) 63,078,00 22,518,00 29,535,00 7,043,001 3,982,001
Total $215,974,00 $ 53,555,000 $ 76,659,00 $ 79,435,000 $ 6,325,00

(1) Capital Lease Obligations represent amounts duerwapital leases for various types of equipm

(2) Operating Lease Obligations represent amouwngstar rent under our leases for all our office arstehouse facilities and for our Company
automobile. The expiration date for the lease affadility in Mexico is October 2016 and we have thption to extend the lease term for
six additional 3-day periods, therefore, operating lease obligationthis facility are included in the above tatheough April 2017

(3) Term Loan obligations represent the amountsfduprincipal payments as well as interest paymémibe made. Interest payments were
calculated based upon the interest rate for oun tean using the LIBOR option at March 31, 2015athivas 6.75% and does not give
effect to the new Credit Facility entered into im2015.

(4) Accrued Core Payments represent the amountfodpeincipal and interest payments to be madsoimection with the purchases of
Remanufactured Cores from our customers, whicleldby these customers and remain on their pran

(5) We are unable to reliably estimate the timififuture payments related to uncertain tax positiabilities at March 31, 2015 in the amount
of $1,117,000; therefore, this amount has beerueded from the table above. However, future tax payraccruals related to uncertain tax
positions are included in our balance sheets, extlby the associated federal deduction for statest

(6) Other Long-Term Obligations represent committe@ve have with certain customers to provide mamgedllowances in consideration for
long-term agreements to provide products over mééfperiod. We are not obligated to provide thaseketing allowances should our
business relationships end with these custor

Related Party Transactions

During fiscal 2015, Mr. Mel Marks was appointedstryve as a director of our Asian subsidiariesdufiteon to his position as one of our

directors. Mr. Marks will receive annual compensatdf $150,000 for his services as a director afAsian subsidiaries, in addition to his
regular compensation as one of our directors.
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During fiscal 2014 and 2013, we paid $304,000 aB8¢k000, respectively, to Houlihan Lokey Howard8kin Capital, Inc. in connection
with the restructuring of the discontinued subsigi&cott Adelson, a member of our Board of Direstis a Co-President and Global Co-Heac
of Corporate Finance for Houlihan Lokey Howard &#uCapital, Inc.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Our primary market risk relates to changes in #gerates and foreign currency exchange rates.dV@tenter into derivatives or other
financial instruments for trading or speculativepmses. As our overseas operations expand, ousaxpto the risks associated with foreign
currency fluctuations will continue to increase.

Interest rate risk

We are exposed to changes in interest rates ptingaria result of our borrowing and receivable @list programs, which have interest costs
that vary with interest rate movements. Our criditlity bears interest at variable base ratess pluapplicable margin. At March 31, 2015, ou
net debt obligations totaled $80,101,000. If indérates were to increase 1%, our net annual sitesgpense would have increased by
approximately $801,000. In addition, for each $00,000 of accounts receivable we discount overagef 180 days, a 1% increase in
interest rates would increase our interest expbns50,000.

Foreign currency risl

We are exposed to foreign currency exchange risirant in our anticipated purchases and expensesrdeated in currencies other than the
U.S. dollar. We transact business in the followimiggign currencies; Mexican pesos, Malaysian rirgihgapore dollar, Chinese yuan, and the
Canadian dollar. Our primary currency risks refolin fluctuations in the value of the Mexican pesal to a lesser extent the Chinese yuat
mitigate these risks, we enter into forward foredginrency exchange contracts to exchange U.S.rddbathese foreign currencies. The extent
to which we use forward foreign currency exchangatiacts is periodically reviewed in light of owstienate of market conditions and the te
and length of anticipated requirements. The usied¥ative financial instruments allows us to reglocir exposure to the risk that the eventual
net cash outflow resulting from funding the expanskthe foreign operations will be materially atied by changes in exchange rates. These
contracts generally expire in a year or less. Amynges in the fair values of our forward foreignrency exchange contracts are reflected in
current period earnings. Based upon our forwareifor currency exchange contracts related to theserwies, an increase of 10% in exche
rates at March 31, 2015 would have increased auergéand administrative expenses by approxim&e)§51,000. During fiscal 2015 and
2014, losses of $1,034,000 and $842,000, respéctivere recorded in general and administrativeeeses due to the change in the value of
the forward foreign currency exchange contractsegbent to entering into the contracts.

Iltem 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat

The information required by this item is set faritthe consolidated financial statements, commenoimpage F-1 included herein.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accourmiés on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have established disclosure controls and praesda ensure that the information required toibelased by the Company in the reports
that it files or submits under the Securities Exa@Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summasarddeported within the time periods
specified in the SEC rules and forms and that suftimation is accumulated and made known to tlieers who certify the Company’s

financial reports and to other members of senianagament and the Board of Directors as appropiaatiow timely decisions regarding
required disclosures.

41




Table of Content

Under the supervision and with the participatioomafinagement, including our Chief Executive Offi&@jef Financial Officer, and Chief
Accounting Officer, we have conducted an evaluatibthe effectiveness of our disclosure controld procedures as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(b) and 15d-15(e). Based on this atialy our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financ@ificer, and Chief Accounting Officer
concluded that MPA’s disclosure controls and proices were effective as of March 31, 2015.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for estabfj and maintaining adequate internal controf éimancial reporting as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) .

Internal control over financial reporting is a pess designed to provide reasonable assurance iregé#nd reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for extiepoaposes in accordance with accounting princigksserally accepted in the United State of
America, applying certain estimates and judgmestequired.

Internal control over financial reporting includd®se policies and procedures that:

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, inoresle detail, accurately and fairly reflect thansactions and dispositions of the as
of the company
2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactiome@rled as necessary to permit preparation ofidiadstatements in accordance w

generally accepted accounting principles, andrinzgipts and expenditures of the company are beadg only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of ¢mepany; anc

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prewenttibmely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on thenéiral statement

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdaces may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participatiommafnagement, including our Chief Executive Offic@njef Financial Officer, and Chief
Accounting Officer, we conducted an evaluationha effectiveness of our internal control over ficiahreporting based on the criteria
established in the 2018ternal Control — Integrated Framewoitsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway
Commission. Based on this evaluation, managememtieded that the Company’s internal control oveaficial reporting was effective as of
March 31, 2015 .

The effectiveness of our internal control over fio@l reporting as of March 31, 2015 has been addiy the Company'’s independent
registered public accounting firm, Ernst & YoungR.LTheir assessment is included in the accompamamprt of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control over &irtial Reporting.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in MPA's internal controlrdir@ncial reporting during the fourth quarter eddviarch 31, 2015 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materialifeaf, MPA'’s internal control over financial repaorg.
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.

43




Table of Content
PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace

The information required by this item is incorpedby reference to our Definitive Proxy Statemartannection with our next Annual
Meeting of Stockholders (the “Proxy Statement”).

Item 11. Executive Compensatior

The information required by this item is incorpaby reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andMlanagement and Related Stockholder Matter:
The information required by this item is incorp@by reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence

The information required by this item is incorpaby reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Service

The information required by this item is incorp@aby reference to the Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule
a. Documents filed as part of this report:

(1) Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing 55
Consolidated Balance She F-1
Consolidated Statements of Operati F-2
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomss F-3
Consolidated Statement of Sharehol’ Equity F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flt F-5

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem F-6

(2) Schedules
Schedule I— Valuation and Qualifying Accoun S-1
(3) Exhibits:

Number Description of Exhibit Method of Filing

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of the Company Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the @any’s
Registration Statement on Form SRleclared effective on Mar
22, 1994 (th¢*1994 Registration Statem”).

3.2 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of thenGmany Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the @any’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-974@8)ated
effective on November 14, 1995 (the “1995 Regigirt
Statemer”).

3.3 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of thenGmany Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the @any’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Ma3&h1997
(the*1997 Form 1-K").

3.4 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of thengmany Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the @any’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Ma&&h1998
(the“1998 Form 1-K").

3.5 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of thengmany Incorporated by reference to Exhibit C to the Conyp@aproxy
statement on Schedule 14A filed with the SEC ond¥alver 25,
2003.

3.6 Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to ther€atr Report on
Form &K filed on August 24, 201(

3.7 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Imporation  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to ther€nt Report on

of the Compan
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Number Description of Exhibit Method of Filing
4.1 2003 Long Term Incentive Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to the @any’s
Registration Statement on FornB8Sied with the SEC on April :
2004.
4.2 2004 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Fr8tatement
on Schedule 14A for the 2004 Annual Shareholderstivig.
4.3 2010 Incentive Award Plan Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Fr8tatement
on Schedule 14A filed on December 15, 2(
4.4 Amended and Restated 2010 Incentive Award Plan Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Rr8tatement
on Schedule 14A filed on March 5, 20:
4.5 Second Amended and Restated 2010 Incentive Award P Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Rr8iatement
on Schedule 14A filed on March 3, 20:
4.6 2014 Non-Employee Director Incentive Award Plan Incorporated by reference to Appendix B to the RPr8tatement
on Schedule 14A filed on March 3, 20:
10.1 Amendment to Lease, dated October 3, 1996, by atwdden Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to tlee@mnber 31,
the Company and Golkar Enterprises, Ltd. relating t 1996 Form 10-Q.
additional property in Torrance, Califorr
10.2 Lease Agreement, dated September 19, 1995, byetmeén Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to tB85
Golkar Enterprises, Ltd. and the Company relatinthe Registration Statement.
Compan’s facility located in Torrance, Californ
10.3 Form of Indemnification Agreement for officers attidectors Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to tB871
Registration Statemer
10.4 Second Amendment to Lease, dated March 15, 2002ebe Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to t86210-K.
Golkar Enterprises, Ltd. and the Company relatingropert)
in Torrance, Californi
10.5* Addendum to Vendor Agreement, dated May 8, 2004, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to th8£210-K.
between AutoZone Parts, Inc. and the Comg
10.6 Form of Orbian Discount Agreement between the Cawpe Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to th8£210-K.
and Orbian Corg
10.7 Form of Standard Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tenaptase Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to t664210-K.

dated May 25, 2004, between the Company and Golkar
Enterprises, Ltd for property located at 530 Majenue,
Torrance, Californii
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Number Description of Exhibit Method of Filing

10.8 Build to Suit Lease Agreement, dated October 28420 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CurfReport on
among Motorcar Parts de Mexico, S.A. de CV, the gamy Form 8-K filed on November 2, 2004.
and Beatrix Flourie Geoffro

10.9 Amendment No. 3 to Pay-On-Scan Addendum, dated stu Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CuriReport on
22, 2006, between AutoZone Parts, Inc. and the Goy Form &K filed on August 30, 200¢

10.10* Amendment No. 1 to Vendor Agreement, dated Augl@st 2 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to CuriReport on
2006, between AutoZone Parts, Inc. and MotorcatsRdr Form 8-K filed on August 30, 2006.
America, Inc.

10.11 Lease Agreement Amendment, dated October 12, 2006, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CutiiReport on
between the Company and Beatrix Flourie Gef Form &K filed on October 20, 200t

10.12 Third Amendment to Lease Agreement, dated as oeNdbe Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CuriReport on
20, 2006, between Motorcar Parts of America, Ind a Form 8-K filed on November 27, 2006.
Golkar Enterprises, Ltc

10.13 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefl ¢ Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CutriReport on
December 31, 2008, by and between the Company and  Form 8-K filed January 7, 2009.
Selwyn Joffe

10.14* Vendor Agreement dated as of March 31, 2009, betwlee Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CuriReport on
Company and AutoZone Parts, i Form &K filed May 5, 2009

10.15* Core Amendment to Vendor Agreement, dated as otEMar Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Curfeeport on
31, 2009, between the Company and AutoZone Paxts Form &K filed May 5, 2009

10.16 * Vendor Agreement Addendum, dated as of March 30920 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CuriReport on
between the Company and AutoZone Parts, Form ¢-K/A filed on December 23, 200

10.17 * Core Amendment to Vendor Agreement Addendum, dase Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Cutrifeeport on
of March 31, 2009, between the Company and AutoZone Form 8-K/A filed on December 23, 2009.
Parts, Inc

10.18 * Master Vendor Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2@9weel Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CutiiReport on
the Company and’Reilly Automotive, Inc. Form &K filed on January 13, 201

10.19 * Letter Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2009, betwne Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CurfReport on
Company and 'Reilly Automotive, Inc. Form &K filed on January 13, 201

10.20 * Vendor Agreement Addendum, dated as of April 1,200 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Curfeeport on

between the Company anc Reilly Automative, Inc.

47

Form &K filed on January 13, 201




Table of Content

Number Description of Exhibit Method of Filing

10.21 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated M3a9Bl Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to CuriReport on
by and among Fenwick Automotive Products Limited, Form 8-K filed on May 12, 2011.
Introcan Inc., Manufactures and Traders Trust Compa
M&T Bank and such other lenders from time to tinseraay
become a party there

10.22 Core Amendment No. 3 to Vendor Agreement, dateafas  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curfeeport on
May 31, 2011, by and between Motorcar Parts of Acaer Form 8-K filed on June 16, 2011.
Inc. and AutoZone Parts, In

10.23 Core Amendment No. 4 to Vendor Agreement, dateafas  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Curfeeport on
May 31, 2011, by and between Motorcar Parts of Acaer Form 8-K filed on June 16, 2011.
Inc. and AutoZone Parts, In

10.24 Addendum No. 2 to Amendment No. 1 to Vendor Agresty  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to CuriReport on
dated as of May 31, 2011, by and between Motorasisf  Form 8-K filed on June 16, 2011.
America, Inc. and AutoZone Parts, li

10.25 Fifth Amendment, dated as of November 17, 2011hao Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curfeeport on
certain Standard Industrial Commercial Single Téhaase- Form 8-K filed on November 25, 2011.
Gross, dated as of September 19, 1995, betweeratGolk
Enterprises, Ltd and Motorcar Parts of America,,las
amendec

10.26 Financing Agreement, dated as of January 18, 261hg Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CurfReport on
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc., each lender frametto Form 8-K filed on January 24, 2012.
time party thereto, Cerberus Business Finance, ldsC,
collateral agent, and PNC Bank, National Associatas
administrative ager

10.27 Registration Rights Agreement, dated April 20, 2012 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CuriReport on

Form &K filed on April 23, 2012
10.28 Right of First Refusal Agreement, dated May 3, 2012 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curfeeport on
Form &K filed on May 7, 2012

10.29 Employment Agreement, dated as of May 18, 2012y&éen  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CutiiReport on
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc., and Selwyn J¢ Form &K filed on May 24, 2012

10.30 Second Amendment to the Financing Agreement, dederf  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curfeeport on

May 24, 2012, among Motorcar Parts of America,,leach
lender from time to time party thereto, CerberusiBess
Finance, LLC, as collateral agent, and PNC Bankiddal
Association, as administrative ag:
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Number

Description of Exhibit

Method of Filing

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

Warrant to Purchase Common Stock, dated May 242,201
issued by Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. to Ceuber
Business Finance, LLC in connection with the Second
Amendment to the Financing Agreem:

Revolving Credit/Strategic Cooperation Agreemeated as
of August 22, 2012, by and among Motorcar Parts of
America, Inc. (solely for purposes of provisiongafied
thereto), Fenwick Automotive Products Limited and
Wanxiang America Corporatic

Guaranty, dated as of August 22, 2012, by MotoRzats of
America, Inc. for the benefit of Wanxiang America
Corporation

Warrant to Purchase Common Stock, dated as of A&)s
2012, issued by Motorcar Parts of America, IndManxiang
America Corporatiol

Third Amendment and Waiver to the Financing Agreetne
dated as of August 22, 2012, among Motorcar Pdrts o
America, Inc., each lender from time to time pahgreto,
Cerberus Business Finance, LLC, as collateral ageat
PNC Bank, National Association as administrativerd:

Amendment No. 2 to the Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, dated as of August 22, 2012, by and gmon
Fenwick Automotive Products Limited, Introcan Inc.,
Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company, as |leatger,
and M&T Bank, as administrative agent and a lel

Stock Repurchase Agreement, dated as of DecemBen 3,
by and among Motorcar Parts of America, Inc., Malrké
and Melmarks Enterprises LLL

Fourth Amendment to Financing Agreement, datedfas o
December 3, 2012, among Motorcar Parts of Ameha,
each lender from time to time party thereto, Carber
Business Finance, LLC, as collateral agent, and Bhidk,
National Association, as administrative ag
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Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CurfReport on
Form 8-K filed on May 31, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CurfReport on
Form 8-K filed on August 28, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Curfeeport on

Form 8-K filed on August 28, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to CurfReport on
Form 8-K filed on August 28, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Curfeeport on

Form 8-K filed on August 28, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Curfeeport on
Form 8-K filed on August 28, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CurfReport on
Form 8-K filed on December 6, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Curfeeport on
Form 8-K filed on December 6, 2012.
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Number

Description of Exhibit

Method of Filing

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46

Option Purchase Agreement, dated as of JanuarR0lR, by
and between Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. anevigel
Joffe

Fifth Amendment to Financing Agreement, dated as of
January 16, 2013, among Motorcar Parts of Amehaa,
each lender from time to time party thereto, Carber
Business Finance, LLC, as collateral agent, and Bhidk,
National Association, as administrative ag

Amendment No. 3 to the Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, dated as of February 13, 2013, by arahgm
Fenwick Automotive Products Limited, Introcan Inc.,
Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company, as |leadger,
and M&T Bank, as administrative agent and a lel

Mel Marks Agreement, dated and effective as of M&t,
2013, among Motorcar Parts of America, Inc., Melrkéaanc
Mel Marks Enterprises LLLI

Sixth Amendment to Financing Agreement, dated aking
14, 2013, among Motorcar Parts of America, Incchdandel
from time to time party thereto, Cerberus Busirféssince,
LLC, as collateral agent, and PNC Bank, National
Association, as administrative agt

Form of Stock Option Notice for use in connectioithvstock
options granted to Selwyn Joffe pursuant to thedvtatr
Parts of America, Inc. 2010 Incentive Award P

Form of Stock Option Agreement for use in connectigth
stock options granted to Selwyn Joffe pursuanhéo t
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. 2010 Incentive Ad/&ian

Seventh Amendment to the Financing Agreement, daded
of August 26, 2013, among Motorcar Parts of Amerina.,
each lender from time to time party thereto, Carber
Business Finance, LLC, as collateral agent, and Bhidk,
National Association, as administrative ag
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Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CurfReport on
Form 8-K filed on January 17, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Curfeeport on

Form 8-K filed on January 17, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curfeeport on
Form 8-K filed on February 20, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CurfReport on

Form 8-K filed on May 16, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.58 to t6&@2Annual

Report on Form 10-K filed on June 17, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curfeeport on

Form 8-K filed on August 12, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CuriReport on
Form 8-K filed on August 12, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curfeeport on
Form 8-K filed on August 30, 2013.
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Number Description of Exhibit Method of Filing
10.47 Option Purchase Agreement, dated as of OctobedXB,by Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CurfReport on
and between Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. anevigel Form 8-K filed on October 10, 2013.
Joffe
10.48 Eighth Amendment to the Financing Agreement, dated Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Curfeeport on
of October 9, 2013, among Motorcar Parts of America Form 8-K filed on October 10, 2013.
Inc., each lender from time to time party ther&erberus
Business Finance, LLC, as collateral agent, and Bhidk,
National Association, as administrative ag
10.49 Ninth Amendment and Waiver to the Financing Agreety Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to QuértReport on
dated as of November 6, 2013, among Motorcar Bérts Form 10-Q filed on November 12, 2013.
America, Inc., each lender from time to time pahgreto,
Cerberus Business Finance, LLC, as collateral ageat
PNC Bank, National Association, as administratigersd
10.50 Amended and Restated Financing Agreement, datefl as  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to AmehQeiarterly
November 6, 2013, among Motorcar Parts of Amelita, Report on Form 10-Q/A filed on February 10, 2014.
each lender from time to time party thereto, Carber
Business Finance, LLC, as collateral agent, and Bhigk,
National Association, as administrative ag
10.51 Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Financing Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to ther€ot Report ol
Agreement, dated as of December 11, 2014, among Form 8-K filed on December 12, 2014.
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc., each lender frametto
time party thereto, Cerberus Business Finance, ldsC,
collateral agent, and PNC Bank, National Associgtas
administrative ager
10.52 Fourth Amendment to Amended and Restated Financing Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to ther€ot Report ol
Agreement, dated as of April 30, 2015, among Maorc Form 8-K filed on May 1, 2015.
Parts of America, Inc., each lender from time hoeti
party thereto, Cerberus Business Finance, LLC, as
collateral agent, and PNC Bank, National Associgtas
administrative ager
14.1 Motorcar Parts of America, Inc., Code of Businessdiict Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to Curfeeport on
and Ethics, as amended, effective January 15, Form &K filed on January 20, 201
21.1 List of Subsidiarie: Filed herewith
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking Filed herewith.

Ernst & Young LLP
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31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection Filed herewith.
302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2C

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuawt $ection Filed herewith.
302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2C

31.3 Certification of Chief Accounting Officer pursuatiot Section  Filed herewith.
302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2C

32.1 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer, Chiefri@ncial Filed herewith.
Officer and Chief Accounting Officer pursuant tac8en 906
of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 20

101.1 The following financial information from MotorcaraRs of Filed herewith.
America, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for tiecal
year ended March 31, 2015, formatted in Extenddbisiness
Reporting Language (“XBRL") and furnished electically
herewith: (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheetstl{i)
Consolidated Statements of Operations; (iii) thes@tidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss), (iv) the
Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equityti{e)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows; and (viNties to
Consolidated Financial Stateme

* Portions of this exhibit have been granted confiid¢treatment by the SE(
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 15(d) @&écurities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrastduly caused this report to be signec
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duth@nized.

MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC

Dated: June 15, 2015 By: /s/ David Lee

David Lee

Chief Financial Office
Dated: June 15, 2015 By: /s/ Kevin Daly

Kevin Daly

Chief Accounting Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Report on Form 10-K has lzgned by the following persons on
behalf of the Registrant in the capacities andchendates indicated:

/sl Selwyn Joffe Chief Executive Officer and Director June 2615
Selwyn Joffe (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ David Lee Chief Financial Officer June 15, 2015
David Lee (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ Kevin Daly Chief Accounting Officer June 15, 2015
Kevin Daly (Principal Accounting Officer)
/sl Mel Marks Director June 15, 2015
Mel Marks
/s/ Scott Adelsol Director June 15, 2015
Scott Adelsor
/s/ Rudolph Borne Director June 15, 2015
Rudolph Bornec
/s/ Philip Gay Director June 15, 2015
Philip Gay
/s/ Duane Millel Director June 15, 2015

Duane Miller

/sl Jeffrey Mirvis Director June 15, 2015
Jeffrey Mirvis
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of MotoR=ts of America, Inc.

We have audited Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. sulosidiaries’ internal control over financial refimg as of March 31, 2015 based on
criteria established in Internal Control-Integrakgdmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorirgafizations of the Treadway
Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria) tdfoar Parts of America, Inc. and subsidiaries’ agggment is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over finaalcieporting, and for its assessment of the effeatss of internal control over financial
reporting included in the accompanying Managemere&port on Internal Control over Financial Repati®ur responsibility is to express an
opinion on the company'’s internal control over fingl reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri8q@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigéénternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is:. audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etasting and evaluating the design and operatifegfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegeinerally accepted accounting princip
A company'’s internal control over financial repodiincludes those policies and procedures thai€ftrin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatp@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely detectfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @étaisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegibecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. aubsidiaries maintained, in all material respesffective internal control over financial
reporting as of March 31, 2015, based on COSOrite

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the consolida
balance sheets of Motorcar Parts of America, Ind.subsidiaries as of March 31, 2015 and 2014 {lamdelated consolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive income (loss), sharetgldguity and cash flows for each of the threey@athe period ended March 31, 2015
our report dated June 15, 2015 expressed an ufigdapinion.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Los Angeles, Californii
June 15, 201
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of MotoR=ts of America, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. aribisliaries (the “Company”) as of
March 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related conselidstatements of operations, comprehensive inctosg)(shareholders' equity and cash
flows for each of the three years in the periodeghillarch 31, 2015. Our audits also included tharfaial statement schedule listed in the
index at Item 15(a)(2). These financial statemants schedule are the responsibility of the Comgamgnagement. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statememtseamedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBqUnited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtadsonable assurance about whether the finastaiainents are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thatodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of Motorcar
Parts of America, Inc. and subsidiaries at March2®815 and 2014, and the consolidated resultseif tiperations and their cash flows for €
of the three years in the period ended March 3152 conformity with U.S. generally accepted againg principles. Also, in our opinion,
the related financial statement schedule, whenideresd in relation to the basic consolidated finalnstatements taken as a whole, presents
fairly in all material respects the information $ath therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blo@/nited States), Motorcar Parts of
America, Inc.'s internal control over financial ogfing as of March 31, 2015, based on criterialdisfaed in Internal Control-Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imations of the Treadway Commission (2013 franv&jvand our report dated June
15, 2015 expressean unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Los Angeles, Californii
June 15, 201
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
March 31,

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash
Shor-term investment
Accounts receivabl— net
Inventory— net
Inventory unreturne:
Deferred income taxe
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current asse
Plant and equipmer— net
Long-term core inventor— net
Long-term core inventory deposi
Long-term deferred income tax
Intangible asset— net
Other assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Customer finished goods returns acci
Accrued core paymel
Revolving loar
Other current liabilitie:
Current portion of term loan
Total current liabilities
Term loan, less current portit
Deferred core revent
Long-term accrued core payme
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingenci
Shareholders' equit
Preferred stock; par value $.01 per share, 5,000:8@res authorized; none issi
Series A junior participating preferred stock; palue $.01 per share, 20,000 shares authorized non
issued

Common stock; par value $.01 per share, 50,000s886es authorized; 17,974,598 and 15,067,645 st

issued and outstanding at March 31, 2015 and 2@spectively
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive |i
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)

Total shareholders' equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

2015 2014
$ 61,230,00 $ 24,599,00
699,00( 521,00
24,799,00  22,283,00
56,829,00  47,246,00
7,833,001 7,534,00
22,998,00  18,767,00
7,407,001 4,316,00!
181,79500  125,266,00
12,535,00  11,025,00
188,950,00  143,476,00
31,571,00  29,375,00
261,00( 2,614,001
2,574,001 3,244,00
4,074,00 3,853,00!
$421,760,00 $318,853,00
$ 61,893,00 $ 59,509,00
10,096,00 8,316,00!
19,678,00  16,251,00
13,190,00 -

- 10,000,00

2,471,001 1,270,00
7,843,001 7,843,00
115171,00  103,189,00
72,258,00  79,434,00

- 15,065,00

23,880,00 -
20,248,00  11,529,00
231,557,00  209,217,00
180,00 151,00
191,279,00  120,553,00
(2,518,001 (877,000)
1,262,000  (10,191,00)
190,203,00 _ 109,636,00
$421,760,00 $318,853,00

The accompanying notes to consolidated financééstents are an integral part hereof.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
Net sales $301,711,00 $258,669,00 $ 213,151,00
Cost of goods sold 220,138,00 177,103,00 143,810,00
Gross profit 81,573,00 81,566,00 69,341,00
Operating expense
General and administratiy 37,863,00 39,684,00 25,807,00
Sales and marketir 7,851,00! 7,838,001 7,290,001
Research and development 2,273,00! 1,940,001 1,930,00!
Total operating expenses 47,987,00 49,462,00 35,027,00
Operating incom: 33,586,00 32,104,00 34,314,00
Interest expense, net 13,065,00 18,289,00 12,324,00
Income from continuing operations before incomeeapenst 20,521,00 13,815,00 21,990,00
Income tax expense 9,068,00! 7,333,001 7,432,001
Income from continuing operatiol 11,453,00 6,482,001 14,558,00
Income (loss) from discontinued operations - 100,877,00  (106,069,00)
Net income (loss $ 11,453,00 $107,359,00 $ (91,511,00)
Basic net income per share from continuing openal $ 0.6¢ $ 0.4t $ 1.01
Basic net income (loss) per share from discontimygtations - 6.8¢ (7.40
Basic net income (loss) per share $ 0.6¢ $ 734 $ (6.39)
Diluted net income per share from continuing openret $ 0.6t $ 04z $ 1.01
Diluted net income (loss) per share from discorgthaperations - 6.5¢ (7.37)
Diluted net income (loss) per share $ 0.6t $ 7.01 $ (6.3€)
Weighted average number of shares outstani
Basic 16,734,53 14,633,94 14,327,31
Diluted 17,605,94 15,317,93 14,385,51

The accompanying notes to consolidated financééstents are an integral part hereof.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (ks)
Years Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
Net income (loss $ 11,453,00 $107,359,00 $ (91,511,00)
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of
Unrealized gain on short-term investments (nearfdf $16,000, $22,000, and $11,00
respectively’ 24,00( 34,00( 162,00(
Foreign currency translation loss (1,665,00) (65,000 (124,000
Total other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax (1,641,00) (31,000 38,00(
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 9,812,000 $107,328,00 $ (91,473,00)

The accompanying notes to consolidated financékstents are an integral part hereof.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity
For the Years Ended March 31,

Common Stock

Treasury Stock

Additional
Paid-in Additional ~ Accumulated Retained
Capital Paid-in Other Earnings
Common Capital Comprehensive (Accumulated
Shares  Amount Shares Amount Stock Warrants  Income (Loss) Deficit) Total

12,533,82 $125,00(

Compensation recognized under emplc

(14,400 $ (89,000 $ 98,627,00 $ 1,879,000 $

(884,000 $ (26,039,00) $ 73,619,00

stock plans - - - - 752,00( - - - 752,00(
Common stock issued under stock plans, n
shares withheld for employee tay 52,53( 1,00( 241,00( 242,00(
Repurchase of options grani (455,00() (455,00()
Tax benefit from employee stock optic
exercisec - - - - 101,00( - - - 101,00(
Expired unexercised warrar 1,879,000 (1,879,001 -
Repurchase of common stock including f (52,947 (300,001 (300,000
Cancellation of treasury sto: (67,34) (1,000 67,347 389,00( (388,00() -
Common stock issued in connection with P 1,936,001 20,00( - - 14,985,00 - - - 15,005,00
Stock issuance cos - - - - (1,034,00i) - (1,034,001
Common stock issued in lieu of cash for P
liquidated damage 5,97¢ - - - 29,00( 29,00(
Unrealized gain on investments, net of - - - - - - 162,00( - 162,00(
Foreign currency translatic - - - - - - (124,000 - (124,000
Net loss - - - - - - - (91,511,00) (91,511,00)
Balance at March 31, 20: 14,460,97 $145,00( - $ - $114,737,00 $ - $ (846,00() $ (117,550,00) $ (3,514,00)
Compensation recognized under emplc
stock plans - - - - 969,00( - - - 969,00(
Common stock issued under stock plans, n
shares withheld for employee ta 606,66! 6,00( 5,760,001 5,766,001
Repurchase of options grant (627,000 (627,00()
Tax benefit from employee stock optic
exercisec - - - - (286,00() - - - (286,000
Unrealized gain on investments, net of - - - - - - 34,00( - 34,00(
Foreign currency translatic - - - - - - (65,000 - (65,000
Net income - - - - - - - 107,359,00 107,359,00
Balance at March 31, 20: 15,067,64 $151,00( - $ - $120,553,00 $ - $ (877,000 $ (10,191,00) $109,636,00
Compensation recognized under emplc
stock plans - - - - 2,210,00! - - - 2,210,001
Common stock issued under stock plans, n
shares withheld for employee tay 123,73 1,00( 1,246,00 1,247,001
Issuance of common stock upon vesting of
RSUs,net of shares withheld for employe
taxes 23,21¢ - (806,001) (806,001
Tax benefit from employee stock optic
exercisec - - - - 1,131,00 - - - 1,131,001
Common stock issued in connection with
public offering 2,760,000  28,00( - - 71,732,00 - - - 71,760,00
Stock issuance cos - - - - (4,787,00i) - (4,787,001
Unrealized gain on investments, net of - - - - - - 24,00( - 24,00(
Foreign currency translatic - - - - - - (1,665,001 - (1,665,001
Net income - - - - - - - 11,453,00 11,453,00
Balance at March 31, 20: 17,974,59 $180,00( - $ - $191,279,00 $ - $ (2518000 $ 1,262,000 $190,203,00

The accompanying notes to consolidated financékstents are an integral part hereof.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended March 31,

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income (loss
Less income (loss) from discontinued operations

Income from continuing operatiol

Adjustments to reconcile net income from continuapgrations to net cash (used in)

provided by operating activitie
Depreciatior
Amortization of intangible asse
Amortization of deferred financing cc
Loss due to change in fair value of warrant lidpi
Gain on extinguishment of warrant liabili
Gain on redemption of short term investm
Provision for inventory reservt
Provision for (recovery of) customer payment diperecies
Provision for (recovery of) doubtful accoul
Deferred income taxe
Shar-based compensation expe!
Impact of tax benefit on APIC pool from stock optsoexercise:
Loss on disposal of ass¢
Changes in current assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl
Inventory
Inventory unreturne:
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Other asset
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Customer finished goods returns accl
Deferred core revent
Long-term core inventor
Long-term core inventory deposit
Accrued core paymel
Other liabilities
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activitiesn continuing operatior
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activitiesn discontinued operations
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activi
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchase of plant and equipm:
Change in short term investments
Net cash used in investing activities from contirguoperation:
Net cash used in investing activities from discomtid operations
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activitie
Borrowings under revolving log
Repayments under revolving lo
Proceeds from term log
Repayments of term lo¢
Deferred financing cos
Payments on capital lease obligati
Exercise of stock optior
Tax benefit from employee stock options exerci
Cash used to net share settle equity aw
Repurchase of common stock and options, includdeg
Repurchase of warran
Proceeds from issuance of common si
Stock issuance costs
Net cash provided by financing activities from doning operation:
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activifieen discontinued operations
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Net increase (decrease) in Ci
Cash— Beginning of period from continuing operatic

2015 2014 2013
$ 11,453,00 $107,359,00 $ (91,511,00)
- 100,877,00  (106,069,00)
11,453,00 6,482,001 14,558,00
1,851,00 2,003,001 2,076,001
670,00 739,00 773,00(
1,702,00 4,574,001 1,702,001
459,00  10,443,00 389,00

- (216,000 -

(4,000) - -
1,635,001 1,620,001 1,814,001
91,00( (10,000 536,00
184,00( (47,000) 166,00(
5,831,000  20,124,00 1,561,001
2,209,001 969,00 1,083,001
- 569,00 70,00

16,00( 9,00( 3,00(
(2,790,00)  (18,342,00) 5,940,001
(10,239,00)  (14,478,00)  (1,491,00)
(299,00() (552,000  (1,296,00)
(3,451,00) 3,689,001 (4,063,001
(491,000 (463,000 (321,00()
3,621,000  18,965,00  (10,300,00)
3,427,001 1,961,001 3,242,001
(15,065,00) 3,051,001 2,239,001
(46,466,00)  (26,519,00)  (22,993,00)
(2,196,00)  (1,766,00) (671,00()
37,070,00 - -
1,325,00 485,00 225,00
(9,457,00)  13,290,00 (4,758,00)
- 227,000 (26,303,00)
(9,457,00) ~ 13,517,00  (31,061,00)
(3,734,00)  (2,978,00)  (2,330,00)
(134,001 (54,000) (41,000
(3,868,00)  (3,032,00) _ (2,371,00)
- (295,000  (1,698,00)
(3,868,00)  (3,327,00) _ (4,069,00)
- 10,000,00 -
(10,000,00) - -
- 20,000,00 10,000,00
(8,400,00)  (11,600,00) (500,00()
- (5,221,00)) (799,00()

(64,000) (196,00() (289,00()
1,247,001 5,766,001 74,00(
1,131,001 (286,00() 101,00
(806,001 - (163,000

- (627,000 (755,00()

- (2,194,00) -
71,760,00 - 15,004,00
(4,787,00) - (1,034,00)
50,081,00 15,642,00 21,639,00
- (20,636,00) 263,00
50,081,00 (4,994,00) _ 21,902,00
(125,000 (31,000) 45,00(
36,631,00 5,165,000  (13,183,00)
24,599,00 19,346,00 32,379,00



Cash — Beginning of period from discontinued ogers
Cash— End of perioc

Less Cash — End of period from discontinued openati
Cash — End of period from continuing operations

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informat
Cash paid during the period fc
Interest, ne
Income taxes, net of refun
Non-cash investing and financing activiti
Property acquired under capital lei
Warrants issued in connection with d

- 88,00( 238,00(

61,230,00 24,599,00 19,434,00

- - 88,00(

$ 61,230,00 $ 24,599,000 $ 19,346,00
$ 11,369,00 $ 14,647,000 $ 22,923,00
4,918,001 (16,472,00) 8,128,001

$ 274,000 $ 303,000 $ 155,00(
- - 1,625,001

The accompanying notes to consolidated financééstents are an integral part hereof.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Company Background and Organization
Overview

Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. and its subsid&(ige “Company”, or “MPA”) is a leading manufaaurremanufacturer, and distributor of
aftermarket automotive parts. These replacemens pag sold for use on vehicles after initial véhgurchase. These automotive parts are sol
to automotive retail chain stores and warehoudeildisors throughout North America and to majorcambbile manufacturers for both their
aftermarket programs and warranty replacement progr(“OES”). The Company’s products include rottectrical products such as
alternators and starters, wheel hub assembliebearihgs, and new brake master cylinders. The Coynpeagan selling new brake master
cylinders to a major customer in late July 2014.

The Company obtains used automotive parts, comniordwn as Used Cores, primarily from its customarder the Company’s core
exchange program. It also purchases Used Coresvieoihors (core brokers). The customers grant ctedite consumer when the used part is
returned to them, and the Company in turn provaesedit to the customers upon return to the CompHlmese Used Cores are an essential
material needed for the remanufacturing operations.

The Company has remanufacturing, warehousing aipgisly/receiving operations for automotive parttNiorth America and Asia. In additic
the Company utilizes various third party warehodis&ibution centers in North America.

Pursuant to the guidance provided under the FiahAcicounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accountingu®lards Codification (“ASC"), for
segment reporting the Company has determinedtthapéerating segments meet the criteria for aggigand accordingly the Company has
one reportable segment for purposes of recordidgeporting its financial results.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemientade the accounts of Motorcar Parts of Amerina, and its wholly owned subsidiaries.
All significant inter-company accounts and tran&att have been eliminated. The Company has claddfenco (as defined in Note 3)
operations as discontinued operations in the acaagipg consolidated financial statements as atre$tihe Fenco Entities (as defined in Note
3) voluntary petition for relieve under Chapterf7rale 11 of the United States Code in the U.SnBaptcy Court for the District of Delaware
on June 10, 2013 (see Note 3).

Reclassification of Prior Period Balances

Certain reclassifications have been made to peaod amounts to conform to the current year pragiem.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash primarily consists of cash on hand and bapkgies. Cash equivalents consist of money marketfuThe Company considers all highly
liquid investments purchased with an original anaining maturity of less than three months at thie @f purchase to be cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with wsfioancial institutions.

Accounts Receivable

The allowance for doubtful accounts is developesttaipon several factors including customer copdhtity, historical write-off experience

and any known specific issues or disputes whichtesd of the balance sheet date. Accounts receiaablwritten off only when all collection
attempts have failed. The Company does not regoitateral for accounts receivable.
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The Company has receivable discount programs that heen established with certain major customeatgteeir respective banks. Under thes
programs, the Company has the option to sell thastoomers’ receivables to those banks at a disdourg agreed upon at the time the
receivables are sold. Once the customer choosehwhistanding invoices are going to be made adaifr discounting, the Company can
accept or decline the bundle of invoices providétk receivable discount programs are non-recoarsefunds cannot be reclaimed by the
customer or its bank after the related invoicesHaeen discounted.

Inventory
Nor-core Inventory

Non-core inventory is comprised of (i) non-core rawtemials, (ii) the non-core value of work in proce@i) the non-core value of rotating
electrical finished goods, and (iv) purchased fiei$ goods. Used Cores, the Used Core value of ingrkocess and the Remanufactured Core
portion of finished goods are classified as longateore inventory as described below under thei@aptong-term Core Inventory.” Used
Cores are a source of raw materials used in thaifaaiuring of the Company’s rotating electrical guots.

Non-core inventory is stated at the lower of cost arket. The cost of non-core remanufactured invgrapproximates average historical
purchase prices paid for raw materials, and isdapen the direct costs of material and an allocadif labor and variable and fixed overhead
costs. The cost of purchased finished goods invermpproximates average historical purchase ppeés, and an allocation of fixed overhead
costs. The cost of non-core inventory is evaluatddast quarterly during the fiscal year and adjiisis necessary to reflect current lower of
cost or market levels. These adjustments are ditedhfior individual items of inventory within eaofithe three classifications of non-core
inventory as follows:

e Nonr-core raw materials are recorded at average cbéthwis based on the actual purchase price of raterals on hand. The average
cost is updated quarterly. This average cost id irsthe inventory costing process and is the Hasiallocation of materials to finished
goods during the production proce

e Non-core work in process is in various stages of pctidn and is valued at the average cost of mageisalied to open work orders.
Historically, nor-core work in process inventory has not been matesiapared to the total n-core inventory balanc

e The cost of remanufactured finished goods inclubesaverage cost of non-core raw materials andaitns of labor and variable and
fixed overhead. The allocations of labor and vdeand fixed overhead costs are determined baséitecaverage actual use of the
production facilities over the prior twelve montlikich approximates normal capacity. This method@nés the distortion in allocated
labor and overhead costs that would occur durimgtgreriods of abnormally low or high production.dddition, the Company excludes
certain unallocated overhead such as severancg dogliicative facility overhead costs, and sp@l&gm the calculation and expenses
these unallocated overhead as period costs. Dfisicg) 2015 there was no unallocated overhead eldadgectly to cost of sales due to
the usage of the Company’s U.S. facilities for whes products and new brake master cylinder prisddor the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2014 and 2013, costs of approximatel@®#1,000, and $1,561,000, respectively, were corsitenallocated overhead
charged directly to cost of sales and thus excldded the calculation of the cost for remanufactifieished goods

The Company records an allowance for potentiallyesz and obsolete inventory based upon recenttsatesy, the quantity of inventory on-
hand, and a forecast of potential use of the irorgnThe Company periodically reviews inventoryidentify excess quantities and part
numbers that are experiencing a reduction in demanyg part numbers with quantities identified dgrithis process are reserved for at rates
based upon management’s judgment, historical ratebconsideration of possible scrap and liquidgedimlues which may be as high as 100%
of cost if no liquidation market exists for the par

The quantity thresholds and reserve rates are ctilgeand are based on management’s judgment ansll&dge of current and projected
industry demand. The reserve estimates may, therdfe revised if there are changes in the overatket for the Company’s products or
market changes that in management’s judgment, itifsa&bility to sell or liquidate potentially exegor obsolete inventory. The Company ha
recorded $2,675,000 and $2,708,000 for excess lasmleie inventory at March 31, 2015 and 2014, respy.
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The Company records vendor discounts as a reductimventories that are recognized as a redut¢ta@ost of sales as the inventories are
sold.

Inventory Unreturne(

Inventory unreturned represents the Compsegtimate, based on historical data and prosgeictiormation provided directly by the custon

of finished goods shipped to customers that the j@2my expects to be returned after the balance sladetBecause all cores are classified
separately as long-term assets, the inventory ummed balance includes only the added unit valdeished goods. The return rate is
calculated based on expected returns within thmaboperating cycle of one year. As such, the edlamounts are classified in current assets

Inventory unreturned is valued in the same mans¢ha Company’s finished goods inventory.
Long-term Core Inventory
Long-term core inventory consists of;

e Used Cores purchased from core brokers and héfdémtory at the Compa’s facilities,

e Used Cores returned by the Comg’s customers and held in inventory at the Com’s facilities,

e Used Cores returned by end-users to customersobyenreturned to the Company are classified asd®efactured Cores until they
are physically received by the Compa

e Remanufactured Cores held in finished goods invgrabthe Compar's facilities; anc

e Remanufactured Cores held at customer locatioaspast of finished goods sold to the customer.tkese Remanufactured Cores, the
Company expects the finished good containing thedeifactured Core to be returned under the Compageyieral right of return
policy or a similar Used Core to be returned toGoenpany by the customer, in each case, for ct

Long-term core inventory is recorded at averagmhizal purchase prices determined based on aptuahases of inventory on hand. The cost
and market value of Used Cores for which sufficieent purchases have occurred are deemed theasaime purchase price for purchases
that are made in arm’s length transactions.

Long-term core inventory recorded at average hisabpurchase prices is primarily made up of UsedeS for newer products related to more
recent automobile models or products for whichetiera less liquid market. The Company must puketiasse Used Cores from core brokers
because its customers do not have a sufficientlgabphese newer Used Cores available for the egphange program.

Used Cores obtained in core broker transactionsalted based on average purchase price. The avptaighase price of Used Cores for ir
recent automobile models is retained as the coshése Used Cores in subsequent periods evemr astince of these Used Cores shifts to the
core exchange program.

Long-term core inventory is recorded at the lowfecast or market value. In the absence of sufficienent purchases, the Company uses cor:
broker price lists to assess whether Used Coreesmsteds Used Core market value on an item byhitesis. The primary reason for the
insufficient recent purchases is that the Compadgins most of its Used Core inventory from thetaoer core exchange program.

The Company classifies all of its core inventoasdong-term assets. The determination of the teng-classification is based on its view that
the value of the cores is not consumed or realizedsh during the Company’s normal operating gywlach is one year for most of the cores
recorded in inventory. According to guidance preddinder the FASB ASC, current assets are defiaédsaets or resources commonly
identified as those which are reasonably expectdnt trealized in cash or sold or consumed duriaghdrmal operating cycle of the business.”
The Company does not believe that core inventowbg;h the Company classifies as long-term, aresaored because the credits issued upor
the return of Used Cores offset the amounts inebigken the Remanufactured Cores included in fimisi@ds were sold. The Company does
not expect the core inventories to be consumeditargithe Company does not expect to realize caglh jts relationship with a customer er

a possibility that the Company considers remotethas existing long-term customer agreements astdrigal experience.
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However, historically for certain finished good$dsdhe Company’s customer will not send the Conypaitused Core to obtain the credit the
Company offers under its core exchange programreftue, based on the Company’s historical estintaeeCompany derecognizes the core
value for these finished goods upon sale, as tepaay believes they have been consumed and the &gnimas realized cash.

The Company realizes cash for only the core exah@nogram shortfall. This shortfall representshistorical difference between the number
of finished goods shipped to customers and the eambUsed Cores returned to the Company by custriibe Company does not realize
cash for the remaining portion of the cores bec#useredits issued upon the return of Used Cdifsstthe amounts invoiced when the
Remanufactured Cores included in finished good®weld. The Company does not expect to realize foathe remaining portion of these
Remanufactured Cores until its relationship wittuatomer ends, a possibility that the Company clensiremote based on existing long-term
customer agreements and historical experience.

For these reasons, the Company concluded thatibis appropriate to classify core inventory agiiterm assets.
Long-term Core Inventory Deposit

The long-term core inventory deposit account regmesthe value of Remanufactured Cores the Comparghased from customers, which are
held by the customers and remain on the custompeggiises. The purchase is made through the isswémcedits against that customer’s
receivables either on a one-time basis or oveigagea-upon period. The credits against the custamegeivable are based upon the
Remanufactured Core purchase price previously ksftad with the customer. At the same time, the @amny records the long-term core
inventory deposit for the Remanufactured Coresimsed at its cost, determined as noted under Lemg-€ore Inventory. The long-term core
inventory deposit is stated at the lower of cogharket. The cost is established at the time ofrdresaction based on the then current cost,
determined as noted under Long-term Core Invenfng. difference between the credit granted anddisé of the long-term core inventory
deposit is treated as a sales allowance reducuemuoe. When the purchases are made over an agpeedsariod, the long-term core inventory
deposit is recorded at the same time the credisised to the customer for the purchase of the Refaetured Cores.

At least annually, and as often as quarterly, retiations and confirmations are performed to deiee that the number of Remanufactured
Cores purchased, but retained at the customeidosaremains sufficient to support the amountsmed in the long-term core inventory
deposit account. At the same time, the mix of Rarferiured Cores is reviewed to determine that §ggeate value of Remanufactured Ci
in the account has not changed during the repopimgpd. The Company evaluates the cost of conegasting the aggregate long-term core
inventory deposit account each quarter. If the Camygdentifies any permanent reduction in eithernbimber or the aggregate value of the
Remanufactured Core inventory mix held at the qustdocation, the Company will record a reductionhe long-term core inventory deposit
account resulting in a corresponding increase $b @bsales during that period.
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Customer Finished Goods Returns Accrual

The customer finished goods returns accrual reptegke Company’s estimate of its exposure to oustaeturns, including warranty returns,
under its general policy to allow customers tomeitems that their end user customers have retuménem and from time to time, stock
adjustment returns when the customers’ inventorgeofain products exceeds the anticipated salesdaiser customers. The customer finis|
goods returns accrual represents the came-sales value of the estimated returns andssified as a current liability due to the expéatathal
these returns will occur within the normal opergtaycle of one year.

Accrued Core Payment

The accrued core payment represents the full Refaetowed Core sales price of Remanufactured Cbhee€bmpany has purchased from its
customers, which are held by these customers andimeon their premises. At the same time, the Caompecords the long-term core
inventory for the Remanufactured Cores purchaséd abst, determined as noted under the capti@mgkterm Core Inventory”. The
difference between the full Remanufactured Coresspfice of Remanufactured Cores and its relatstli€dreated as sales allowance reducin
revenue when the purchases are made.

The repayments for these Remanufactured Core lomeptirchases are made through the issuance afscegghinst that customerteceivable
either on a one time basis or over an agreed-uptog The accrued core payments are recordedreentand non-current liability in the
consolidated balance sheets based on whether repéymill occur within the normal operating cycleone year.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using thditiamethod, which measures deferred income tdoyeapplying enacted statutory rate
effect at the balance sheet date to the differebetgeen the tax basis of assets and liabilitiesthair reported amounts in the financial
statements. The resulting asset or liability isiatjd to reflect changes in the tax laws as theyro@ valuation allowance is provided to
reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likedy not that a portion of the deferred tax asskinwai be realized.

The primary components of the Company’s incomeptaxision are (i) the current liability or refunde for federal, state and foreign income
taxes and (ii) the change in the amount of thede&rred income tax asset, including the effeetryf change in the valuation allowance.

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent thmCompany’s ability to generate sufficient fettaxable income. The Company reviews
its deferred tax assets on a jurisdiction by jucoin basis to determine whether it is more likiélgn not that the deferred tax assets will be
realized. The Company believes that it is moréyikiean not that future taxable income will be gi€nt to realize the recorded deferred tax
assets. In evaluating this ability, the Companysaers long-term agreements and Remanufacturedpiocbase obligations with each of its
major customers that expire at various dates thrddgrch 2019. The Company periodically compare®itscasts to actual results. Although
there can be no assurance that the forecastedsrasiibe achieved, the history of income in altigdictions provides sufficient positive
evidence that no valuation allowance is needed.

Plant and Equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost, less adatedwepreciation. The cost of additions and imenoents are capitalized, while
maintenance and repairs are charged to expenseintierned. Depreciation is provided on a straigihé-basis in amounts sufficient to relate
the cost of depreciable assets to operations beérdstimated service lives. Machinery and equipiraee depreciated over a range from fiv
ten years. Office equipment and fixtures are deated over a range from three to ten years. Leddefmprovements are depreciated over the
lives of the respective leases or the service lbfgbe leasehold improvements, whichever is shobiepreciation of assets recorded under
capital leases is included in depreciation expense.
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I ntangible Assets

The Company’s intangible assets other than goodwallfinite—lived and amortized on a straight lxasis over their respective useful lives.
Finite-lived intangible assets are analyzed foraimpent when and if indicators of impairment ex#ss.of March 31, 2015, there were no
indicators of impairment.

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs include fees and costsried to obtain financing. The fees and costs fialdnders under the Company’s financing
agreement are recorded as an offset to the temnalod the fees and costs paid to third party noddes are recorded in other assets in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Thesafekcosts are amortized using the straight-liethad, which approximates the effective
interest rate method, over the terms of the rellmtads and are included in interest expense ilCtirapany’s consolidated statements of
operations.

Foreign Currency Trandation

For financial reporting purposes, the functionatency of the foreign subsidiaries is the localrency. The assets and liabilities of foreign
operations for which the local currency is the tiomal currency are translated into the U.S. ddlathe exchange rate in effect at the balance
sheet date, while revenues and expenses are texhalzaverage exchange rates during the yearadthenulated foreign currency translation
adjustment is presented as a component of compsiteeincome or loss in the consolidated statemeshareholders’ equity.

Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue when performantieeb@ompany is complete and all of the followingeria have been met:

e Persuasive evidence of an arrangement e:

e Delivery has occurred or services have been redd

e The selle’s price to the buyer is fixed or determinable,

e Collectability is reasonably assure
For products shipped free-on-board (“FOB”) shippiregnt, revenue is recognized on the date of shippnfr products shipped FOB
destination, revenues are recognized on the estihtatactual date of delivery. The Company inclustépping and handling charges in its
gross invoice price to customers and classifiegdtad amount as revenue. Shipping and handlints@rge recorded as cost of sales.
The price of a finished rotating electrical prodseold to customers is generally comprised of séplgranvoiced amounts for the
Remanufactured Core included in the product (“Reufastured Core value”) and for the value addeddoyanufacturing (“unit value”). Unit
value revenue is recorded based on the Compangs Ist, net of applicable discounts and allowandehe Company allows customers to
return slow moving and other inventory. The Compprovides for such returns of inventory by redudiegenue and cost of sales for the unit
value of goods sold that are expected to be retiipased on a historical return analysis and inftionabbtained from customers about current
stock levels as further described under the captiG@ustomer Finished Goods Returns Accrual” andéhtory Unreturned”.
The Company accounts for revenues and cost of salaset-of-core-value basis. The Company hasmdé&ted that its business practices and
contractual arrangements result in a significamtipo of the Remanufactured Cores sold being requlday similar Used Cores sent back for

credit by customers under the Compangre exchange program. Accordingly, the Compawijudes the value of Remanufactured Cores -
revenue.
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When the Company ships a product, it recognizesbéigation to accept a similar Used Core sent haaler the core exchange program by

recording a contra receivable account based uppRé&manufactured Core price agreed upon by the &oyrgind its customer. Upon receip

a Used Core, the Company grants the customer & beesid on the Remanufactured Core price billelrastores the Used Core to on-hand
inventory.

When the Company ships a product, it invoices sedastomers for the Remanufactured Core portiath@foroduct at full Remanufactured
Core sales price. For these Remanufactured Chvee§;dmpany recognizes core revenue based uporieuaiesof the rate at which the
Company'’s customers will pay cash for Remanufadt@eres in lieu of sending back similar Used Cdoe<redits under the Company’s core
exchange program.

In addition, the Company recognizes revenue relmdétemanufactured Cores originally sold at a n@inimice and not expected to be repla
by a similar Used Core under the core exchangeranogUnlike the full price Remanufactured Cores, @ompany only recognizes revenue
from nominally priced Remanufactured Cores not etgukto be replaced by a similar Used Core serk bader the core exchange program
when the Company believes it has met all of thiefahg criteria:

e The Company has a signed agreement with the custwowering the nominally priced Remanufactured Garet expected to be
replaced by a similar Used Core sent back undecdhe exchange program. This agreement must spibeifgjumber of
Remanufactured Cores its customer will pay casinféeu of sending back a similar Used Core arallihsis on which the nominally
priced Remanufactured Cores are to be valued (riyrthe average price per Remanufactured Core lstied in the agreemen

e The contractual date for reconciling the Compamgtrds and customsrtecords of the number of nominally priced Remaaiuirec
Cores not expected to be replaced by a similar \@s#d sent back under the core exchange prograrnbaus the current or a prior
period.

e The reconciliation of the nominally priced Remartifised Cores must be completed and agreed to byustemer
e The amount must be billed to the custon
Deferred Core Revenue

For certain customers, the Company had agreecipdht to buy back Remanufactured Cores relategisting product offerings with such
customers. The Company had deferred core revenuetfrese customers until there was no expectatiatthe sales allowances associated
with Remanufactured Core buybacks from these customould offset Remanufactured Core revenuesitbatd otherwise be recognized.
During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, then@any was able to estimate the cost of the rem@iRemanufactured Cores that can be
bought back in the future from these customersrdtbes, the Company recognized previously defecare revenue of $16,331,000 and
associated cost of goods sold, partly offset bg@mued sales allowance of $3,706,000 for futuseliacks of Remanufactured Cores.

Marketing Allowances

The Company records the cost of all marketing adloges provided to its customers. Such allowanadsda sales incentives and concessions
Voluntary marketing allowances related to a sirggfdehange of product are recorded as a reductioevehues at the time the related revenues
are recorded or when such incentives are offerélter@narketing allowances, which may only be apipdigainst future purchases, are recol
as a reduction to revenues in accordance with edsté set forth in the relevant contract. Salesritice amounts are recorded based on the
value of the incentive provided. See Note 15 fdescription of all marketing allowances.
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Advertising Costs

The Company expenses all advertising costs asredtufAdvertising expenses from the Company’s cairiign operations for the fiscal years
ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were $224%X05,000 and $343,000, respectively.

Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic net income (loss) per share is computed \adidg net income (loss) by the weighted averagalmer of shares of common stock
outstanding during the period. Diluted net incomosg) per share includes the effect, if any, frbmm potential exercise or conversion of
securities, such as stock options and warrantg;hwhiduld result in the issuance of incremental shaf common stock.

The following presents a reconciliation of basid @iluted net income (loss) per share.

Years Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
Income from continuing operatiol $ 11,453,00 $ 6,482,000 $ 14,558,00
Income (loss) from discontinued operations - 100,877,00  (106,069,00)
Net income (loss $ 11,453,00 $107,359,00 $ (91,511,00)
Basic share 16,734,53 14,633,94 14,327,31
Effect of dilutive stock options and warrants 871,40: 683,98! 58,20¢
Diluted shares 17,605,94 15,317,93 14,385,51
Net income (loss) per shal
Basic net income per share from continuing openal $ 0.6¢ $ 04t $ 1.01
Basic net income (loss) per share from discontimtations - 6.8¢ (7.40
Basic net income (loss) per share $ 0.6¢ $ 734 $ (6.39)
Diluted net income per share from continuing openrat $ 0.6t $ 04z $ 1.01
Diluted net income (loss) per share from discorgthaperations - 6.5¢ (7.37)
Diluted net income (loss) per share $ 0.6t $ 7.01 $ (6.3€)

There were no anti-dilutive options or warrantstfee year ended March 31, 2015. The effect of iddudptions and warrants excludes (i)
77,000 shares subject to options with exerciseeprianging from $13.65 to $19.94 per share foyé&s ended March 31, 2014 and (ii)
1,922,334 shares subject to options and 735,48¢skabject to warrants with exercise prices ranfiom $5.83 to $15.06 per share for the
year ended March 31, 20— which were anti-dilutive.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial stateméntonformity with accounting principles geneyalccepted in the United States (“GAAP”)
requires management to make estimates and assasfiiat affect the reported amounts in the conatdiifinancial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could diffenfrinose estimates. On an on-going basis, the Coyrpaaiuates its estimates, including
those related to the carrying amount of plant apdpment; valuation of acquisition-related intarigibssets, impairment of long-lived assets,
valuation and return allowances for receivableggimories, and deferred income taxes; accrueditiabj warrant liability, share-based
compensation, and litigation and disputes.

The Company uses significant estimates in the tion of sales returns. These estimates are laséte Company'’s historical return rates
and an evaluation of estimated sales returns frmeunic customers.

The Company uses significant estimates in the tatlon of the lower of cost or market value of letggm core inventory.
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The Company’s calculation of inventory reservelags significant estimates. The basis for the imegy reserve is a comparison of inventory
on hand to historical production usage or salesmek.

The Company records its liability for self-insunedrkers’ compensation by including an estimatehefltability associated with total claims
incurred and reported as well as an estimate dfdhdities associated with incurred, but not repd, claims determined by applying the
Company’s historical claims development factort$oeistimate of the liabilities associated with imed and reported claims.

The Company uses significant estimates in the tion of its income tax provision or benefit bying forecasts to estimate whether it will
have sufficient future taxable income to realizediéferred tax assets. There can be no assurdmatekd Company’s taxable income will be
sufficient to realize such deferred tax assets.

The Company uses significant estimates in the avggcalculation of potential liabilities from uncair tax positions that are more likely than
not to occur.

A change in the assumptions used in the estimatesafes returns, inventory reserves and incomestaauld result in a difference in the rel:
amounts recorded in the Company’s consolidatediah statements.

Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash, short-term investmetcounts receivable, accounts payable and attabdities approximate their fair value
due to the short-term nature of these instrum@ifits.carrying amounts of the revolving loan, teren@nd other long-term liabilities
approximate their fair value based on current ridegistruments with similar characteristics.

Share-Based Payments

In accounting for share-based compensation awHrdsZompany follows the accounting guidance forityaased compensation, which
requires that the Company measure the cost of gm@plservices received in exchange for an awardufyeinstruments based on the grant-
date fair value of the award. The cost associaifustock options is estimated using the Black-$&hoption-pricing model. The cost
associated with restricted stock or restrictedlstotts is measured based on the number of shaseseg and the closing price of the
Company’s common stock on the grant date, subjezbmtinued employment. The cost of equity instrataés recognized in the consolidated
statements of operations on a straight-line basisdf estimated forfeitures) over the period dyiivhich an employee is required to provide
service in exchange for the award. Also, excesbeaefits realized are reported as a financing cdkiw.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model requiresitipait of subjective assumptions including the etpe volatility of the underlying stock
and the expected holding period of the option. Eregjective assumptions are based on both higt@d other information. Changes in the
values assumed and used in the model can mateafédigt the estimate of fair value.

The table below summarizes the Black-Scholes ogtiaing model assumptions used to derive the weijaverage fair value of the stock
options granted during the periods noted.

Years Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
Weighted average risk free interest 1 1.75% 1.8¢% 1.17%
Weighted average expected holding period (ye 5.01 5.8¢ 6.6(
Weighted average expected volatil 46.02% 48.15% 44.25%
Weighted average expected dividend yi - - -
Weighted average fair value of options grar $ 9.6 $ 5.1¢ $ 2.92
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Credit Risk

The majority of the Company’s sales are to lea@dingpmotive aftermarket parts suppliers. Managerbeimtves the credit risk with respect to
trade accounts receivable is limited due to the @amy’s credit evaluation process and the natuits @ustomers. However, should the
Company’s customers experience significant cash flmblems, the Company'’s financial position arglits of operations could be materially
and adversely affected, and the maximum amourdssf that would be incurred would be the outstandiegivable balance, Used Cores
expected to be returned by customer, and the \dltree Remanufactured Cores held at customerstitotaat March 31, 2015.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company has a deferred compensation plan ftaicenembers of management. The plan allows ppaiits to defer salary and bonuses.
The assets of the plan are held in a trust andutbect to the claims of the Compasigieneral creditors under federal and state lawseirver

of insolvency. Consequently, the trust qualifiesd®abbi trust for income tax purposes. The plas&ets consist primarily of mutual funds anc
are classified as available for sale. The investmare recorded at market value, with any unredlgaen or loss recorded as other
comprehensive income or loss in shareholders’ ggaidjustments to the deferred compensation ohtigadre recorded in operating expenses
During the year ended March 31, 2015, the Compadgemed $4,000 of its short-term investments ®ptyment of deferred compensation
liabilities. The Company did not redeem any okh®rt-term investments for the payment of defeamupensation liabilities during the year
ended March 31, 2014. The carrying value of plae&swas $699,000 and $521,000, and deferred caaty@m obligation was $699,000 and
$521,000 at March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectilying the years ended March 31, 2015, 2014, ad® 20 expense of $17,000, $10,000
and $8,000, respectively, was recorded for eachrgdated to the deferred compensation plan.

Comprehensive Income or Loss

Comprehensive income or loss is defined as thegehamequity during a period resulting from trangats and other events and circumstance:
from non-owner sources. The Company’s total comgmsive income or loss consists of net unrealizedrnre or loss from foreign currency
translation adjustments and unrealized gains eeksn short-term investments.

New Accounting Pronouncements
Income Taxe

In July 2013, the FASB issued guidance that requargities to present an unrecognized tax bemefd, portion of an unrecognized tax benefit,
as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for a reatipg loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, ¢aacredit carryforward when settlement in this
manner is available under the tax law and the Compgends to use the deferred tax asset for thiggqse. The amendments in this update ar
effective for fiscal years, and interim periodshinitthose fiscal years, beginning after Decembe20%3. The adoption of this guidance did
have any impact on the Company’s financial posjtiesults of operations or cash flows.

Discontinued Operation

In April 2014, the FASB issued guidance on repgrtiiscontinued operations. The new guidance chathgesriteria for determining which
disposals can be presented as discontinued opesatial modifies related disclosure requirementsledthe new guidance, a discontinued
operation is defined as a disposal of a componegtaup of components that is disposed of or issifeed as held for sale and represents a
strategic shift that has or will have a major effee an entity’s operations and financial resulltse guidance applies prospectively to new
disposals and new classifications of disposal gs@agpheld for sale after the effective date. Thedsrd is required to be adopted by public
business entities in annual periods beginning aafter December 15, 2014, and interim periods withbse annual periods. The Company
does not expect any impact on its financial posjtresults of operations or cash flows from thepdido of this guidance.
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Revenue Recognitic

In May 2014, the FASB issued guidance codified 8GA606, “Revenue Recognition - Revenue from Cotgraith Customers”, which
amends the guidance in the former ASC 605, “Rev&aeognition”. The new guidance is effective fonaal periods beginning after
December 15, 2016, and interim periods within tkeabrting period for a public company. Early apglion is not permitted. A full or modified
retrospective transition method is required. Then@any is currently evaluating the impact of thevisimns of this guidance to its consolidatec
financial statements.

Disclosure of Uncertainties about an En’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern

In August 2014, the FASB issued guidance which iregLan entity to evaluate whether there are cmmditor events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt aboutrttity’s ability to continue as a going concern witlone year after the date that the financial
statements are issued (or available to be issifer)nditions or events raise substantial doubt thaot alleviated, an entity should disclose
there is substantial doubt about the entity’s gbib continue as a going concern within one ydi@r she date that the financial statements are
issued (or available to be issued), along withpttiecipal conditions or events that raise substhaibubt, management’s evaluation of the
significance of those conditions or events in iefato the entity’s ability to meet its obligatioasd management’s plans that are intended to
mitigate those conditions. The new guidance isciffe for the annual period ending after Decemlier2016, and for annual periods and
interim periods thereafter. Early application isrpi#ted. The Company does not expect any impact on its fiimhposition, results of operatic
or cash flows from the adoption of this guidance.

Extraordinary Iltems

In January 2015, the FASB issued guidance thatldiegpincome statement presentation by eliminatimg concept of extraordinary items.
This guidance is effective for fiscal years, aniim periods within those fiscal years, beginrafigr December 15, 2015. A reporting entity
may apply the amendments prospectively or retrdagy to all prior periods presented in the finehstatements. Early adoption is permitted
provided that the guidance is applied from the teigig of the fiscal year of adoption. The Compaogginot expect any impact on its
consolidated financial statements from the adoptitihis guidance.

Debt Issuance Cos

In April 2015, the FASB issued guidance that reggilebt issuance costs related to a recognizatityiab be presented in the balance sheet a
a direct deduction from the carrying amount of #helbt liability. The amendments in this updateedfective for financial statements issued for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015,iaredim period within those fiscal years. The Camyp does not expect the adoption of this
guidance to have a material impact on its constdiifinancial statements.

3. Discontinued Operations and Deconsolidation oféhco

In May 2011, the Company purchased (i) all of thestanding equity of Fenwick Automotive Productmited (“FAPL"), (i) all of the
outstanding equity of Introcan, Inc., a Delawargooation (“Introcan”), and (iii) 1% of the outstding equity of Fapco S.A. de C.V,, a
Mexican variable capital company (“Fapco”) (colieety, “Fenco” and also referred to herein as ttis¢ontinued subsidiary”). Since FAPL
owned 99% of Fapco prior to these acquisitionsQbmpany owned 100% of Fapco.

Between May 2011 and its bankruptcy in June 20&8¢cB had been attempting to turn around its busirté@wvever, revenues generated by its
undercar product line segment were not sufficiergrtable Fenco to meet its operating expensesthrdrise implement its undercar product
line turnaround plan. Fenco had recurring operdtisges since the date of acquisition and had &imagcapital and equity deficiency.

In May 2013, FAPL appointed a new board of indegendlirectors, hired an independent chief restrigjuofficer and all its previously
existing officers resigned from FAPL. As a restltass of control of Fenco, the Company deconstdiddéhe assets and liabilities of Fenco
from its consolidated financial statements effectiday 31, 2013. On June 10, 2013, each of FAPkodah and Introcan’s subsidiaries, Flo-
Pro Inc., LH Distribution Inc., Rafko Logistics Ind&rafko Holdings Inc. and Rafko Enterprises lmollectively, the “Fenco Entities”), filed a
voluntary petition for relief under Chapter 7 ofl&i11 of the United States Code (the “Bankruptogl€) in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the
District of Delaware. As a result of the loss ofitrol of Fenco and the subsequent filing of thetjoet for relief under the Bankruptcy Code,
Fenco had effectively been disposed of and the @omgid not and does not retain any continuing lvenment in the operations of Fenco. -
Company may be subject to claims relating to thekhaptcy (see Note 20).
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The Company’s income from discontinued operatioas $100,877,000 during the fiscal year ended Mai¢t2014 and consisted of (i) a
$118,095,000 gain on the deconsolidation of theatisnued subsidiary, including an income tax biméf$1,374,000, (ii) a loss of
approximately $20,464,000 in connection with thargmtee of obligations to certain suppliers ofdiseontinued subsidiary partly offset by
income tax benefits of $9,156,000, and (iii) néésaf approximately $14,140,000 and the resultisg of approximately $5,910,000 incurred
by the discontinued subsidiary from April 1, 20d3May 31, 2013.

4. Intangible Assets

The following is a summary of the intangible assefigject to amortization at March 31:

2015 2014

Weighted

Average
Amortization Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated
Period Value Amortization Value Amortization

Intangible assets subject to amortizatior

Trademark: 11 years $ 397,000 $ 278,000 $ 553,000 $  391,00(
Customer relationshiy 12 years 6,211,001 3,756,001 6,464,00! 3,393,001
Non-compete agreements - - - 257,00( 246,00(
Total $ 6,608,000 $ 4,034,000 $ 7,274,000 $ 4,030,00

Amortization expense for acquired intangible asisets follows:

Years Ended March 31,
2015 2014 2013

Amortization expens $ 670,000 $ 739,000 $ 773,00(
The estimated future amortization expense for gitaa assets subject to amortization is as follows:

Year Ending March 31,

2016 $ 349,00(
2017 266,00(
2018 266,00(
2019 266,00(
2020 266,00(
Thereafter 1,161,00!
Total $ 2,574,00

5. Short-Term Investments

The short-term investments contain the assetseo€ttimpany’s deferred compensation plan. The plsssts consist primarily of mutual funds
and are classified as available for sale. Durirgytbar ended March 31, 2015, the Company redeeth@8Gof short-term investments for the
payment of deferred compensation liabilities. Thenpany did not redeem any short-term investmemtthfopayment of deferred
compensation liabilities during the year ended Ma&t, 2014. As of March 31, 2015 and 2014, therfairket value of the short-term
investments was $699,000 and $521,000, and thiéitiiab plan participants was $699,000 and $520,0@spectively.
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6. Accounts Receivable — Net

Included in accounts receivable — net are significdfset accounts related to customer allowaneesesl (see Note 15), customer payment
discrepancies, returned goods authorizations (“RGgsued for in-transit unit returns, estimatedifatcredits to be provided for Used Cores
returned by the customers (see Note 2) and potdsaithdebts. Due to the forward looking nature gnaddifferent aging periods of certain
estimated offset accounts, they may not, at angtfpitime, directly relate to the balances in éltseounts receivable—trade account.

Accounts receivable — net is comprised of the feitg at March 31:

2015 2014
Accounts receivabl— trade $ 62,171,00 $ 58,766,00
Allowance for bad debt (629,000 (854,000
Customer allowances earn (7,221,00) (9,088,00)
Customer payment discrepanc (852,000 (577,000
Customer returns RGA issu (7,029,00) (5,809,00)
Customer core returns accruals (21,641,00) (20,155,00)
Less: total accounts receivable offset accounts (37,372,00) (36,483,00)
Total accounts receivable — net $ 24,799,00 $ 22,283,00

Warranty Returns

The Company allows its customers to return goode¢dCompany that their end-user customers hauened to them, whether the returned
item is or is not defective (warranty returns). Tampany accrues an estimate of its exposure trantgrreturns based on a historical analysi:
of the level of this type of return as a percentaig®tal unit sales. Amounts charged to expensé¢hiese warranty returns are considered in
arriving at the Company’s net sales. At March 311®2and 2014, the Compasytotal warranty return accrual was $10,904,000%8)839,00(
respectively, of which $3,746,000 and $2,407,086pectively, was included in the customer retur@&\Rssued balance in the above table for
expected credits to be issued against accountwabde and $7,158,000 and $5,632,000, respectivedg, included in the customer finished
goods returns accrual (see Note 2) in the condelidaalance sheets for estimated future warrantyrrs.

Change in the Company’s warranty return accruasifollows at March 31:

2015 2014 2013
Balance at beginning of peri $ 8,039,000 $ 6,205,000 $ 4,426,00
Charged to expens 65,469,00 56,284,00 48,948,000
Amounts processed (62,604,00) (54,450,00) (47,169,00)
Balance at end of period $ 10,904,00 $ 8,039,000 $ 6,205,00!
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7. Inventory

Non-core inventory, inventory unreturned, long-termecmventory, and long-term core inventory depoaitsas follows at March 31:

2015 2014
Non-core inventory
Raw material $ 18,836,000 $ 18,787,00
Work-in-process 255,00( 124,00(
Finished goods 39,828,00 30,197,00
58,919,00 49,108,00
Less allowance for excess and obsolete inventory (2,090,00) (1,862,001
Total $ 56,829,00 $ 47,246,00
Inventory unreturned $ 7,833,000 $ 7,534,00
Long-term core inventory
Used cores held at the Company's facili $ 27,417,00 $ 23,718,00
Used cores expected to be returned by custo 9,799,001 6,160,001
Remanufactured cores held in finished ga 21,557,000 18,093,00
Remanufactured cores held at customers' locations 130,762,00 96,351,00
189,535,00 144,322,00
Less allowance for excess and obsolete inventory (585,000 (846,000
Total $ 188,950,00 $ 143,476,00
Long-term core inventory deposits $ 31,571,00 $ 29,375,00
8. Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment, at cost, are as follows atMad.
2015 2014
Machinery and equipme| $ 25,963,000 $ 25,092,00
Office equipment and fixture 8,602,001 7,552,001
Leasehold improvements 7,422,00! 7,569,00!
41,987,00 40,213,00
Less accumulated depreciation (29,452,00) (29,188,00)
Total $ 12,535,00 $ 11,025,00

Plant and equipment located in the foreign cousitnbere the Company has facilities, net of accutadldepreciation, totaled $3,913,000 and
$4,703,000 at March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectifdigse assets constitute substantially all thg-lwed assets of the Company located
outside of the United States.
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9. Capital Lease Obligations

The Company leases various types of machinery anmgbater equipment under agreements accounted frapasl leases and included in pl
and equipment as follows at March 31:

2015 2014
Cost $ 617,000 $ 343,00(
Less: accumulated depreciation (95,000 (25,000)
Total $ 522,000 $ 318,00(
Future minimum lease payments for the capital lease as follows:
Year Ending March 31,
2016 $ 150,00(
2017 141,00(
2018 140,00(
2019 111,00(
2020 50,00(
Total minimum lease paymer 592,00(
Less amount representing interest (64,000
Present value of future minimum lease payn 528,00(
Less current portion (125,000
$ 403,00

10. Accrued Core Payment

At March 31, 2015, the Company recorded $37,070r8p€esenting the net accrued core payments fazdres purchased from its customers,
which are held by these customers and remain ongramises.

Future repayments for accrued core payments dmlaws:

Year Ending March 31,

2016 $ 13,882,00
2017 8,275,00!
2018 8,275,001
2019 8,275,00!
Total accrued core paymet 38,707,00
Less amount representing interest (1,637,000
Present value of accrud core payme 37,070,00
Less current portion (13,190,00)

$ 23,880,00

11. Debt

The Company has the following credit agreements.
Financing Agreemer

The Company is party to a financing agreementpanaed, (the “Financing Agreement”) with a syndicaftlenders, Cerberus Business
Finance, LLC (“Cerberus”), as collateral agent, 8NC Bank, National Association, as administratigent. The loans made thereunder (the
“Loans”) consist of: (i) term loans aggregating $#®,000 (the “Term Loans”) and (ii) revolving leaof up to $30,000,000, subject to
borrowing base restrictions and a $10,000,000 sutiior letters of credit (the “Revolving Loans™he Loans mature on November 6, 201¢
connection with the Financing Agreement, the lesdegre granted a security interest in substantéllgf the assets of the Company. In
addition, t he Company has the right, subject teting certain conditions, to repurchase up to $1@@O0 of the Company’s equity interests.
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In June 2014, the Company entered into a first @imemt to the Financing Agreement (the “First Amerdtf), pursuant to which (i) the
Revolving Loans were increased by $10,000,000 ;AR0,000 (the “Amended Revolving Loans”), (ii) tmaximum amount of capital
expenditures was increased to $7,000,000 for fd@ab, and $4,000,000 for each of fiscal 2016 a@V2and (iii) certain other amendments
and modifications were made.

In September 2014, the Company entered into a demmendment to the Financing Agreement (the “Seéandndment”), pursuant to which
the Company was permitted to lease an additiomal garty warehouse location in Mexico and offipase in Canada.

In December 2014, the Company entered into a #mrdndment to the Financing Agreement (the “ThirdeAdment”), pursuant to which (i)
the definition of consolidated earnings beforenasg income tax, depreciation and amortizatioreesps (“EBITDA”) was amended and (ii)
certain schedules to the Financing Agreement wedated.

In April 2015, the Company entered into a fourthemiment to the Financing Agreement (the “Fourth Admeent”), pursuant to which (i) the
definition of consolidated EBITDA was further amexl (ii) the consolidated EBITDA covenant levelsavimcreased for the fiscal quarter
ending March 31, 2015 and each quarter thereaft&dth,800,000, and (iii) certain schedules to theaficing Agreement were updated.

The Term Loans require quarterly principal paymeft$2,100,000 per quarter and bear interest as ratjual to, at the Company’s option,
either LIBOR (subject to a 1.50% LIBOR floor) pla25% or a reference rate plus 4.25%. The AmendroIRing Loans bear interest at rates
equal to, at the Company’s option, either LIBORspRU50% or a reference rate plus 1.00%. The irtestss on the Company’s Term Loans
using the LIBOR option was 6.75% at March 31, 2868 2014, respectively. The interest rate on thm@@my’s Revolving Loans using the
LIBOR option was 2.66% at March 31, 2014.

The following summarizes information about the Camys Term Loans at:

2015 2014

Principal amount of term loz $ 84,500,000 $ 92,900,00
Unamortized financing fees (4,399,00) (5,623,000

Net carrying amount of term loz $ 80,101,00 $ 87,277,00
Less current portion of term loan (7,843,001 (7,843,001

Long-term portion of term loan $ 72,258,00 $ 79,434,00
Future repayments of the Company’s Term Loansjduaffyear, are as follows:
Year Ending March 31,

2016 $ 8,400,00

2017 8,400,00!

2018 8,400,00!

2019 59,300,00

Total payments $ 84,500,00

The Company may reduce or terminate the commitrredrttee lenders to make the Amended Revolving Laarnsepay the Term Loans in
whole or in part. Such prepayments were subjeatgrepayment penalty of 2.00% times the sum ofébaction of the revolving credit
commitment plus the principal amount of any prepagtrof the Term Loans through January 18, 2015naaylbe made with no prepayment
penalty thereafter.
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The Financing Agreement, among other things, reguiie Company to maintain certain financial com&acluding a maximum senior
leverage ratio, a minimum fixed charge coveragierand minimum consolidated EBITDA. The Companywacompliance with all financial
covenants as of March 31, 2015.

The Company had no outstanding balance on the AeteReévolving Loans; however, $430,000 was resefmestandby letters of credit for
workers’ compensation insurance and $1,794,006dormercial letters of credit as of March 31, 20Mse Company had borrowed
$10,000,000 under the Revolving Loans at March2814. As of March 31, 2015, $35,950,000, subjecettain adjustments, was available
under the Amended Revolving Loans.

WX Agreement

In August 2012, the Company entered into a Revgl@nedit/Strategic Cooperation Agreement (the “Witrdement”) with Wanxiang
America Corporation (the “Supplier”) and the distioned subsidiary. In connection with the WX Agrestt) the Company also issued a
warrant (the “Supplier Warrant”) to the Suppliemtarchase up to 516,129 shares of the Company’snmmstock for an initial exercise price
of $7.75 per share exercisable at any time afteyuati22, 2014 and on or prior to September 30, 204& exercise price is subject to
adjustments, among other things, for sales of comstack by the Company at a price below the exengiie.

The fair value of the Supplier Warrant using therdoCarlo simulation model was $10,506,000 and®1IQQ00 at March 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. This amount is recorded as a waltiapitity which is included in other liabilities ithe consolidated balance sheets at March 31,
2015 and 2014. During the fiscal year ended Madc2B15 and 2014, losses of $459,000 and $8,408;880ectively, were recorded in
general and administrative expenses due to thegehiarthe fair value of this warrant liability.

12. Accounts Receivable Discount Programs

The Company uses receivable discount programsogitiain major customers and their respective bdokder these programs, the Company
may sell those customers’ receivables to thosedank discount to be agreed upon at the timeeitevables are sold. These programs allow
the Company to accelerate collection of custontexsivables.

The following is a summary of the Company’s acceueteivable discount programs from its continwapgrations:

Years Ended March 31,

2015 2014
Receivables discountt $260,973,00 $210,752,00
Weighted average da 33€ 337
Weighted average discount ri 2.(% 2.2%
Amount of discount as interest expe! $ 4,917,000 $ 4,336,00

13. Financial Risk Management and Derivatives

Purchases and expenses denominated in currenbistioan the U.S. dollar, which are primarily rethto the Company’s facilities overseas,
expose the Company to market risk from material eneents in foreign exchange rates between the @lBrand the foreign currency. The
Company’s primary risk exposure is from fluctuation the value of the Mexican peso and to a lemsient the Chinese yuan. To mitigate
these risks, the Company enters into forward fareigrrency exchange contracts to exchange U.Sarddlbr these foreign currencies. The
extent to which forward foreign currency exchangetracts are used is modified periodically in resmoto the Company’s estimate of market
conditions and the terms and length of anticipagegiirements.
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The Company enters into forward foreign currenagh@xge contracts in order to reduce the impaatr@idgn currency fluctuations and not to
engage in currency speculation. The use of devigdinancial instruments allows the Company to cediis exposure to the risk that the
eventual cash outflow resulting from funding th@emxses of the foreign operations will be materiaffected by changes in exchange rates.
The Company does not hold or issue financial imsémts for trading purposes. The forward foreigmency exchange contracts are designate
for forecasted expenditure requirements to fundiépr operations.

The Company had forward foreign currency excharmgpracts with a U.S. dollar equivalent notionalueabf $19,356,000 and $17,796,000 at
March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. These cotstigenerally expire in a year or less, at rateseabat the inception of the contracts. The
counterparty to this derivative transaction is gamfinancial institution with investment grade lzgtter credit rating; however, the Company is
exposed to credit risk with this institution. Thedit risk is limited to the potential unrealizeaimms (which offset currency fluctuations adverse
to the Company) in any such contract should thisiterparty fail to perform as contracted. Any chem the fair values of forward foreign
currency exchange contracts are reflected in cupenod earnings and accounted for as an increas#set to general and administrative
expenses.

The following table shows the effect of the Comparerivative instruments on its consolidated stegets of operations:

Gain (Loss) Recognized within General and Administative Expense

Derivatives Not Designated a Years Ended March 31,
Hedging Instruments 2015 2014 2013
Forward foreign currency exchange contr: $ (1,034,000 $ (842,000 $ 804,00(

The fair value of the forward foreign currency eanbe contracts of $1,193,000 and $159,000 is iedun other current liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets at Mdrch(35 and 2014, respectively.

14. Fair Value Measurements

The Company defines fair value as the price thatldvbe received to sell an asset or paid to trarssfiability (an exit price) in the principal or
most advantageous market for the asset or lialilign orderly transaction between market participan the measurement date. The Com
uses a three-tier valuation hierarchy based upserebble and unobservable inputs:

e Level 1— Valuation is based upon quoted prices (unadjustedgtive markets for identical assets or lialskt

e Level 2 — Valuation is based upon quoted pricessiimilar assets and liabilities in active marketspther inputs that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or iméctly, for substantially the full term of the fimgial instrument

e Level 3— Valuation is based upon unobservable inputs tleasignificant to the fair value measurem
The fair value hierarchy requires the use of oleglermarket data when available. In instances iictwtine inputs used to measure fair value
fall into different levels of the fair value hiecluy, the fair value measurement has been deternbiaged on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement in itdrety. The Company’s assessment of the signifieasfa particular item to the fair value
measurement in its entirety requires judgmentuitliclg the consideration of inputs specific to theet or liability.
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The following table sets forth by level within tfar value hierarchy, the Company’s financial assetd liabilities that were accounted for at
fair value on a recurring basis at March 31, 2046 2014, according to the valuation techniquebmpany used to determine their fair
values.

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Fair Value Measurements Fair Value Measurements
Using Inputs Considered as Using Inputs Considered as
Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Shor-term investment
Mutual funds $ 699,000 $ 699,00( - - $ 521,000 $ 521,00¢ - -
Liabilities
Other current liabilitie:
Deferred compensatic 699,00( 699,00( - - 521,00( 521,00( - -
Forward foreign currenc
exchange contrac 1,193,00! - $1,193,00 - 159,00( - $ 159,00( -
Other liabilities
Warrant liability 10,506,00 - - $10,506,00 10,047,00 - - $10,047,00

The Company’s short-term investments, which fusdigferred compensation liabilities, consist okesiments in mutual funds. These
investments are classified as Level 1 as the slditbese mutual funds trade with sufficient freaqeyeand volume to enable the Company to
obtain pricing information on an ongoing basis.

The forward foreign currency exchange contractgaraarily measured based on the foreign currepoy and forward rates quoted by the
banks or foreign currency dealers and classifieldeagl 2. During the fiscal years ended March 31,32and 2014, losses of $1,034,000 and
$842,000, respectively, were recorded in genemlagiministrative expenses due to the change inahe of the forward foreign currency
exchange contracts subsequent to entering intodhiacts.

The Company estimates the fair value of the watiability using level 3 inputs and the Monte Casimulation model at each balance sheet
date. Monte Carlo simulation model requires theutrgd subjective assumptions including the expeetdltility of the underlying stock. These
subjective assumptions are based on both hist@immhbther information. Changes in the values asguand used in the model can materially
affect the estimate of fair value. This amountisarded as a warrant liability which is includedther liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheets at March 31, 2015 and 2014. Any subseghanges in the fair value of the warrant liabilitifl we recorded in current period earnings
as a general and administrative expense. Durinfjgbal years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, losis$459,000 and $10,443,000,
respectively, were recorded in general and adnn@itige expenses due to the change in the fair vafitiee warrant liability.

The assumptions used to determine the fair valdbeoSupplier Warrant recorded as warrant liabikigre:

March 31, 201t

Risk free interest rai 0.7¢%
Expected life in year 2.5C
Expected volatility 47.0(%
Dividend yield -
Probability of future financin 0%

The risk free interest rate used was based ontté&sury-note yields with terms commensurate vhithremaining term of the warrants. The
expected life is based on the remaining contracared of the warrants and the expected volatifithased on the Company’s daily historical
volatility over a period commensurate with the rérrgy term of the warrants.
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A summary of the change to the Companyarrant liability, as measured at fair value aeaurring basis using significant unobservablaiis
(Level 3) is presented below:

Years Ended March 31,

2015 2014
Beginning balanc $ 10,047,000 $ 2,014,00
Newly issuec - -
Total (gain) loss included in net income (lo 459,00( 10,443,00
Exercises/settlements ( - (2,410,001
Net transfers in (out) of Level - -
Ending balance $ 10,506,000 $ 10,047,00

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015 the gamy had no significant measurements of assetahilities at fair value on a nonrecurri
basis subsequent to their initial recognition.

The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivablmunts payable and accrued liabilities approxéntiair fair value due to the short-term
nature of these instruments. The carrying amouhriseorevolving loan, term loan and other long-tdiabilities approximate their fair value
based on current rates for instruments with sinularacteristics.

15. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Lease Commitments

The Company leases various office and warehougl@iézcin North America and Asia under operatiegs$es expiring through 2022. The
Company also has short term contracts of one yelass covering its third party warehouses thavidefor contingent payments based on the
level of sales that are processed through the garty warehouse.

The remaining future minimum rental payments uriderabove operating leases are as follows:

Year Ending March 31,

2016 $ 3,141,00
2017 3,004,001
2018 1,310,001
2019 1,129,001
2020 1,101,001
Thereafter 2,293,001
Total minimum lease payments $ 11,978,00

During fiscal years 2015, 2014 and 2013, the Comigasontinuing operations incurred total operatiegse expenses of $3,030,000,
$2,928,000 and $2,567,000, respectively.

Commitments to Provide Marketing Allowances underg-Term Customer Contracts

The Company has or is renegotiating long-term ageses with many of its major customers. Under ttaggeements, which typically have
initial terms of at least four years, the Compagésignated as the exclusive or primary suppbiesfpecified categories of remanufactured
alternators and starters. In consideration forGbmpany’s designation as a customer’s exclusiy@iorary supplier, the Company typically
provides the customer with a package of marketiegrtives. These incentives differ from contraatdatract and can include (i) the issuance
of a specified amount of credits against receivabieaccordance with a schedule set forth in thevamt contract, (ii) support for a particular
customer’s research or marketing efforts provideé scheduled basis, (iii) discounts granted imegation with each individual shipment of
product, and (iv) other marketing, research, séoqgansion or product development support. Theseaxs typically require that the Company
meet ongoing standards related to fulfillment, @rignd quality. The Company’s contracts with majmtomers expire at various dates througt
March 2019.
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The Company typically grants its customers markgéitiowances in connection with these customeusthase of goods. The Company rec
the cost of all marketing allowances provided $ociistomers. Such allowances include sales in@néimd concessions and typically consis

(i) allowances which may only be applied againsiifel purchases and are recorded as a reductievéoues in accordance with a schedule s¢
forth in the long-term contract, (ii) allowancesated to a single exchange of product that arerdszbas a reduction of revenues at the time tt
related revenues are recorded or when such inesngike offered, and (iii) allowances that are maa®nnection with the purchase of
inventory from a customer.

The following table presents the breakout of allowes for our continuing operations discussed abr@eerded as a reduction to revenues:

Years Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
Allowances incurred under lo-term customer contrac $ 18,358,00 $ 16,099,00 $ 13,590,00
Allowances related to a single exchange of pro 36,112,00 30,948,00 27,392,00
Allowances related to core inventory purchase albiomns 15,540,00 2,506,001 2,615,00i
Total customer allowances recorded as a reducfioevenues $ 70,010,00 $ 49,553,00 $ 43,597,00

The following table presents the commitments tairallowances, excluding allowances related taglsiexchange of product, which will be
recognized as a charge against revenue, and cusReneanufactured Core purchase obligations whidhbeirecognized in accordance with
the terms of the relevant long-term customer catdra

Year Ending March 31,

2016 $ 22,518,00
2017 18,988,00
2018 10,547,00
2019 4,585,00!
2020 2,458,001
Thereafter 3,982,001
Total marketing allowances $ 63,078,00

Workers Compensation Insurance

Effective January 1, 2007 through the current figear, the Company’s workers compensation inswamticy has been written on a
guaranteed cost basis (first dollar payment ohtdawvith no deductibles). For each of the five ygarsr to January 1, 2007, the Company
purchased workers compensation insurance on adkedéctible plan and for claims during this peribed Company continues to be liable for
the first $250,000 of each claim until all clainte aettled (essentially self-insured). The Compaeprds an estimate of its liability for the self:
insured portion of its workers’ compensation poligyincluding an estimate of the total claims imedrand reported as well as an estimate of
incurred, but not reported, claims by applying @@npany’s historical claims development factort$oeistimate of incurred and reported
claims.
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16. Major Customers and Suppliers
The Company’s largest customers accounted fordit@fing total percentage of net sales from coritigwoperations:

Years Ended March 31,

Sales 2015 2014 2013

Customer A 56% 53% 41%
Customer E 19% 19% 24%
Customer C 11% 11% 12%
Customer C 3% 4% 5%

The Company’s largest customers accounted fordlaafing total percentage of accounts receivablérade at March 31.:

Accounts receivable - trade 2015 2014

Customer A 48% 46%
Customer E 16% 12%
Customer C 12% 7%
Customer C 4% 10%

The Company’s largest supplier accounted for 123%p,1and 0% of inventory purchases for the yearg@mdarch 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013,
respectively. No other suppliers accounted for ntlba@ 10% of inventory purchases for the years @idigrch 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013.

17. Income Taxes
The income tax expense from the Company’s contojperations for the years ended March 31 is d@st

Years Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013

Current tax expens

Federal $ 1,523,000 $ 4,564,000 $ 31,226,00

State 1,100,001 614,00( 3,368,001

Foreign 527,00( 599,00( 336,00(

Total current tax expense 3,150,001 5,777,00! 34,930,00
Deferred tax expense (bene

Federal 5,553,001 2,477,001 (25,074,00)

State 93,00( (162,000 (2,706,001

Foreign 272,00( (759,000 282,00(

Total deferred tax expense (benefit) 5,918,00! 1,556,00! (27,498,00)
Total income tax expense $ 9,068,000 $ 7,333,000 $ 7,432,00
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Deferred income taxes consist of the following atrth 31:

2015 2014
Assets
Accounts receivable valuatic $ 3,100,000 $ 3,926,00
Allowance for customer incentivt 1,296,001 1,343,001
Inventory obsolescence resel 1,056,00! 1,070,00!
Stock options 1,931,00! 1,426,00!
Intangibles, ne 846,00( 796,00(
Estimate for return 986,00( -
Deferred core revent - 2,885,00!
Accrued compensatic 2,563,001 1,787,00!
Net operating losse 3,007,001 9,117,001
Other 2,986,00i 2,305,001
Total deferred tax assets $ 17,771,00 $ 24,655,00
Liabilities
Property and equipment, r (807,000 (298,000
Estimate for return - (916,00()
Other (1,635,001 (2,197,000
Total deferred tax liabilities $ (2,442,000 $ (3,411,00)
Less valuation allowance $ - $ =
Net deferred tax asse $ 15,329,00 $ 21,244,00
Net current deferred income tax as $ 22,871,000 $ 18,630,00
Net lon¢-term deferred income tax (liability) asset (7,542,00i) 2,614,000
Total $ 15,329,00 $ 21,244,00

At March 31, 2015 and 2014, current deferred inctemdiabilities of $127,000 and $137,000, respestyi, are included in other current
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet. Agiderm deferred income tax liability of $7,803,d60ncluded in other liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheet at March 31, 2015.

At March 31, 2015, the Company had federal ane stat operating loss carryforwards of $9,800,0a0%88,500,000, respectively. The
utilization of these net operating loss carryfordigamay be permanently limited due to Internal ReeeBiode Section 382 in the United States
Prior to the utilization of such losses, the Conypaiil perform further analysis to determine the@amt subject to limitation. Additionally, in
certain states the suspension of the usage ofetheperating losses may apply. The net operatisg darryforwards expire between fiscal year:
2020 and 2032.

The U.S. operating loss carryforwards include $4,900 of losses attributable to windfall stock optdeductions. A net benefit of $1,900,000
will be recorded to additional paid-in capital whealized as a reduction to income taxes payable.

Realization of the Company's deferred tax assetependent upon the Company’s ability to genenafficent taxable income. Management
reviews the Company's deferred tax assets onsjation by jurisdiction basis to determine whettiés more likely than not that the deferred
tax assets will be realized. Management believasitlis more likely than not that future taxabteame will be sufficient to realize the recor
deferred tax assets. In evaluating this abilityneggement considers long-term agreements and Reawdngd Core purchase obligations with
the Company’s major customers that expire at varaates through March 2019. Management also pesiltigicompares its forecasts to actual
results. Even though there can be no assurancehthédrecasted results will be achieved, the hysbd income in all other jurisdictions
provides sufficient positive evidence that no vébraallowance is needed.
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For the year ended March 31, 2015, 2014, and 28&3rimary components of the Company’s incomeetgense were (i) the current liability
due to federal, state and foreign income taxasfofieign income taxed at rates that are diffefeorh the federal statutory rate, (iii) non-
deductible expenses in connection with the faingadjustments on the warrants, (iv) impact ofrthie-deductible executive compensation
under Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m), anthésimpact of uncertain tax positions.

The difference between the income tax expensesdetteral statutory rate and the Company’s effedtx rate from the Comparsytontinuing
operations is as follows:

Years Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013

Statutory federal income tax re 35.(% 34.(% 34.(%
State income tax rate, net of federal ber 2.2% 2.4% 1.€%
Change in deferred tax re (0.2% (1.8% (0.9%
Foreign income taxed at different ra (0.99% (7.2% (0.)%
Warrants 0.8% 25.1% 0.€%
Non-deductible executive compensat 3.4% 1.€% 0.7%
Uncertain Tax Position 2.5% (2.9% -%
Other income tax 1.4% 0.6% (2.8)%

44.2% 53.1% 33.8%

The Company and its subsidiaries file income tanrres in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and variataste and foreign jurisdictions with varying
statutes of limitations. At March 31, 2015, the @amy is under examination in the U.S. by the IrdkRevenue Service for fiscal years 2011,
2012, 2013 and by the State of California for fisear 2013. The Company is not under examinaticanly another jurisdiction. The Compe
believes no significant changes in the unrecogniardenefits will occur within the next 12 months.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoefntinrecognized tax benefits from the Companyistioniing operations is as follows at
March 31:

2015 2014 2013
Balance at beginning of peric $ 540,000 $ 827,000 $ 634,00!
Additions based on tax positions related to thessuryeal 359,00( 71,00( 227,001
Additions for tax positions of prior ye. 336,00( - -
Reductions for tax positions of prior ye (118,000 (358,000 (34,000
Settlements - - -
Balance at end of period $ 1,117,000 $ 540,000 $ 827,00(

At March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, there are $9%8,$837,000 and $597,000 of unrecognized tax bisrnisfat if recognized would affect the
annual effective tax rate.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties ederlated to unrecognized tax benefits as pdrooime tax expense. During the fiscal
years ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, the Gaymecognized approximately ($56,000), $(9,0009, $32,000 in interest and penalti
The Company had approximately $56,000 and $11Z@0Me payment of interest and penalties accraddazich 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

18. Defined Contribution Plans

The Company has a 401(k) plan covering all emplsyd®o are 21 years of age with at least six mootisgrvice. The plan permits eligible
employees to make contributions up to certain Atiohs, with the Company matching 25% of each gpdting employee’s contribution up to
the first 6% of employee compensation. Beginniniylarch 2015, the Company increased its matchingribations from 25% to 50% of each
participant’s elective contributions to the planta% of the participant’s compensation for thary&mployees are immediately vested in
their voluntary employee contributions and veshie Company’s matching contributions ratably ovee ffears. The Company’s matching
contribution to the 401(k) plan was $145,000, $026,and $117,000 for the fiscal years ended Maigt2815, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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19. Share-based Payments

At the Company’s Annual Meeting of Shareholderslteel December 17, 2003, the shareholders apprree@ampany’s 2003 Long-Term
Incentive Plan (“Incentive Plan”) which had beempigd by the Company’s Board of Directors on Ocatdide 2003. Under the Incentive Plan,
a total of 1,200,000 shares of the Company’s comstock were reserved for grants of Incentive Awandd all of the Company’s employees
are eligible to participate. The 2003 IncentiverBhas terminated on October 31, 2013. As of Marthi2B15 and 2014, options to purchase
438,750 and 467,500 shares of common stock, regelyctwere outstanding under the Incentive Planldnuary 2011, this Incentive Plan was
replaced and no options were available for gradeuthe Incentive Plan.

In November 2004, the Company’s shareholders ajgprtive 2004 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Rtha “2004 Plan”) which
provides for the granting of options to non-emplkogirectors. At the Company’s Annual Meeting of @halders held on February 25, 2010,
the Company’s shareholders approved an amendmém 2004 Plan that increased the number of slediresmmon stock reserved for grant
under the 2004 Plan from 175,000 to 275,000. Adafch 31, 2015 and 2014, options to purchase 183088res of common stock were
outstanding for both years under the 2004 PlaMadrch 2014, the 2004 Plan was replaced and noruptieere available for grant under this
plan.

In January 2011, the Company’s shareholders ap@rine2010 Incentive Award Plan (the “2010 Planhjet replaced the 2003 Long-term
Incentive Plan. At the Company’s Annual MeetingStifareholders held on March 28, 2013, the Compathdseholders approved an
amendment and restatement of the 2010 Plan thataised the number of shares of common stock resévgrant under the 2010 Plan from
750,000 to 1,750,000. At the Company’s Annual Megetif Shareholders held on March 31, 2014, the Gmyig shareholders approved the
second amendment and restatement of the 2010HRafutther increased the number of shares of comstack reserved for grant under the
2010 Plan from 1,750,000 to 2,750,000. Under tHe0Z®lan, all of the Company’s employees are elgiblparticipate. As of March 31, 2015
and 2014, options to purchase 767,504 and 776 /#&@s of common stock, respectively, were outstandnd 1,165,740 and 1,452,983 sh:
of common stock, respectively, were available fangunder the 2010 Plan.

At the Company’s Annual Meeting of Shareholdersltedl March 31, 2014, the shareholders approve@timepany’s 2014 Non-Employee
Director Incentive Award Plan (the “2014 Plan”) whihad been adopted by the Company’s Board of ireon February 23, 2014 and
replaced the 2004 Plan. Under the 2014 Plan, hab842,000 shares of the Company’s common stoekeserved for grants to the
Company’s non-employee directors. As of March 3,2 10,656 shares of restricted stock were isshedf March 31, 2015 and 2014, no
options to purchase shares under the 2014 Planissered and 323,885 and 342,000 shares of comraok, sespectively, were available for
grant under the 2014 Plan.

The shares of common stock issued upon exerciagomviously granted stock option are considerediasuances from shares reserved for

issuance upon adoption of the various plans. Thagaay requires that the option holders provide ittew notice of exercise to the stock plan
administrator and payment for the shares priossaance of the shares.

F-30




Table of Content

The following is a summary of stock option activityring the year ended March 31, 2015:

Number of Weighted Average

Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at March 31, 20. 1,426,96 $ 9.21
Grantec 82,53 $ 22.9¢
Exercisec (108,739 $ 9.81
Cancelled (11519 % 10.32
Outstanding at March 31, 2015 1,389,25 ¢ 9.97

Based on the market value of the Company’s comrtak @t March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, the prersic value of options exercised
was $1,955,000, $12,593,000 and $493,000 respBctiMee total fair value of stock options vestedidg the years ended March 31, 2015,
2014, and 2013 was $978,000, $459,000, and $687@80ectively.

The following table summarizes information abowt tptions outstanding at March 31, 2015:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Weighted  Average Weighted

Average Remaining Aggregate Average Aggregate

Range of Exercise Life Intrinsic Exercise Intrinsic

Exercise price Shares Price In Years Value Shares Price Value
$4.170 to $6.25! 81,00( $ 5.22 4.0z $ 1,828,00! 80,00 $ 5.2C $ 1,808,00
$6.460 to $7.43! 458,33! 6.52 7.45 9,749,00! 430,63° 6.52 9,156,00!
$8.700 to $9.90! 251,29¢ 9.3¢ 8.22 4,636,001 77,23¢ 9.3¢ 1,421,001
$10.010 to $11.90 195,25( 10.21 0.81 3,432,00i 195,25( 10.21 3,432,001
$12.000 to $25.510 403,37( $  15.1: 3.9¢ 5,111,00i 285,11: $ 12.31 4,414,00
1,389,25. $ 9.97 5.4¢ $24,756,00 1,068,23! $ 8.8t $20,231,00

The aggregate intrinsic values in the above tadpeasent the pre-tax value of all in-the-moneyarstiif all such options had been exercised o
March 31, 2015 based on the Company’s closing gtoick of $27.79 as of that date.

At March 31, 2015, there was $1,446,000 of totabangnized compensation expense from stock-basegersation granted under the plans,
which is related to non-vested shares. The compiensaxpense is expected to be recognized overightesl average vesting period of 1.5
years.

Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units (callett “RS”)

During the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014Ctmepany granted 95,645 and 138,000 shares ofdRfectively, with an estimated grant
date fair value of $2,316,000 and $1,286,000, mspdy, which was based on the closing marketepdn the date of grant. The fair value
related to these awards is recognized as compensatpense over the vesting period. These award=géy vest in three equal installments
beginning each anniversary from the grant datdestib continued employment. Upon vesting, thegards may be net share settled to cover
the required withholding tax with the remaining ambconverted into an equivalent number of shafe®mmon stock. Total shares withheld
during the year ended March 31, 2015 were 27,183 based on the value of these awards as datatrny the Company'’s closing stock
price on the vesting date. There were no shardgheld during the year ended March 31, 2014.
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The following is a summary of changes in the stafuson-vested RS during the year ended March 3152

Weighted Average¢
Number of Grant Date Fair

Shares Value
Non-vested restricted stock at March 31, 2 138,00( $ 9.32
Restricted stock grante 95,64 $ 24.21
Restricted stock veste (50,409 $ 10.51
Restricted stock cancelled (1,800 $ 9.3Z
Non-vested restricted stock at March 31, 2015 181,44: g 16.8¢

As of March 31, 2015, there was $2,283,000 of wgaized compensation expense related to these sywanéth will be recognized over the
remaining vesting period of approximately 1.9 years

20. Litigation

There have been and may be additional claims &iggdnst the Company by the trustee and some of ik creditors in connection with the
bankruptcy proceedings involving the Fenco Entities

In February 2015, M&T Bank filed a complaint in tBeperior Court for the State of California, CouafyLos Angeles, against the Company
and some of its executives alleging negligent mpiggentation, tortious interference with contralctakationship, conspiracy, unjust
enrichment, conversion, declaratory judgment/atgr, breach of contract and breach of the covesfagod faith and fair dealing. The
plaintiff is seeking unspecified damages, punitiaenages, attorneys’ fees and other relief.

In addition, the trustee has notified the Compamy its insurance companies that the trustee mag tlaims for wrongful acts, breach of
fiduciary duty, civil conspiracy, aiding and abetfj negligence and conversion, but has not filgdligéigation at this time.

The Company is also a defendant in the followingesaone in Ontario Superior Court and anothemérBankruptcy Court for the District of
Delaware. In each case the plaintiffs’ claim thieet Company is liable for amounts due from the Fdfmtities to their employees under
applicable U.S. and Canadian law. The Company egotiations with respect to these cases, alththayle can be no assurance whether the
cases will settle and, if they settle, on what &®rin this connection, the Company has establishegerve of $1,000,000, which has been
incorporated into the financial statements forfteeal year ended March 31, 2015.

Any litigation to determine the validity of theskiens involving the Fenco Entities, regardlesst®inerit or resolution, may be costly and time
consuming and divert the efforts and attentiorhef€ompanys management from its business strategy. Any aévjadgment or settlement
the Company of these claims could also resultgni§tant additional expense.

The Company is also subject to various other laiwsand claims in the normal course of business.dgdament does not believe that the
outcome of these other matters will have a matadakrse effect on its financial position or futeesults of operations.

21. Related Party Transactions

During the year ended March 31, 2015, Mr. Mel Masles appointed to serve as a director of the Cogipdisian subsidiaries, in addition to
his position as a director of the Company. Mr. Marnkll receive annual compensation of $150,000hferservices in addition to his regular
compensation as a director of the Company.

During the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013Ctmpany paid $304,000 and $ 350,000, respectiteMpulihan Lokey Howard & Zuk

Capital, Inc. in connection with the restructurofghe discontinued subsidiary. Scott Adelson, antmer of the Company’s Board of Directors,
is a Co-President and Global Co-Head of Corporatari€e for Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin Capitahcl
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22. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (LosS)

The changes in accumulated other comprehensivena¢oss) is as follows for the years ended Martch 3

2015 2014
Unrealized Unrealized
Gain Foreign Gain Currency
on Short-Term Currency on Short-Term Foreign
Investments Translation Total Investments Translation Total
Balance as of March 31, 20 $ 321,000 $ (1,198,000 $ (877,000 $ 287,000 $ (1,133,00) $ (846,00
Other comprehensive income (loss),
of tax 26,00( (1,665,00i) (1,639,00i) 34,00( (65,000 (31,000
Amounts reclassified from other
comprehensive income (loss), net ¢
tax (2,000 - (2,000) - - -
Balance as of March 31, 2015 $ 345,000 $ (2,863,000 $ (2,518,00) $ 321,000 $ (1,198,000 $ (877,000

23. Equity Transaction

During fiscal 2014, the Company filed a univerdal§ registration statement on Form S-3 (File N&B8-395585) which was declared effective
on May 9, 2014, for the proposed offering from titagime of up to $100,000,000 of the Company’aisiéies, including common stock,
preferred stock, and debt securities. The secsinitiay be offered by the Company from time to tirnanaounts, prices, interest rates, and othe
terms to be determined at the time of the offering.

In September 2014, the Company completed a pufibcing of 2,760,000 shares of the Company’s comistonk at a price of $26.00 per
share, which included the exercise in full by timelerwriters of their option to purchase up to,860 additional shares of common stock. The
Company received aggregate gross proceeds of $¥0(Band net proceeds of $66,973,000 after expense

24. Subsequent Events
Acquisition

On May 20, 2015 the Company completed the acqoiisdf the assets and certain liabilities of OE PILi® (“OE Plus”), a privately held
remanufacturer of alternators and starters basslbith Dighton, Massachusetts. The acquisition e@asummated pursuant to an asset
purchase agreement dated May 15, 2015. The asgktesults of operations of OE Plus were not sigaift to the Company’s consolidated
financial position or results of operations, angstpro forma information is not presented.

Financing Agreemer

On June 3, 2015 the Company entered into a $12800Genior secured financing (the “Credit Faci)ityith the lenders, and PNC Bank,
National Association, as administrative agent, edimg of (i) a $100,000,000 fi-year revolving loan facility, subject to borrowibgse
restrictions and a $15,000,000 sublimit for let&frsredit (the “New Revolving Loans”) and (ii) 25,000,000 five-year term loan facility (the
“New Term Loans”). In connection with the Credédility, the lenders were granted a security irdeire substantially all of the assets of the
Company.

The New Term Loans require quarterly principal papts of $781,250. The loans made under the Creditify bear interest at rates equal to
either LIBOR plus a margin of 2.50%, 2.75% or 3.000@& reference rate plus a margin of 1.50%, 1.85%00%, in each case depending on
the total leverage ratio as of the applicable mesasant date. There is also a facility fee of 0.26%.375%, depending on the total leverage
ratio as of the applicable measurement date.

In addition to other covenants, the Credit Facftitgces limits on the Company’s ability to, incienls, incur additional indebtedness, make
loans and investments, engage in mergers and &anss engage in asset sales, declare dividendsdeem or repurchase capital stock, alter
the business conducted by the Company and itsdialiss, transact with affiliates, prepay, redeemurchase subordinated debt, and amend
or otherwise alter debt agreements.
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The Credit Facility also contains financial covetsaquiring the Company to maintain (i) a maximwatio of consolidated funded debt to
consolidated EBITDA of 2.50:1 and (ii) a minimumiceof consolidated EBITDA to fixed charges thatgas from 1.05:1 to 1.15:1, in each
case beginning with the fiscal quarter ending opt&aber 30, 2015. A failure to comply with thesgenants could permit the lenders under

the Credit Facility to declare all amounts borroweder the Credit Facility, together with accruetdiest and fees, to be immediately due anc
payable.

25. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

The following table summarizes selected quarténgricial data for the fiscal year ended March R1,2.

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net sales $ 62,975,00 $ 70,840,00 $ 83,992,000 $ 83,904,00
Cost of goods sold 45,159,00 52,420,00 59,564,00 62,995,00
Gross profit 17,816,00 18,420,00 24,428,00 20,909,00
Operating expense
General and administrati 5,392,001 9,812,001 12,628,00 10,031,00
Sales and marketir 1,826,001 1,837,001 2,281,001 1,907,001
Research and development 522,00( 539,00( 601,00( 611,00!
Total operating expenses 7,740,001 12,188,00 15,510,00 12,549,00
Operating incomi 10,076,00 6,232,001 8,918,001 8,360,00!
Other expense
Interest expense, net 3,413,001 3,339,00! 3,165,00! 3,148,001
Income before income tax exper 6,663,001 2,893,001 5,753,001 5,212,00!
Income tax expense 2,714,001 1,418,00! 2,826,00! 2,110,00!
Net income $ 3,949,000 $ 1,475000 $ 2,927,000 $ 3,102,00
Basic net income per share $ 0.2¢€ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1€ $ 0.17%
Diluted net income per share $ 0.2 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1¢
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The following summarizes selected quarterly finahdata for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net sales $ 50,245,000 $ 66,174,00 $ 65568,00 $ 76,682,00
Cost of goods sold 34,231,00 46,469,00 43,642,00 52,761,00
Gross profit 16,014,00 19,705,00 21,926,00 23,921,00
Operating expense
General and administrati 9,632,001 8,706,001 9,580,001 11,766,00
Sales and marketir 1,731,001 2,143,001 1,905,001 2,059,001
Research and development 549,00( 398,00( 452,00( 541,00(
Total operating expenses 11,912,00 11,247,00 11,937,00 14,366,00
Operating incom: 4,102,001 8,458,001 9,989,001 9,555,001
Other expense
Interest expense, net 3,925,00I 4,663,001 6,524,00! 3,177,001
Income from continuing operations before incomeeapenst 177,00( 3,795,001 3,465,001 6,378,00!
Income tax expense 74,00( 1,631,00! 2,317,00! 3,311,00!
Income from continuing operatiol 103,00( 2,164,001 1,148,001 3,067,00!
Income from discontinued operations 100,877,00 - - -
Net income $100,980,00 $ 2,164,000 $ 1,148,000 $ 3,067,00
Basic net income per share from continuing openai $ 0.01 $ 0.1t $ 0.0¢ $ 0.2(
Basic net income per share from discontinued ojersit 6.97 - - -
Basic net income per share $ 6.9¢ $ 0.1t $ 0.0¢ $ 0.2(
Diluted net income per share from continuing operet $ 0.01 $ 0.1t $ 0.07 $ 0.1¢
Diluted net income per share from discontinued af@ns 6.9(C - - -
Diluted net income per share $ 6.91 $ 0.1f $ 0.07 $ 0.1¢

Quarterly and year-to-date computations of peresharounts are made independently. Therefore, theo§per share amounts for the quarters
may not agree with per share amounts for the yeawns elsewhere in the Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Schedule Il— Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Accounts Receivable— Allowance for doubtful accounts

Charge to
Balance at  (recovery of) Balance at
Years Ended beginning of bad debts Amounts end of
March 31, Description period expense written off period
2015 Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 854,000 $ 184,00 $ 409,00 $ 629,00!(
2014 Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 1,019,000 $ (47,000 $ 118,000 $ 854,001
2013 Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 947,000 $ 166,000 $ 94,00 $ 1,019,00

Accounts Receivable— Allowance for customer-payment discrepancies

Charge to
Balance at  (recovery of) Balance at
Years Ended beginning of  discrepancie: Amounts end of
March 31, Description period expense Processed period
2015 Allowance for customepayment discrepancic  $ 577,000 $ 91,00 $ (184,000 $ 852,00(
2014 Allowance for customepayment discrepancic  $ 514,000 $ (10,000 $ (73,000 $ 577,001
2013 Allowance for customepayment discrepancic  $ 280,000 $ 536,000 $ 302,000 $ 514,00(
Inventory — Allowance for excess and obsolete inventory
Provision for
Balance at excess and Balance at
Years Ended beginning of obsolete Amounts end of
March 31, Description period inventory written off period
2015 Allowance for excess and obsolete invent $ 2,708,000 $ 1,63500 $ 1,668,000 $ 2,675,00
2014 Allowance for excess and obsolete invent $ 2,498,000 $ 1,620,000 $ 1,410,000 $ 2,708,00
2013 Allowance for excess and obsolete invent $ 2,164,000 $ 1,814,000 $ 1,480,000 $ 2,498,00
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Exhibit 21.1
List of Subsidiaries
MVR Products Pte. Limited, a company organized utigde laws of Singapore
Unijoh Sdn. Bhd., a company organized under the lafAMalaysia
Motorcar Parts de Mexico, S.A. de C.V., a compamyanized under the laws of Mexico
Motorcar Parts of Canada, Inc., a company organineir the laws of Canada

Central Auto Parts Co., Ltd, a company organizedeumhe laws of China




Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference ifdllewing Registration Statements:
Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-114169) pertaining to the Long Term Incentive P
Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-144883) pertaining to the 2004 M-Employee Director Stock Option Ple

Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-185691) pertaining to the 2010 Incentive Award Péard
Registration Statement (Forn-3 No. 33:-195585) of Motorcar Parts of America, h

PR

of our reports dated June 15, 2015, with respettte@onsolidated financial statements and schaxféotorcar Parts of America, Inc. and the
effectiveness of internal control over financigdoeting of Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. includedhis Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the
year ended March 31, 201

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Los Angeles, C/
June 15, 201




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Selwyn Joffe, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Metr Parts of America, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or emnéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedoreaused such disclosure controls and procedaites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financiglorting, or caused, such internal control overritial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psint based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig's internal control over financial reportirttgat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal t@hover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alndave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrand’ Board of Directors (or persons performing theiwaant functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifrole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 15, 2015 /sl Selwyn Joffe

Selwyn Joffe
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

I, David Lee, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Metr Parts of America, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or emnéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedoreaused such disclosure controls and procedaites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financiglorting, or caused, such internal control overritial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based upon such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig's internal control over financial reportirttgat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal t@hover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alndave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrand’ Board of Directors (or persons performing theiwaant functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifrole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 15, 2015 /s/ David Lee

David Lee
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 31.3
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Kevin Daly, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Metr Parts of America, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or emnéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedoreaused such disclosure controls and procedaites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financiglorting, or caused, such internal control overritial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based upon such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig's internal control over financial reportirttgat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal t@hover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alndave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrand’ Board of Directors (or persons performing theiwaant functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifrole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 15, 2015 /sl Kevin Daly

Kevin Daly
Chief Accounting Office




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, CHIEF FINAN CIAL OFFICER AND CHIEF
ACCOUNTING OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of MotorcartBaf America, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-#f the year ended March 31, 2015
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Annual Report”), |, Sgiwloffe, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section01 3% adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasiaxiey Act of 2002, to my knowledg
that:

1. The Annual Report fully complies with the requirents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securkeshange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Annual Repaitly presents, in all material respects, the faalhcondition and results of operations of
the Company.

/s/ Selwyn Joffe
Selwyn Joffe

Chief Executive Office
June 15, 201

In connection with the Annual Report of MotorcartB8af America, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-#f the year ended March 31, 2015
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Annual Report”), I, Dhlkee, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section0125 adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasifaxiey Act of 2002, to my knowledg
that:

1. The Annual Report fully complies with the requirents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securkeshange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Annual Repaitly presents, in all material respects, the faaihcondition and results of operations of
the Company.

/s/ David Lee

David Lee

Chief Financial Office
June 15, 201

In connection with the Annual Report of MotorcartBaf America, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-#f the year ended March 31, 2015
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissinthe date hereof (the “Annual Report”), |, Ketlialy, Chief Accounting Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section01 25 adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasifaxiey Act of 2002, to my knowledg
that:

1. The Annual Report fully complies with the requirents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securkeshange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Annual Repaitly presents, in all material respects, the faaihcondition and results of operations of
the Company.

/s/ Kevin Daly

Kevin Daly

Chief Accounting Office
June 15, 201

The foregoing certifications are being furnishedh® Securities and Exchange Commission as panecdccompanying report on Form 10-
K. A signed original of each of these statementsiieen provided to Motorcar Parts of America, & will be retained by Motorcar Parts of
America, Inc. and furnished to the Securities ardhange Commission or its staff upon request.




